
 

  

Celebrating 
Manchester Fire Department’s 

60th Anniversary 

2007  

Annual Town Report 



 

2 

This Annual Town Report is dedicated to... 
THE  

MANCHESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT  

PAST AND PRESENT 
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HISTORY OF THE  

MANCHESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
After two serious fires in Manchester, the last being the building belonging to Chester A. Weed, 

considerable interest was aroused in forming a Fire Department.  

 

On December 13, 1946 a meeting was held by 29 interested citizens at Manchester Grange Hall, 

when the Volunteer Fire Department was organized. Albert Cummings 

was elected Chief, Bryan Day Secretary, and Francis Davis Treasurer. 

The Board of Directors consisted of Fred Blair, Perley Sweetland, and 

Earl Daggett. Albert Wheeler was elected moderator. Donations were 

asked for, and a sizeable sum was realized. The Department would be 

an organization with enough equipment and training either to 

extinguish a fire or hold it in check until the Augusta Fire Department 

could arrive. With the support of citizens and property owners the 

Department was more than half way toward the goal of $1500.  

   

Before the inception of the Manchester Fire Department any fires 

were covered by the Augusta Fire Department. 
 
On February 24, 1947,  a building that was located on Readfield Road 

near what is now Kennison St was donated by Orman Cummings,  who owned and operated the 
Wyman Farms.  It was moved from the Wyman Farm property to a spot beside what is currently 

Everett and Doris Gammons ‘ house on the Puddledock Road. The moving of the building was done 
by Norris Richardson of Skowhegan, using two crawler tractors, and set on a cement floor.  
 
 

 

Manchester Fire Department’s current fleet of vehicles consists of #401 - 14 foot rescue boat with a 
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On January 17, 1948, the town voted $300 to pay for a truck and siren. 
The truck - a Brockway -was purchased from the town of Freeport for 
$225. The truck was towed from Freeport to Manchester by Albert 
Cummings and Carl Whitman Jr. To call in for a fire, the calls went to 
Chief Cummings, or to Bryan Day or John Daggett, who were Chief 
Cummings' assistants.  

In the mid 1950s an ex-military truck with a 1000 -gallon tank was pur-
chased for the fire department. A 1954 Reo Lafrance pumper was pur-
chased from the Augusta Fire Department.  It was assembled by Albert 
Cummings at the Augusta Fire Station. This chain -driven truck was 
fondly called Iron John. The mate to this truck is on display at the 
Cole’s Transportation Museum in Bangor. Iron John was driven into 
Cobbossee Lake at the Hammond’s Grove fire when two camps 
burned in 1950;  one of the camps was owned by Charles E Downing.  

The town voted to build a new fire station on the Readfield Road 
where it is still located, on May 20, 1953. In 1956 the town bought a 
new truck, a GMC with a Maxim 500 gallon pump. 

On March 1, 1972 our new pumper arrived - a 
Ford chassis with a LaFrance 1250 gallon pump 
and a 750 -gallon tank at a cost of $40,000. The 
truck was equipped with a resuscitator paid for 
by the Women's Auxiliary.  The Department now 
had 31 call men, a red network telephone line, 
and monitors. Many people in town still remem-
ber the RED telephone network that was used to 
call in a fire and the fire siren that would ring 
from the tower of the station calling firefighters 
to the station.   

A new pumper was purchased for the depart-
ment in 1988 and a 1988 GMC tanker was added 
to the department in 1992. 
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5 HP motor, Engine 41 – 1988 GMC Brigadier 1000 gallon pumper, Engine 42 – 2002 Freightliner 1000 
gallon pumper, Engine 44 - a 1988 GMC 1800 gallon tanker, Engine 45 - a 1997 utility truck, Engine 43 - 
a 1977 forestry truck and # 43-B a 2006 Kubota 900 RTV used for woods fires and as a rescue unit. 

 

In 1991 the Junior Firefighter Program was established with eight members. In 1996 three of the 
original juniors were promoted to 
the ranks of regular firefighters and 
remain active on the department. 

Albert Cummings served as chief of 
the fire department from 1946 to 
1966; Herman Knowles took over 
the position of chief in 1967 
serving in that capacity until 1985 
when Rance Knowles took on the 
position.  Rance served as chief 
until 1997.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Allen Hewey was 
elected to the position of 
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Chief in 1997 and is currently chief of the Manchester Fire Department.  Chief Hewey has 4 children 
currently serving on the department, Caleb, Derek, Jennifer and Brad. 

 

Deputy Chief Ron Newton has been a member of the Manchester Fire Department since 1961.  He has 
served under four chiefs and as Deputy Chief for three of them. 

 

Assistant Chief Warren Knowles has been a member of the Manchester Fire Department since 1974 
and has served as Assistant Chief under the last two chiefs. 

 

Battalion Chief Clarence “Bug” Cram has been a member since 1979 and has served as Senior Captain 
and Battalion Chief for the past nine years. 

From Left to right; Battalion Chief Clarence “Bug” Cram, Deputy Chief Ron Newton, Assistant Chief 
Warren Knowles and Chief Allen Hewey. 
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 Individuals  that  also have a long history of serving the town on the fire  department.  
 

Individuals  that have longevity on the department (most 20 years or more)  
David Worthing, Harold Jones, Bob Morin and Greg Hall. 

Everett Gammon has 
been a member of the 

Manchester Fire  
Department since 1966 

Don Smith   
Since  1969 

Brian Jackson   
Since 1971  

Bob Gasper   

Dave Worthing    Greg Hall Harold Jones 
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The department is also 
proud to have the fol-
lowing as members: 
Dan Ackerley, Joshua 
Black, John Black, Dave 
Dodge, Chris Firlotte, 
Joshua Hall, Mike Heik-
kinen, Brad Hewey, 
Caleb Hewey, Derek 
Hewey, Jennifer Hewey, 
Ray Goodrich, Darren 
Knowles, Ryan McLeod, 
Don McLeod, Shane 
Morrow, Nyssa Robin-
son, Robin Robinson, 
Travor Robinson and 
Larry Smith.. 

 

 

Chief Rance Knowles served the department for 35 years, retiring af-
ter 10 years as chief in June 1997.  Though even after retirement he 
was called on for his knowledge and advice. Joanne Knowles put 
many hours into the leadership and organization of the Manchester 
Auxiliary, raising money to fund needs for the department, holding 
suppers for fire victims and with organizing the water and food for 
the firefighters during fire calls. The fire station kitchen has been 
dedicated to Rance and Joanne for the many hours spent there serv-
ing up public suppers and keeping the firefighters hydrated and fed 
during calls. 
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During the ice storm of 1998 the members of the fire department and the auxiliary were instrumental 
in feeding many folks who did not have electricity. The fire house was full of activity for better than 
two weeks as firemen, auxiliary members, families and volunteers prepared and served about 1500 
meals for the towns people. Meals were taken in to those who could not get out due to illness or age.  

Door to door checks were made on the elderly and housebound offering food, water or blankets.  The 
department responded to more than 400 calls during this period.  

 

The Manchester Fire Department celebrated its 60th Anniversary in October 2006 with a pancake 
breakfast, a parade and fire man’s muster.  Manchester’s Finest placed first in all three categories of 
the muster. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Manchester Fire Department has come a long way 
since that meeting in 1946.  Through the generous 
donations of many residents, fund raisers by the Auxil-
iary, grants and support of the tax payers we now have 
a Thermal Imaging Camera, carbon monoxide detec-
tor, heat  sensor, a RTV for response to woods fires, a 
boat and motor for water rescue and island fires. The 
first portable pump and resuscitator acquired by the 
department is on display at the department. 

Though we have grown and expanded the mission re-
mains the same:  To meet the challenge of the pre-
sent and future community needs and protect life and 
property from fire and other emergencies. 
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Charter members still available to share the history of the department from left to right are;  
Carl Whitman Jr., Charles Hippler, Jr., and Lionel Gilbert  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We 
thank them for their many years of dedication and their contribution to this article. 
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Firemen's Prayer 
When I am called to duty, God 

Wherever flames may rage 
Give me strength to save a life 

Whatever be its age. 
 

Let me embrace a little child 
Before it is too late 

Or save an older person from 
The horror of that fate. 

 
Enable me to be alert 

And hear the weakest shout, 
and quickly and efficiently 

To put the fire out. 
 

I want to fill my calling 
To give the best in me, 

To guard my friend and neighbor 
And protect their property. 

 
And, if, according to your will, 

I have to lose my life, 
Please bless, with your protecting hand, 

My family and my wife. 
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July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 

 
2008 FY Town Meeting  Warrant Articles 
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Town Meeting:  Thursday, June 14, 2007 

 
 
 

2006  

Town Report 
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 Manchester, Maine, settled in 1775, became a town in 1850.  It was made 
up of parts of five towns-Augusta, Readfield, Hallowell, Litchfield, and 

Winthrop.  It was first called Kennebec, but finding that their mail often 
went to Kennebunk, Maine, the townspeople decided in 1854 to change the 

name to Manchester. 

 

The central part of town was first known as Hallowell Cross Roads, 
Manchester Cross Roads, Manchester Forks, and finally simply The Forks, a 

fitting name, since seven roads meet here:  Winthrop Road, Pond Road, 
Kerns Hill Road, Hallowell Road, Augusta Road, Puddledock Road, and 

Readfield Road. 

 

*Currently in Manchester, roads maintained are 34.92 miles 
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Town Office Hours 
Monday— 8 a.m. — 4 p.m. 

Tuesday—8 a.m.— 6 p.m. 

Wednesday— 8 a.m.— Noon 

Thursday—8 a.m.— 4 p.m. 

Friday— 8 a.m.— 2 p.m. 

The Office observes all State Holidays 
 

Check out our website at:  www.manchester.govoffice2.com 

Manchester Town Office 
Po Box 18, 12 Readfield Road 

Manchester, Maine  04351 

Tel: (207) 622-1894 
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Town Office Staff 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Appointed Officials 

 
 

 

 

Town Manager Mark Doyon 

Town Clerk/Voter Registrar Marilyn Palmer 

Treasurer/Tax Collector/GA Administrator Darlene Beaulieu 

Deputy Clerk/Webmaster Tina Cagle 

Assessors Agent Charles (Chuck) Jordan 

Assessors Assistant/Deputy Treasurer/Tax Collector/Planning Board Lisa Frost 

CEO/Plumbing & Health Inspector E. Patrick Gilbert 

Alternate CEO/Plumbing Inspector Steve Ochmanski 

Road Commissioner Mark Doyon 622-1894 

Fire Chief/Fire Warden/Emergency Preparedness Director Allan Hewey 622-3243 

Animal Control Officer Craig Whitten 623-8140 

287-5227 (c) 

Animal Damage Control (Specializes in trapping small wild 
animals.  A fee is charged. 

Fred Turner 582-2633 
215-3441 (c) 

Dam Keeper David Dodge  

Assistant Dam Keepers Charles Hippler III &  

Cemetery Sexton Audrey Irish 622-0158 

Surveyor of Lumber Steve Elliott  
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School Board Members 

Linda Dodd, Chair ············································· Term Expires, 2008 

Sharlene Adams················································ Term Expires, 2009 

Joseph Ditre’ ····················································· Term Expires, 2008 

Doug Ide··························································· Term Expires, 2009 

                                        Sharon Miller …………………………………..Term Expires 2007 resigned  2-25-2007 

                Michael Parent································· filled Sharon Miller’s unexpired term  
                                                                          

Board of Selectmen 

Terri T. Watson, Chair········································ Term Expires, 2009 

Maynard E. Whitten, Vice Chair························· Term Expires, 2007 

Elaine E. Fuller··················································· Term Expires, 2008 

Donald J. McLeod·············································· Term Expires, 2007 

Jeremy A. Pare··················································· Term Expires, 2009 

Sanitary District 

Robert Gasper, Chair········································· Term Expires, 2008 

                  Peter Dunn····································· Term Expires, 2007 resigned 1-10-2007 

                                       Fletcher, Clifton ………………....................……..filled Peter Dunn’s unexpired term  

Warren Foster···················································· Term Expires, 2009 

Scott Lyon·························································· Term Expires, 2007 

James Nevins ···················································· Term Expires, 2009 

Elected Officials 
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Valuations and Assessments  

for Tax Year Ending 

June 30, 2006 

Assessments  

1.  First Park 19,537 

2.  County Tax 240,933 

3.  Municipal Appropriations 1,120,203 

4.  Manchester/Maranacook School  Appropriations 3,359,163 

5.  Cobbossee Watershed 18,171 

6.  Overlay (Not to exceed 5% of Net Assessment) 54,787 

Total Assessment $4,812,794 

  

Less Allowable Deductions:  

7.  State Municipal Revenue Sharing 190,492 

8.  Homestead Reimbursement 67,978 

9.  Other Revenue 1,518,741 

Total Deductions $1,777,211 

Net Assessment $3,035,583 
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BOARD OF SELECTMEN  REPORT 

Dear Manchester residents: 

This year, once again, we want to thank the town office personnel and all of the people in the community who 
have volunteered their time and services on behalf of the town.  We have had a busy year and our accomplish-
ments are evident as you will discover if you attend the Annual Town Meeting on June 14, 2007, at 6:30 p.m.   

This year we have several ordinances for your consideration, the result of considerable efforts by the Planning 
Board, the Architectural Standards Committee, the Cemetery Committee, and the Conservation Commission.  
Copies of the proposed ordinances can be obtained at the Town office and on the Town web site.  We also are 
proposing considerable road repair and maintenance this year, to bring town roads to a safe condition with 
more affordable maintenance expected in years to come.  We are asking that the town set aside funds, once 
again, for extensive repair of the Cobbossee dam within the next 10 years.  Other expenditures include money 
for consulting services to evaluate town buildings and  possible renovations for accommodating future needs, 
particularly of the fire department .  We are making an effort to plan for the future now and the more participa-
tion by residents at Town Meeting, the better! 

This year we have also continued to work with surrounding communities in efforts to share services and save 
tax dollars.  One particularly exciting result of this collaboration is a recent grant award to area towns of 
$100,000.  I want to thank Mark Doyon, our town manager, for his diligent participation in this effort.      

The Board of Selectmen have worked this year on providing you with a budget for consideration that looks to 
the future, yet keeps the mil rate down.  You are invited and encouraged to participate in the Annual Town 
Meeting.  We look forward to seeing you there, answering your questions, and celebrating a sense of commu-
nity.   

Respectfully submitted, 

Terri Watson, Chairman  
Maynard Whitten, Vice Chairman 
Elaine Fuller 
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TOWN MANAGER 

Dear Manchester Residents, 
 

I am pleased to write some of my thoughts, town accomplish-
ments and my hopes for the future for this annual town report.  
This report, taken as a whole, will give the reader an overview 
of the major events that have transpired over the past fiscal year 
and a glimpse towards the future. 
 
First, choosing an individual or a group of individuals to honor 
by dedicating the annual town report is always a difficult job. 
When discussing with others the nomination of the many indi-
viduals and groups worthy of this recognition, one name kept 
coming up. It is indeed a privilege to announce that the 2007 
Annual  
Report is dedicated to the Manchester Fire Department. As you 

will read, this covers many individuals, from the very beginning all the way to the present. The first section of 
this report reflect s our attempt to capture the history, honor and rich tradition of the men and women who 
served and continue to serve on the Manchester Fire Department. This year the department celebrated its  
60th anniversary. We are extremely grateful for their personal sacrifices and loyalty to the Town of Manchester 
and its citizens. 
 
There are many other people who help make our community successful. And I want to apologize in advance 
to those I may inadvertently omit.  First, to my wife Sue and our kids Zac and Ethan. I am deeply grateful for 
your love, support and your understanding of the amount of time necessary to serve the people of the com-
munity we live in. You are my anchors. 
 
To the Board of Selectmen, you have provided the leadership and careful deliberation of the many issues that 
we face. Your insight, encouragement and willingness to seek collaborative efforts are indispensable. And 
your collective thoughts and guidance are very much appreciated. 
 
My sincere admiration and appreciation are extended to the town’s employees:  Darlene Beaulieu, Tina Cagle, 
Lisa Frost, E. Patrick (Pat) Gilbert, Chuck Jordan and Marilyn Palmer who succeed in a fast paced and often  
hectic environment with ease and humor. You never fail to amaze me with your dedication to each other and 
to our community. You are the magic that makes the difficult look easy. I am proud to be part of this team. 
And I also want to welcome Pat as our new CEO/LPI. He joined our office in January after the resignation of 
Gary Quintal. Pat brings over 20 years of municipal experience to us and he will be a welcomed addition to 
the  
community. 
 
My deep respect and appreciation to the individuals who volunteer on Manchester’s boards, commissions 
and committees and the other individuals who volunteer in the community. You spend countless hours shap-
ing the present and designing the future of our great community.  Without you, our way of life and running 
this town would be impossible. 
 

But ultimately it will be you, the citizens and readers of this annual report who will judge whether or not we 
are successful. And I urge all of you to be active participants in shaping the days and the tomorrows ahead. 
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Vote, volunteer to serve on a committee, speak up and ask questions. It is only through involvement that we  
can actively participate in the outcome. 
 
As you read the departmental reports, you will find that the Town of Manchester is working on or it has  
completed many projects during the past year. Some of the highlights include the completion of a town wide 
revaluation, major road work on Worthing and Kerns Hill Roads, establishment of a Conservation Commission, 
a thorough review of providing emergency medical services for the town and hiring a new external auditing 
firm. We are pleased to be working with R.H.R. Smith & Associates. 
 
Items on the horizon include economic development; solving the limited amount of storage in town owned 
buildings, major repairs to the Cobbossee Outlet Dam and maintaining our infrastructure.  Balancing these 
needs along with the requirement to control tax increases or enhance revenues can be difficult.  Some may 
say impossible. As a mechanism to meet these challengers, the town will be exploring the creation of Pine 
Trees Zones in the community. The benefits of this include: corporate income tax credits, employment tax 
increment financing, insurance premium tax credits along with sales and use tax exemptions. Pine Tree Zones 
are designed to encourage business to operate in targeted areas, attract new businesses and create good 
jobs. I have spoken with several business people, both local and “from away” who are very interested in fur-
ther discussion regarding this possibility. 
 
However, many national, state and local challenges remain ahead of us. Uncertainties about national affairs, 
school consolidation, tax reform, and local spending limitations affect all of us. To paraphrase the words of 
John F. Kennedy, “Change is coming – change will be peaceful if we are wise enough; compassionate if we 
care enough; successful if we are fortunate enough - but change is coming whether we will it or not. We can 
affect its character, we cannot alter its inevitability”. Let us begin the work. Because it is with a little faith and 
by working together that we will be successful. 
 
As always, I welcome your suggestions and comments on dealing with the situations our community faces 
daily. Please call me, email me directly at mantownmgr@adelphia.net or stop by the town office and bend my 
ear for a while.  The lights are on, the people are friendly and the door is always open. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mark R. Doyon 
Town Manager 
May 2007 
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PLANNING BOARD REPORT 

Planning Board Members from left to right: 

Todd Mattson,  Charles  Hippler, Jr.,  Lionel Gilbert,  Chairman Fred Snow,  Ronald Lachapelle,  

Leon Strout and  Tom Milliken  

 

Development activity involving reconstruction and/or expansion was high in the Shoreland District (SD). Per-
mits, which were issued following Planning Board review include: 

 

Applicant Permit Use 
 
Allen Butterfield Conditional Use Removal/Expansion (SD) 
Jaqui Byron Conditional Use 3 Lot Subdivision 
Bryan Carlson Conditional Use Amend. Subdiv. Lot Alteration 
William Cunningham Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Nelson Gosline Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Christine Kipp Conditional Use Amend. Removal/Expansion (SD) 
William Laubenstein Conditional Use Removal/Replacement (SD) 
Gary Letourneau Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Malcolm Lyons Conditional Use Combined Lots 
Maine Dental Assoc. Conditional Use Amend. Expansion 
William Petheridge Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Mark Plummer Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Robert Ray Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
Norman Rollins Conditional Use Removal/Replacement (SD) 
Michael Starn Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
T’s Golf Conditional Use Amend. Accessory Structure 
Warren Winslow Conditional Use Expansion (SD) 
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The Board has spent considerable time proceeding through site plan review process regarding a proposed 
150 foot tower by MCF Communications on Pelton Hill near Western Avenue. What on its face seems to be a 
simple decision is actually the most complicated project the Board has faced. The Board must not only con-
sider the tower in terms of the Town’s ordinance but also in terms of the Federal Telecommunications Act 
which can trump a local ordinance if its determined that “service has been prohibited.” Our comprehensive 
ordinance section on “Wireless Telecommunication Facilities” allows towers no higher than 10 feet above av-
erage tree canopy height within 150 feet of the tower and requires a dense buffer of trees to screen the 
tower. Our ordinance was challenged by the applicant at the outset stating in a legal memo that not approv-
ing this tower would “prohibit service” and be in violation of the Federal Telecommunications Act. 

 

In response the Board attended a “Cell Tower Teleconference” and followed up with a workshop of its own, 
reviewing case law about towers. Under advisement from what the Board learned from the teleconference 
the Board hired an independent consultant, Broadcast Signal Lab, at the applicant’s expense which is permit-
ted by our ordinance to evaluate whether alternative towers meeting our ordinance requirements at alterna-
tive sites would fill the coverage gap and not “prohibit service.”  The Board has been thorough throughout 
the site inventory and environmental assessment phase and the application phase regarding this proposal.  
The board chose a deliberative approach, rather than a hasty approach, concerning the proposed tower . 

 

The Planning Board meets the first and third Tuesday of each month and all meetings are open the public. 
The Board appreciates the valuable assistance of Planning Board secretary Lisa Frost and CEO Pat Gilbert. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Fred Snow, Chairman 
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TOWN CLERK 
Dear Manchester Residents,  

It’s that time of year again to update you on what’s 
new.  I have been busy attending workshops, which 
keeps me up to date on  any new changes pertaining to 
my job.  Many workshops have been with our new State 
of Maine’s Central Voter Registration (CVR) system.  This 
system allows access to State-wide voter information.  It 
enables municipalities to process and track absentee 
ballots and voter history more efficiently.  In addition to 
CVR, the Accessible Voting System (AVS) will be available 
at our polling place for those individuals with a wide 
range of disabilities who wish to cast their ballots using a 
telephone and fax combination.  When arriving at the polling place, the voter 
may request to vote by phone.  The poll worker will use the designated 

phone to call the central system, enter the appropriate access codes, and give the phone to the voter.  
 Note:  Anyone wishing to use this  may.   
 

For those residents who inquire about our son, I would like to let you know that 
he left May 17, 2007 , from Ft. Stewart, GA, for his 2nd tour to Iraq.  A week 
before leaving he was promoted to sergeant.  We are very proud of him.  His 
military occupational specialty is a forward observer for artillery.  He is a gunner 
on a BFIST which is a forward observer’s Bradley Assault Vehicle.  It is our 
understanding that he will be there for 15 months.  He will be thought of often 
during this time of concern, along with other servicemen, and will be in our 
prayers for a safe tour of duty.   
 
 

  
I would like to say thank you to my deputy clerk Tina Cagle for all that she 
does to help me when needed.  Thanks to my election clerks for working 
the elections and Darlene Beaulieu who fills in as moderator for town 
elections.  I couldn’t do it without you all and last but not least Town 
Manager Mark Doyon for all your support and help in the work I do.   
 
I wish you all a fun filled  and safe summer!  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Marilyn Palmer/Town Clerk 
Registrar of Voters/IF&W Agent 
mantnclerk@adelphia.net 

Office Mascot 
“Haley” 

Sgt. Palmer, 

Deputy Clerk/Webmaster 
Administrative Assistant 
manad-
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July 1, 2005 - June 30, 2006       

 MARRIAGES  

Gregory Yates Blaisdell Raqndi Jane Titherington July 01, 2005 

Kristopher Glenn Sellman Danielle Marie Norwood July 17, 2005 

Terry Urban Worcester Erica Lynn Joy July 19, 2005 

Jared Woodward Poor Megan Colmes Davis August 20, 2005 

Derrick Luthan Crosby Tiana Chaunte Frederickson Augusta 27, 2005 

Gary Phillip Gilbert Lisa Marie Gorneau September 24, 2005 

Carl D. Adams Sharlene-Lynn M. Dugal November 27, 2005 

Charles Robert Euber Amanda Lynn Lucas May 06, 2006 

Dale Everett Demer Elaine Katherine Tompson May 24, 2006 

   
BIRTHS  DEATHS 

Tyler Murphy Smith March 24, 2005 Teresa E. Bush August 27, 2005 

Gabrielle Lorraine White March 25, 2005 Cecile M. Callahan September 8, 2005 

Gwyneth Harmony Sellman July 12, 2005 Rae Francina Hallett November 1, 2005 

Matthew Thomas McGillicuddy July 21, 2005 Marie S. Twitchell November 6, 2005 

Matthew Daniel Beck August 1, 2005 James Walter Safford November 11, 2005 

Anneleise Hope Rollins August 16, 2005 Philip Erwin Tribou November 17, 2005 

Jacie Amber-May Haskell August 25, 2005 Arthur F. R. Cook January 1, 2006 

Reece Michael Blais September 2, 2005 Thelma C. Shorey February 2, 2006 

Aleiya Mae Johnson September 5, 2005 Merton Rufus Gardiner February 4, 2006 

Hayden Elizabeth Freeman September 27, 2005 Lyle C. Kenney March 22, 2006 

McKenzie Taylor Wormell November 3, 2005 

Kennedy Miah Austin December 1, 2005 ATV’s—87 Snowmobiles—155 

Abigail Reese Allen January 4, 2006 Boats—342 Milfoil’s—334 

Jenna Alice Magee January 12, 2006 Hunting /Fishing—473  

Charlotte Anne Coreau January 17, 2006   

Jenna Marguerite Ruth March 15, 2006 Dogs (Spayed/Neutered) - Dogs (Male/Female) - 43 

Silas Francis Moss Bartol April 4, 2006   

Bridget Rae Bickford April 27, 2006 Registered Voters—Total 2331  

Dennis Jack Bertram Ruffing May 29, 2006 Democratic—661 Green/Independent—57 

Andrew John Ferguson June 6, 2006 Republican—842 Unenrolled—771 

Kelsey Kendra Ross June 11, 2006   

Claire Elizabeth Dwyer June 19, 2006   

*************************************************** 

Clerk Statistics 
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Dear Manchester Residents, 

 

Welcome back to those who have returned to Manchester for the summer!  Another fiscal year has gone 
by! 

Coming soon, the town will be offering a new service for vehicle registrations.  We will be able to register 
vehicles up to 26,000 pounds, process transit plates and issue special registration certificates.  We are 
hoping to have this in effect by July 1, 2007.  Please check our website as to exactly when this service will 

be available. 
We have worked out a system to remind those whose vehicle regis-
tration is due to expire.  Tina Cagle, Web Master has been emailing 
individuals who have requested a reminder.  She can also tell you 
the cost of that re-registration in the email.  If you would like to be 
reminded of your vehicle  expiration, please contact Tina at 
www.manchester.govoffice2.com. 

I have applied to the Maine Municipal Treasurer/Tax Collectors Asso-
ciation for my certification.  I have been approved to receive my cer-
tification as Treasurer/Tax Collector, I will be receiving my certificate 
in May 2007 at the Treasurers/Tax Collectors Convention. 

The collection rate of taxes has been holding still at 98%.  I continue to keep this process in the time 
frame mandated by Maine State Statues. 

I have also attended workshops for the General Assistance Program.  I have submitted my membership to 
the Maine Municipal General Assistance Association.  By doing so,  I will be added to the list serve so 
members can compare notes on the application process if questions arise, as well as attending work-
shops for processing these application request for assistance. 

At this time, I would like to take the opportunity to thank Lisa Frost, Deputy Treasurer/Tax Collector for her 
dedication and support throughout the year.  To Tina Cagle, Deputy Town Clerk thank you for all the little 
extras you do for me.  I truly appreciate all the assistance that you both have provided me. To the rest of 
the office staff, it is great pleasure to be part of your team.  You are a unique group. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Darlene Beaulieu 
Treasurer/Tax Collector/BMV Agent/GA Administrator 

TREASURER/TAX COLLECTOR 
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REPORT OF THE ASSESSING DEPARTMENT 

 

The Assessing Department is charged with the responsibility of evaluating, listing and valuing all property 
within the town.  We maintain tax maps, track all property ownership, review all building permits, administer 
State current use programs (tree growth, farm and open space) and determine eligibility for homestead, 
veterans and blind exemptions. 

 

We are very excited to offer many assessing services on our town website 
including: 
• various forms and publications,  
• valuation listings,  
• a database with zoning, acreage and building square foot living area 

sorted by map and lot 
• town tax maps 
• floodplain maps,  
• a link to Maine Revenue Service’s website,  
• Land Use Ordinance, and  
• E911 Addressing Ordinance.   

 

Please be sure to check it out at www.manchester.govoffice2.com. 

 

There may be some concern from new residents when the new tax bills are sent out as to why their tax re-
cord is still under the former owner’s name with their name listed as “care of.”  For new owners since 
4/1/07, records will list ownership as “care of” their name until 4/1/08 when the prior owner’s name will be 
removed.  If you wish to check your account, please feel free to call the Assessing Department. 

 

We thank those new property owners who took the time to complete the sales study questionnaire that was 
part of the welcome packet.  This information gives us a better understanding of sales activity in town and is 
very valuable to us.  We appreciate your time. 

 

We would like to remind residents about the following TAX RELIEF PROGRAMS: 

 

If you’re a legal resident of the State of Maine, owned homestead property in Maine for at least the past 12 
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months and you declare your Manchester homestead as your permanent place of residence and the only 
property for which you have claimed a homestead exemption, you may qualify for a Homestead Exemption 
of $13,000. The Homestead Exemption carries over from year to year until there is a change in property 
ownership.  Therefore, you need not reapply every year.  

 

If you are a veteran, or a widow of a veteran, who is or would be 62 years of age or 100% disabled, you 
may be eligible for a Veteran’s or Veteran’s Widow Exemption.   

 

Applications for the above exemptions must be filed by April 1st in the year for which you are seek-
ing the exemption. 

 

Please take a moment to investigate the Maine Residents Property Tax and Rent Refund program.  The last 
filing deadline for the program was May 31, 2007.  More information will be available soon for next year’s 
program. Visit our website or Maine Revenue Services at   www.maine.gov/revenue. 

 
Lastly, we urge all residents to post your street numbers according to the E911 Addressing Ordinance.   
Every second counts during a response to a fire, health or safety call.   If a number is not posted, emer-
gency services may take additional time locating the residence/business.  Listed below are guidelines to 
help assist you:   

 
A structure/residence within 50 (fifty) feet of the edge of the road right-of-way must display the assigned 
street number on the residence in a conspicuous and visible location. 

A residence/structure over 50 (fifty) feet from the edge of the road right-of-way must 
display the assigned street number next to the walk or access drive to the residence/
structure on a post, fence, wall, mailbox or other structure at the property line. 

Numbers should be a minimum of 3 (three) inches in height. 

As always, the goal of this department is to treat all taxpayers fairly and equitably.  If 
you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact us. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Charles A. Jordan, CMA 
Assessors’ Agent 
 
Lisa Frost 
Assistant to the Assessors’ Agent 
E911 Addressing Officer 
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CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 
 

Codes are sometimes viewed as "all the things you can’t do." But their pur-
pose is actually to promote quality of life and ensure the safety of construc-
tion activities. Code Enforcement helps protect property values by ensuring 
that development meets the zoning and land use regulations adopted by 
the Town. These codes prohibit activities that would disrupt or change the 
nature of neighborhoods, and promote public health by prohibiting the ac-
cumulation of debris and requiring that construction meet certain stan-
dards. 

It has been my pleasure to serve the Town of Manchester since the first of 
January 2007.  I would like to thank the Board of  Selectmen, the Planning 
Board, Town Manager and the Staff at the Town Office for giving me the 
opportunity to work in this community. 

This following report reflects activities that cover the calendar year (Jan. thru 
Dec.) 2006 for the Office of Code Enforcement. 

 Accessory Structures.................................................................. 10 
 Commercial Buildings................................................................ 2 
 Commercial Renovations........................................................... 3 
 Demolitions ............................................................................... 2 
 External Plumbing Permits 
 Fill/Earth Moving........................................................................  11 
 Garages (Residential) ................................................................ 12 
 Mobile Homes...........................................................................  2 
 Interior Plumbing 
 Residential Additions................................................................. 12 
 Residential Renovations ............................................................  15 
 Land Permitted as Gravel pits....................................................  7 
 Pools – Walks –Floats ................................................................  7 
 Paving – Driveways.................................................................... 17 
 Seasonal Conversions................................................................ 2 
 Residential Buildings ................................................................. 10 
 Signs .......................................................................................... 4 
 Timber Harvesting .....................................................................  1 
 Home Occupations.................................................................... 1 
 
Keep in mind if you are planning any construction projects, or paving a private driveway, they require re-
view by the CEO.  If your project is over $1,000 including labor there will be a charge under the town’s fee 
schedule. 

Please feel free to stop by and discuss issues related to the Town’s Ordinances as a whole or as it relates 
to your property. My role in this community is to advise property owners with regards to property rights 
based on the current regulations which the Town of Manchester has approved. 

Respectfully submitted,  

 
Patrick Gilbert, CEO 
manceo@adephia.net 
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MANCHESTER ROAD COMMITTEE 
 

During the 2006 year, the Road Committee reviewed and recommended a series of projects to the 
Selectmen for completion.  The Committee conducted a review process that prioritized projects and 
estimates costs of completion.  There always have been more projects that could be done than there 
is money to do them.  Nonetheless, the Committee believes that the most important projects were 
completed. 

 

Each year the Committee has tried to accomplish at least one large project in addition to other 
maintenance projects.  This last year we completely rebuilt a third of a mile of the east end of the 
Kern’s Hill Road.  The large culvert on Prescott Road near the Cram Road had a heavy gauge plastic 
liner installed.  This allowed us to economically extend the life of the culvert crossing without having 
to excavate and replace the metal culvert.  Significant maintenance was performed on Lyons Road, 
Worthing Road and Meadow Hill Road. 

 

During the 2007/2008 fiscal year we are planning to perform maintenance on the west end of the 
Kern’s Hill Road, Foye Road, Fifield Road, Sylvester Drive and Mt. Vernon Road.  In addition, we hope 
to pave two to three miles of road along with the Town Office and Fire Department parking lots. 

 

The Committee would like to thank the Selectmen for their support of our project analysis process and 
thank the citizens for the financial support necessary to keep Manchester roads in reasonable 
condition.  If you have issues you would like considered, please contact any of the Road Committee 
members below. 

 

Robert Gasper, Chairman Brian Sylvester 

Warren Foster Scott Lyon 

James Nevins Harold Wood 

Chip Edgecomb Maynard Whitten 

 

 

Road Commissioner; Mark R. Doyon 
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MANCHESTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

Dear Manchester Residents, 

I am pleased to report that we are coming to the close of another successful year at Manchester Elementary 
School.  Our students and staff continue to thrive within a climate that is positive, productive and conducive to 
excellent learning opportunities. The constant support of our parents and community members works to enhance 
all of our program offerings, which certainly makes our school so unique and special.  Of course, most of you 
know this as you have experienced this with your own children.  However, a new generation of parents and 
students are being exposed to our school for the first time and the level of satisfaction with our efforts continues 
to be articulated.  We do have the BEST teaching and support staff in all of Maine and that certainly works to help 
maintain the level of excellence we have all become used to over the years.  Many of us have been in this school 
for many years and that fact alone demonstrates the commitment and dedication that the staff has for the children 
of Manchester.  In addition, it demonstrates that people love to work here and don’t want to leave!  This is the 
most telling statement about an effective school. 

As we look to next year, of course the most important issue that we face is school consolidation.  As you all know, 
this has been a topic of great interest to all the citizens of Maine.  What will our district look like?  Who will be our 
Superintendent? How will individual towns advocate for their children?  These are just a few of the questions that 
are swirling around all of us as we come to grips with this issue.  I certainly hope that whatever happens, our 
school will continue to be able to provide the wonderful learning opportunities that we have all come to expect.  
Though dealing with property tax burdens and state budget issues is certainly important, we cannot lose sight of 
the fact that our children are our future and we must be willing to prepare them well for the global community 
they will all face. 

Thanks to your constant support of ongoing capital improvement projects, our facility is in great shape.  We will 
complete a roof restoration project this summer over the flat roof above the 5th grade wing.  This particular section 
of the roof has a rubber membrane and must be restored every 15 years or so to maintain its integrity.  Once this 
project is complete, I do not expect any issues with any sections of our roof in the foreseeable future.  Regular 
maintenance and repairs will also take place this summer to keep our facility top notch.  Many who visit our school 
report on the cleanliness and fine condition.  This is mostly due to the extraordinary job that our custodians, Curt 
Williams and Craig Dunn, do on a daily basis to maintain our facility. 

In closing, I thank you again for being an integral part of our school community.  With your support, we will 
continue to excel and can be proud of the efforts we do in preparing our students for future learning. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Rick Wilson, Principal 
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CSD #10 

To the Citizens of the Town of Manchester: 

 

Welcome and thank you for your continued support of the Manchester Elementary School and 
Maranacook Community Middle and High Schools.  Once again, I am pleased to write to you to give you 
my "State of Our Schools" report.  The 2006-07 school year has been one that has seen change and 
challenge.  We continue our pride in the work that goes on in our schools and hope you will take a look 
at my report, our enrollment figures, and the budget articles contained later in this report. 

Our local news media have worked closely with us over this year to highlight the many wonderful 
activities and accomplishments of our schools.  We have also spent considerable time helping them as 
they have written articles about our functioning as a Union School District and the difficult financial times 
we continue to face.  It has been our hope and continues to be our dream to communicate effectively 
with all of our constituents throughout the year.  A survey completed on-line this year seemed to indicate 
that we do a good job with our communications.  Our goal is to continue these efforts. 

Governor John Baldacci, in his inaugural address, announced that Maine's 250+ school systems would be 
consolidated eliminating superintendents, Central Office personnel, and Central Offices.  The 
consolidation plan called for a 26 school district structure utilizing our Vocational Center Regions as the 
template for these districts.  The 26 school districts would be staffed by one superintendent, one regional 
school board, and one Central Office. 

Union #42/CSD #10 has been meeting with the town officials from Winthrop, Fayette, Wayne, Readfield, 
Manchester, Belgrade, and Mt. Vernon for the past 5 years.  Several regional grant proposals have been 
submitted to continue the work that began 3 years ago under a Maine Office of Planning grant.  These 
"consolidation" meetings have yielded many positive benefits for the school district, as well as these town  
offices.  Much work has been accomplished, as well as identifying new work that will strengthen our 
efforts.  Namely, discussions are underway to consolidate public works, waste management, 
administrative services, and recreational services.  Our hope is that we can continue these efforts. 

Safety, security, and improved school climates have been the focus of our school-wide work during the 
2006-07 school year.  We have also continued our work to build a comprehensive assessment plan that 
guide teachers' work with their children.  A new and improved School Communications Plan has been 
implemented, as well as assessing how we do as a District, in keeping our "public" informed.  Our District 
website has been improved to provide a wealth of information about assignments, our staff, our schools, 
our boards, and our efforts to be a quality school district.  Please feel free to visit the site to learn more 
about our District. 

We have undertaken a comprehensive review of our "capital assets" through Mike McCormick 



 

35 

Engineering.  This database will help our Facilities Committee, the principal, and Facilities Manager to 
identify on-going maintenance and improvement efforts through our budgets.  In addition, we are hoping 
to undertake a major energy management project in all of our schools as well as our town offices.  More 
information will be presented at each Town Meeting. 

Following are the enrollment figures for your students attending Manchester Elementary School and 
Maranacook Middle and High Schools as of October 1, 2006. 

Grade  Enrollment Grade Enrollment 

K 31 6 30 

1 30 7 33 

2 33 8 37 

3 31 9 36 

4 30 10 36 

5 32 11 38 

  12 42 

 

Please feel free to let us know your thoughts about our District.  We hope to see our programs and 
services continue in these difficult times.  You may reach me at the Superintendent's Office by email, 
telephone, fax, or in person.  I look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely yours, 
 
  

 
Richard A. Abramson 
Superintendent of Schools 
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CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

 
Cemetery Sexton – Audrey Irish 

Tel # 622-0158 

 

Cemetery Committee Members: 

Mark Doyon  - Superintendent 

Elaine Fuller - Secretary 

Robert (Dusty) Gay 

Audrey Irish - Sexton 

Arlene LeBel – Vice Chair 

Marilyn Palmer – Chair 

Maynard Whitten 

 

The Committee has drafted a proposed Cemetery ordinance approved by the Board of Selectmen.  The  
ordinance will be presented for vote by the towns-people at the Annual town meeting scheduled for 
June . 
 

The Committee plans on spending time at the Forks Cemetery to reproduce a clear map of those buried.  
Our plan this spring is to clear the lot on the newly donated land at the Forks, provided by Charlie & 
Priscilla Hippler, III, and to create a driveway and structure plots as our future goal.    

 

A resident interested in purchasing an individual grave or lot, will need to contact the town Sexton first. 
Then the final purchase is done at the town office in which a certificate will be issued. 
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LONG RANGE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Dear Manchester Residents, 

 

The last year has been another busy one for the Long Range Planning Committee.  The Apple Festival 
continues to grow and be successful, and the Tree Lighting drew a big crowd this year.  Both events will 
be offered again this year, and we intend to increase our outreach to the community for more financial 
support, thereby reducing costs to the town. 

The new trails network established behind the North Manchester Meeting House in the Allen-Whitney 
Memorial Forest saw significant use this winter, with many skiers and snow-shoers taking advantage of 
the trails and the good snow conditions.  The trails are for non-motorized use, but they do share some 
space with the snowmobile club.  We thank the club for their continued cooperation and support with 
the trails.  The trail network will expand next year.  Visit the town web site for more information, or 
come check out the trails for yourself.  Our thanks go to the New England Forestry Foundation and 
Pastor Stan Moody and his congregation for their support. 

We hope you'll notice how nice the gardens and other landscaping efforts around town look.  These 
have been the work of a dedicated group of volunteers with the support of local businesses and 
community groups. 

We are once again grateful for the support of many people, local businesses, and community groups for 
the hundreds of hours of volunteer labor and thousands of dollars in donated funds and materials.  
Many thanks to all of you for your generous contributions to the Town of Manchester. 

There are a lot more great things to accomplish, and as always we can use your help and support.  
Volunteers are always welcome, and we have a wide variety of ongoing projects to suit anybody's taste.  
Please contact the town office if you'd like to help us out. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Doug Ide, Chair 
LRPC 
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CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 

Dear Manchester Residents, 

This year, the Conservation Commission continued with projects begun last year. An open-space map for 
Manchester was printed and is available at the Town Office. This full-color map shows many publicly-
owned and/or publicly-accessible places in town that allow and encourage outdoor recreation (walking, 
hiking, biking, fishing, skiing, picnicking, etc.).  Descriptions of each property and what is allowed on each 
are printed on the back side of the map.  Another publication the Conservation Commission printed this 
year is a guide to recycling in Manchester.  This bright green brochure details how we can reduce our 
solid waste going into the Hatch Hill landfill and what items can and cannot currently be recycled.  This 
brochure was provided to all trash haulers in town to be distributed to their customers and is also 
available at the town office.  The Conservation Commission has continued to be involved in other solid 
waste discussions in order to help increase opportunities for residents to recycle and reduce their solid 
waste disposal costs. We will be working with the City of Augusta as they conduct a special project on 
increasing recycling for the towns that use the Hatch Hill landfill.  We helped the Board of Selectmen with 
a proposed Solid Waste Disposal ordinance for the town that will be voted on at the June town meeting.  
Finally, the Second Annual town trash cleanup was held on April 28.  Although fewer people participated 
in the event than last  year, it was a very dedicated crew and even more trash was cleaned up from our 
town roadsides.  Thank you VERY MUCH to all who participated. Once again, Worthing Waste Systems very 
generously donated their trucks, time, and dumpsters for this event.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Martha Nielsen, Chair 
Manchester Conservation Commission 
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RECREATION COMMITTEE 

Committee Members from left to right;  
 Diane Daigle, Tammy Wilbur, Linda Smith, Chairman  Margaret Manley & Vicki Kozak 

 

The Manchester Recreation Committee wants YOU!  Are you interested in making decisions for recreation in 
our town?  Are you interested in getting to know your community and providing fun activities for children, 
young adults, adults and seniors?  We want your ideas about recreational open space areas and use.  Con-
sider joining the Recreation Committee. 

Are you interested in children’s programs?  If so, planning is underway for our very popular Summer Recrea-
tion Program for children from Kindergarten to entering Grade 6.  This half-day program not only provides 
stimulating environment for our children but provides job opportunities for the young adults in our commu-
nity.  Look for new activities that have been added to our program!  Please help us to welcome Donna Free-
man and Danielle Williams as Director and Assistant Director to our program. 

Are you interested in young adults?  If so, the Recreation Committee is currently working jointly with the 
Readfield Association in providing recreational opportunities for children in grades six to eight.  Look for up-
coming summer events. Consider volunteering for this program.  Volunteers are needed. 

Lastly, are you interested in adult and senior programming?  How about bingo, barbecues for our seniors, and 
bus tours to local shows?  If so, join the Recreation Committee and see your ideas come to light.  If you have 
a few hours a month, consider joining the Manchester Recreation Committee.  Please contact the town office. 

 

On behalf of the Town of Manchester, we wish to extend a sincere thank you to the following retiring  indi-
viduals for their commitment to youth programs in our communities.  Each person has spent more than 5 
years volunteering their time and serving in administrative roles to bring recreational opportunities to our 

youth. 

David Lachance;   Basketball Commissioner and President of the Cal Ripken Youth Baseball League 

Robin Ballard;  Manchester Youth Baseball League 

Sterling Pierce:  Manchester Youth Baseball League 

Mark Daigle:  Manchester Youth Soccer  



 

40 

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS  
COMMITTEE 

 

Dear Manchester Residents, 

Early last year the Board of Selectmen appointed a committee representative of interests concerned 
with the appearance of new commercial development along Route 202. Four of the ten-member com-
mittee own highway-dependent businesses. The committee was charged with coming up with a set of 
Architectural Standards for new commercial development in the Village District and the General Devel-
opment District to propose to the Planning Board. 

Since the committee was formed two recent developments shed light on why architectural standards 
seem more important than ever. One development was a “Grow Smart” study completed in October 
2006 by the Brookings Institute pointing out strengths, weaknesses, and courses of action needed for 
this State to prosper. One of the foremost recommendations was that: a sense of place, a connection 
with New England traditions, and a local distinctiveness need to be fostered in Maine towns to realize 
prosperity. On the other hand becoming more like Anyplace USA is moving in the wrong direction 
according to the report. The other development is that site work for Packard’s development of big box 
(and some medium box) stores behind the Kennebec Journal building is well under way. This develop-
ment is not far from Manchester. According to results from a community survey a majority are con-
cerned that such development will come to Manchester in the near future. When it does arrive will 
the appearance of new commercial buildings reflect elements of traditional New England styles 
(without dictating a particular style) or will the appearance of new commercial buildings be the same 
we’d find anywhere in the US? Will sense of place in Manchester be fostered or eroded by the design 
of such development 

The Architectural Standards Committee decided to work from the architectural standards proposed in 
2005 for several reasons: 1) the standards have been used successfully by a number of communities 
and are considered to be model standards; 2) the standards are moderate; striking a fair balance be-
tween very strict standards (such as those seen in use in Freeport) and mere architectural guidelines 
(suggestions) which are ineffective; 3) the standards are made clear by an appendix of photos con-
trasting existing Maine commercial developments that meet the standards with those which do not. 
Since the committee was formed it has held numerous meetings and worked hard reviewing the stan-
dards to determine what seems most applicable to Manchester. The committee has completed a draft 
set of recommended architectural standards, which they presented to the Planning Board and to the 
Board of Selectmen. If the Planning Board approves the standards residents will have a chance to con-
sider them at June Town Meeting.  There are copies of the committee’s recommended standards 
along with a two page summary available at the Town Office and on the Town’s website (go to  Com-
mittees, then Architectural Standards Committee, then to Proposed Architectural Standards and Pro-
posed Standards Summary). We urge Town residents to review these standards and attend June Town 
Meeting to help decide whether these standards become part of our Land Use and Development Or-
dinance. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Fred Snow, Chairman 



 

41 

MANCHESTER HEALTHY FUTURES 
 

Manchester Healthy Futures is a volunteer group of 
Manchester neighbors, part of Healthy Futures, which is 
comprised of the 8 towns west of Augusta – Manchester, 
Winthrop, Monmouth, Wayne, Readfield, Mt. Vernon, Fayette 
and Vienna – all working toward the same goals of health, 
safety, injury prevention and improved quality of life for 
ourselves, our town neighbors, and our neighbors in our 
region.  We meet five times a year on a Tuesday from 6-
7:30PM and any Manchester Resident is welcome to join us.  
Please call Annette Peabody (622-6848) or Pat Hutchinson 
(622-3506) for more information. 

Lisa Maccini, RN is our new Health Advocate and has already met many and is active in our town and 
school.  She currently is assisting roughly 50 of our neighbors & also works with Readfield, Fayette, and 
Vienna.  Karin Kroot, RN is our other new Health Advocate, serving the towns of Monmouth, Winthrop, 
Wayne and Mt. Vernon. 
 
• Our Goals for 2007 are to continue current programs,    such as the blood pressure screenings, 

bookcase information at the town hall, post office and school, and the daycare guest reading program.
(Ongoing) 

• To regularly advise the Manchester Selectmen on the activities of Manchester Healthy Futures and to 
provide a written annual report for all (available on the bookcases). (September, 2006) 

• To provide timely information for inclusion in each edition of the Manchester Messenger. (Inclusion in 
each publication to date) 

• To continue to promote indoor walking opportunities in town. (Continue to work with Longfellow’s 
Greenhouses & the YMCA) 

• To update and expand the Manchester Volunteer Nurses’ List, Volunteer Transportation List, and the 
Volunteer Daycare Guest Readers’ List (Ongoing) 

• To collaborate with other groups and activities in town and in the region, such as the Manchester 
Neighbor to Neighbor help availability identification effort, Healthy Futures group efforts in each of the 
other seven towns, the new Community Wellness Council, and the Healthy Communities of the Capitol 
Region efforts. (Ongoing) 

• To begin a Manchester Senior Citizens Initiative, seeking to identify and assess our senior neighbors’ 
awareness and use of services available to them, provide information for them on all resources 
available and provide a neighbor-to-neighbor contact within our town.  (Files of Life distribution is our 
first outreach effort). 

• Explore the issue of transportation in town. (HCCA Regional 
Conference April, 2007) 

 

Develop a brief bookmark listing of walking sites available in the 
eight Healthy Futures towns, Hallowell, Farmingdale, Gardiner and 
Augusta, that includes website references for more in depth 
information. (In process) 

Thank you for your continuing involvement in & support of your 
community & neighbors. 
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MANCHESTER  

COUNTRY RIDERS SNOWMOBILE CLUB 

Dear Residents, 

It was a long time coming, but finally we 
have ride-able snow across the state! 
Snowmobilers, ski areas, snow country 
lodging and stores etc. are breathing a 
sigh of belated relief that the white stuff is fi-
nally here! 

Last week I had the opportunity to do 
some serious sledding. The pent-up de-
mand for snow was obvious by the num-
ber of people making use of well covered 
trails. 

Snowmobiling is over a $300 million dollar business in this state.  The success of businesses such as sled 
shops, restaurants, lodging facilities and gas stations is tied in deeply to the expectation of our typical Maine 
winter. A ride up through western Maine showed that the winter bustle has returned. 

Thank you so much for again, allocating the snowmobile registration revenue you receive back to our club. As 
with many volunteer organizations, these funds go a long way when mixed with the good will of energetic 
people. Your generosity helped make possible the purchase of a complete new grooming sled and drag. We 
have also applied for a state funded equipment re-imbursement program which will refund us 20%-30% of the 
purchase price. As always, we are trying to be wise stewards of the good will bestowed on our club! 

This past fall we had our annual J & S Oil sponsored Lube-a-thon to benefit the Pine Tree Camp “those kids 
really need us!” and we had a successful and fun booth, serving food at the October Apple Festival! We were 
able to double our net proceeds to the club! 

We look forward to the rest of this winter season and to 
providing you with safe, smooth, well signed and main-
tained trails! 

Best wishes to the long range planning committee and 
others as you work to shape the texture and fabric of 
this great “Maine Small Town.” 

PS. Anyone who hasn’t had the opportunity to check out 
the Applefest in October…it’s pretty cool…everyone has 
a great time! 

Stan Tompkins 

MCR President 
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The information provided to us for our Annual Town Report was prior to the death of Abigail Holman on  April  
7, 2007.  Our condolences to her family, friends and fiancé Jeff Timm of Manchester. 

 

                                 STATE OF MAINE 

                                   HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

2 STATE HOUSE STATION 

AUGUSTA, ME 04333-0002 

(207) 287-1440 

   TTY: (207) 287-4469 

      

 

Abigail Holman 
 PO Box 392 

 Fayette, ME 04349 

 Residence: (207) 897-5303 

 E-Mail:  amholman@verizon.net 

 

February 2007 

 
Dear Friends and Neighbors: 

 
As I begin my first legislative term, I wish to thank all of my constituents in House District 83 for 
sending me to Augusta to represent your interests at the State House.  I look forward to addressing 
the challenges that lie ahead; and I hope to hear from you throughout the session as your input is 
welcomed and truly appreciated.   

 
Difficult decisions must be made and I am already tackling the issues that are of particular concern 
in our state.  I have submitted several bills designed to improve our state economy.  These bills in-
clude proposals to return our state to responsible budgeting practices, reduce our property taxes 
through support of local education, require cost savings in health care to be passed onto policy-
holders, and implement a conservation program that will preserve our working rural landscape.  The 
Maine Legislature must apply new policies to break down the longstanding challenges of finding 
prosperity in Maine so that our citizens can continue to live, work and raise a family in this great 
state. 

 
I have been assigned to the Joint Committee on Judiciary, and will serve as the ranking Republican.   
As such, I will be intimately involved in negotiations dealing with issues such as Judicial nomina-
tions, the Judicial system organization and budget; Maine Tort Claims Act; child protection; family 



 

46 

law; child support; adoption; reproductive rights; civil rights; property rights; the Maine Indian Claims 
Settlement Implementing Act; and freedom of access, confidentiality and privacy laws.  Additionally, 
I will be working on the Joint Committee on Legal and Veterans Affairs.  This committee oversees 
such matters as liquor laws; lottery; gambling; harness racing; election laws; campaign financing; 
veterans' programs; and the Maine National Guard. 

 
As the First Regular Session progresses, I encourage you to visit the Legislature’s website at http://
janus.state.me.us/house/homepage.htm for up-to-date bill status information, public hearing dates 
and roll call votes on legislation that are of interest to you.  I am in the process of posting a website 
that will provide information to you about the important issues to House District 83 – 
www.repholman.com.  Rest assured that I will work diligently on behalf of the people of Manches-
ter.   

 
Our representative form of government works best when we all get involved.  Please feel free to 
contact me whenever you have questions, thoughts or concerns you wish to share regarding state 
government.  It is an honor to be your voice at the Legislature. 

 
 
                   

                                                                                                      Sincerely, 

                                                                                     

                                                                                                  Abby Holman 

                                                                                              State Representative 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

District 83 Belgrade, Fayette, Manchester, Mount Vernon and Vienna 
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SENATOR EARLE MCCORMICK 
MAINE SENATE DISTRICT #21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL REPORT TO THE TOWN OF MANCHESTER 
 

To the Citizens of the Town of Manchester, 

 

The legislative session is well under way and I am finding the work to be exciting and enjoyable.  Nearly 2500 bills have been 
filed which amazes me.  Nevertheless, we must deal with each of them and many of them will affect our daily lives.   

 

I have been appointed to serve on the Joint Standing Committee on Criminal Justice, which will be closely involved in policy 
proposals relating to, among other things, Maine’s legal code, law enforcement, victim’s rights, county jails, habitual offenders, 
and the Maine Emergency Management Agency. 

 

As the many remaining bills come up and start to receive publicity, I hope you all will feel free to contact me with your con-
cerns and opinions.  You can reach me at my home at 724-3228, my email mccormick@prexar.com and at the Legislature at 287-
1505. 

 

It is a great honor to be able to serve you in Augusta.  I thank you for your support. 

 

Sincerely, 

  

Earle McCormick 

State Senator 

District 21 
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July 1, 2005 - June 30, 2006 Expenditures 
            

            

AMBULANCE SERVICE   

            

Appropriated Funds         $11,093.00 

            
City of Augusta         $11,093.00 

      Total Expenditures $11,093.00 

      Unexpended Balance $0.00 

            

ANIMAL CONTROL EXPENSES   

            

Appropriated Funds         $3,500.00 

            
Coast to Coast Cellular       $20.00 
CS Perfect Cards         $19.00 

Gossamer Press         $74.16 

Palmer, Marilyn         $46.09 

Payroll         $2,561.35 

Tibbetts, Christopher       $50.00 

U.S. Cellular         $212.21 

      Total Expenditures $2,982.81 

      Unexpended Balance $517.19 

            

            

APPEALS BOARD   

            

Appropriated Funds         $100.00 

            

      Total Expenditures $0.00 

      Unexpended Balance $100.00 

            

            

Appropriated Funds         $10,000.00 

            

Audette's Hardware         $25.78 

Balch Bros. & West Co., Inc.       $196.00 
Higgins Tree Service       $3,800.00 
Payroll         $184.00 
Petty Cash         $3.28 
Pumpkin Patch         $236.20 
Tibbetts, Christopher       $1,550.00 
Thomas A. Stevens          $1,725.00 
Trask, Franny         $5,350.00 
      Total Expenditures $13,070.26 
      Overdraft   -$3,070.26 
            
            
            
            
            

CEMETERY MAINTENANCE   
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Appropriated Funds         $2,750.00 
            
Approved at Selectmen's Meeting (April 25, 2006) up to $30,000.00 from undesignated funds   
          $30,000.00 
            
Audette's Hardware         $56.79 
Augusta Tool Rental         $324.00 
Commercial Divers, Inc.       $30,112.25 
Dodge, David         $1,666.21 
Gagne & Son Concrete       $116.88 
Payroll         $750.00 
      Total Expenditures $33,026.13 
      Overdraft   -$276.13 
            

COBBOSSEE WATERSHED DISTRICT   
            

Special Assessment       $18,171.00 
            
Cobbossee Watershed       $18,170.29 
      Total Expenditures $18,170.29 
      Unexpended Balance $0.71 
            

COMPUTER HARDWARE/SOFTWARE/OFFICE EQUIPMENT   
            

Appropriated Funds         $12,790.00 
            
Avenet, LLC     

    
$360.00 

Dell Gov't Leasing         $2,907.00 
Common Sense Computers       $1,972.86 
Penley, Robert         $386.05 
Pitney Bowes         $150.00 
Trio Software         $6,073.50 
Quest Network         $349.87 
Audit Entry         $958.47 
      Total Expenditures $13,157.75 
      Overdraft   -$367.75 
            

CONSERVATION COMMISSION   
            

Appropriated Funds         $4,600.00 
            
Chief-Lee Signs         $80.00 
City of Hallowell         $300.00 
Conney Safety         $618.79 
Copies Etc.         $708.96 
Hallowell Printing         $136.12 
Land Use Conservation Conference       $55.00 
Treasurer, Town of Manchester - Petty Cash     $17.37 
U.S. Postmaster         $52.56 
Worthing's Waste          $1,507.70 
      Total Expenditures $3,476.50 
      Unexpended Balance $1,123.50 
            

COBBOSSEE DAM   
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EDUCATION AND TRAINING   

            

Appropriated Funds         $4,500.00 
            
Informed Notaries of Maine       $95.00 
Konczal, Bob (Property tax course instructor)     $100.00 
MMA         $617.00 
Michaud, Cynthia (Property tax course Instructor)     $200.00 
MMTCTA         $590.00 
MTCCA         $405.00 
MTCMA         $220.00 
Petty Cash (Town Clerk meeting)       $7.00 
Trio Software         $300.00 
University of Maine         $385.00 
      Total Expenditures $2,919.00 
      Unexpended Balance $1,581.00 
            

FIRST PARK - KRDA   
            
Special Assessment       $19,537.00 
            
First Park - Kennebec Regional Development     $19,536.26 
      Total Expenditures $19,536.26 
      Unexpended Balance $0.74 
            
            

GENERAL ASSISTANCE   
            

Appropriated Funds         $2,000.00 
            
Central Maine Power       $294.00 
J & S Oil         $522.80 
      Total Expenditures $816.80 
      Unexpended Balance $1,183.20 
            

HATCH HILL SOLID WASTE FACILITY   
            

Appropriated Funds         $31,429.00 
            
City of Augusta         $31,428.76 
      Total Expenditures $31,428.76 
      Unexpended Balance $0.24 
            
            

            

Appropriated Funds         $35,880.00 
            
Augusta Water District       $35,880.00 
      Total Expenditures $35,880.00 
      Unexpended Balance $0.00 
            
            
            
            

HYDRANTS   
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Appropriated Funds         $9,680.00 
            
HUB International New England, LLC - Volunteer Insurance   $288.75 
MMA - General Liability       $11,328.00 
      Total Expenditures $11,616.75 
      Overdraft   -$1,936.75 
            

KENNEBEC COUNTY TAX   
            
Special Assessment       $240,933.00 
            
Treasurer, Kennebec County       $240,932.43 
      Total Expenditures $240,932.43 
      Unexpended Balance $0.57 
            
            
            

KENNEBEC SAVINGS BANK - DRUM PROPERTY   
            

Appropriated Funds         $13,921.00 
            
Principal         $11,843.08 
Interest         $3,840.92 
      Total Expenditures $15,684.00 
      Overdraft   -$1,763.00 
            

KENNEBEC VALLEY HUMANE SOCIETY   
        

Appropriated Funds     $3,363.00 
        
KV Humane Society     $3,401.72 
    Total Expenditures $3,401.72 
    Overdraft  -$38.72 
        

LEGAL SERVICES   
        

Appropriated Funds     $15,000.00 
        
Bernstein, Shur, Sawyer & Nelson    $500.00 
Preti, Flaherty & Beliveau    $9,120.70 
    Total Expenditures $9,620.70 
    Unexpended Balance $5,379.30 
        

LIBRARY FEE REIMBURSEMENT   
        

Appropriated Funds     $2,500.00 
        
Resident's Reimbursement    $2,326.50 
    Total Expenditures $2,326.50 
    Unexpended Balance $173.50 
         
         
        

INSURANCE   
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 LONG RANGE PLANNING COMMITTEE   
        

Appropriated Funds     $7,555.00 
        
A.A.A. Portable Toilets    $245.00 
Alyson Root     $32.70 
Bancroft Landscaping    $532.50 
Chief-Lee Signs     $615.00 
Community Advertiser    $580.25 
Copies Etc.     $77.50 
DR Struck Landscaping    $3,499.00 
Daigle, Diane     $15.80 
Lakeside Orchards     $200.00 
Longfellow's Greenhouses    $137.13 
Longhorn's Restaurant    $80.00 
McKenney Tree & Landscaping    $250.00 
Mullen, Anne-Marie     $146.19 
On Top, Inc.     $691.65 
Paris Farmers Union    $48.82 
Rockit Band     $800.00 
Rosmarin, Lisa     $50.83 
Sam's Club     $19.76 
Sherman Williams Co.    $69.29 
Stan Keach     $500.00 
The Fabric Shop     $875.00 
U.S. Postmaster     $91.02 
    Total Expenditures $9,557.44 
    Overdraft  -$1,970.44 
        

MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION   
        

Appropriated Funds     $3,075.00 
        
MMA - Dues     $2,831.00 
    Total Expenditures $2,831.00 
    Unexpended Balance $244.00 
         

MANCHESTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL   
         

Appropriated Funds      $1,808,044.00 
         
Carry Forward      $65,000.00 
Expenditures      $1,874,386.35 
    Total Expenditures $1,874,386.35 
    Overdraft  -$1,249.63 
         

         

Appropriated Funds      $1,000.00 
         
Boy Scout Troop #622     $500.00 
Maranacook Youth Football     $500.00 
    Total Expenditures $1,000.00 
         
         

MANCHESTER ORGANIZATIONS   
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 MARANACOOK COMMUNITY SCHOOL - CSD#10   
         

Appropriated Funds      $1,551,119.00 

         
Expenditures      $1,551,120.00 

    Total Expenditures $1,551,120.00 
    Overdraft  -$1.00 

         
MANCHESTER COUNTRY RIDERS   

         
Registrations      $1,426.00 

Expenditures      $1,426.00 
       $0.00 

         
OPERATING DRUM PROPERTY   

         

Appropriated Funds      $2,500.00 

         
Approved from Undesignated Fund - Selectmen's Meeting Dated 2/28/06  $5,000.00 
         

Augusta Fuel Company     $3,948.10 
Choate Electric      $53.53 

Hammond Lumber      $73.71 
Home Depot      $17.99 

Lyon Builder      $742.00 
    Total Expenditures $4,835.33 
    Unexpended Balance $2,664.67 
         

         

Appropriated Funds      $43,687.00 
         

Alert-All Corp      $322.50 
All Hands Fire Equipment, LLC     $212.75 

Augusta Fuel Company     $2,711.50 
Brake Service & Parts, Inc.     $396.11 

Carquest Auto Parts      $121.41 
Central Maine Forestry & Fire Training    $50.00 
Central Maine Power     $1,493.56 

Chief Supply      $1,396.17 
Choate Electric      $47.29 

Cram, Clarence      $159.75 
Fire Tech & Safety of N.E.     $4,958.17 

Firehouse Magazine      $30.00 

Fleet Fueling         $8.78 
Freightliner of Maine, Inc.     $146.58 
Interstate Fire Protection     $85.10 

Irving Oil Corporation     $1,002.25 
Johnson Mechanical Service     $528.50 

Jones Barlett      $2,091.70 
KDT Towing      $339.52 

Lightship Telecom      $487.14 
Lisa's Cleaning Service     $605.00 

LRMA      $200.00 

OPERATING FIRE DEPARTMENT   
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 OPERATING FIRE DEPARTMENT CONT.   
         
Maine Commercial Tire, Inc.     $1,194.38 
MMA - Insurance      $2,902.00 
Maine Radio, Inc.      $4,656.05 
Manchester Sanitary District     $350.00 
Maranacook Community School     $178.49 
Newton, Ronald      $33.00 
NFPA      $135.00 
O & P Glass      $19.42 
O'Connor Motors      $1,307.50 
Overhead Door Company     $156.06 
Paris Farmers Union     $195.35 
Payroll      $19,769.10 
Ralph Hunter      $70.00 
Rockingham Electric      $21.22 
Ron's Auto Electric      $54.14 
Soucy's Trucking      $275.00 
Soule's Auto Supply      $55.18 
Tri City Tire, Inc.      $121.00 
U.S. Cellular      $213.59 
Unifire Power Blowers, Inc.     $260.36 
Union Farm Equipment, Inc.     $285.00 
Whitten, Maynard      $50.00 
    Total Expenditures $49,695.62 
    Overdraft  -$6,008.62 
         

OPERATING PLANNING BOARD   
         

Appropriated Funds      $6,860.00 
         
Central Maine Newspapers     $104.82 
Champlain Planning Press, Inc.     $45.00 
Community Advertiser     $145.00 
Copies Etc.      $682.50 
Frederick L. Michaud      $120.00 
Kennebec Journal      $163.05 
MMA      $320.00 
Maine Technical Source     $75.19 
Payroll      $2,960.00 
Spiller's      $585.95 
Staples      $247.17 
U.S. Postmaster      $100.00 
    Total Expenditures $5,548.68 
    Unexpended Balance $1,311.32 
         

         

Appropriated Funds      $600.00 
         
Central Maine Power     $393.56 
    Total Expenditures $393.56 
    Unexpended Balance $206.44 
         
         

OPERATING SALT & SAND SHED   
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Appropriated Funds      $102,047.00 
         
American Awards      $34.90 
Audette's Hardware      $129.59 
Augusta Florist & Gift     $42.95 
Augusta Fuel Company     $3,141.44 
Augusta Tool Rental      $161.00 
Augusta Water District     $244.62 
Beaulieu, Darlene      $210.83 
Burt's Security Center     $135.94 
Cagle, Tina      $130.71 
Central Maine Newspapers     $408.42 
Central Maine Power     $3,137.09 
Choate Electric      $134.88 
Community Advertiser     $165.56 
Copies Etc.      $560.25 
Cottage Gardens Florist     $50.25 
Cousin Sawmill      $113.50 
Damon's      $40.61 
DR Struck      $212.00 
Doyon, Mark      $67.58 
Frost, Lisa      $302.15 
Gardiner Savings Institution     $197.68 
Gossamer Press      $74.16 
Hallowell Printing      $714.48 
Hammond Lumber      $55.37 
Home Depot      $98.61 
Hygrade Business Group     $135.61 
ICMA - Employee Retirement Plan     $8,402.32 
Internal Revenue Service - Payroll Taxes    $21,093.56 
Interstate Fire Protection     $53.65 
Kennebec Journal      $795.74 
Lightship Telecom      $2,067.79 
Longfellow's Greenhouses     $25.74 
Maine Municipal Association - Employee Dental Insurance    $1,096.09 
Maine Municipal Association - Employee Health Insurance    $19,902.04 
Maine Municipal Association - Workers' Comp Insurance    $6,216.05 
Manchester Sanitary District     $340.00 
Mark's Printing House     $25.45 
Moody & Company      $92.39 
New England Interactive     $15.00 
Palmer, Marilyn      $190.11 
Pitney Bowes - Postage     $3,966.36 
U.S. Postmaster      $136.87 
Protection One      $1,410.61 
Ricoh Corporation      $464.94 
Rite Aid      $116.42 
Sam's Club      $1,523.57 
Sherwin-Williams Company     $24.68 
Shop From Home Flooring     $2,265.99 
Staples Credit Plan      $3,220.61 
Tel-Comm Contracting, Inc.     $326.11 
Tibbetts, Christopher     $7,341.60 

OPERATING TOWN OFFICE   
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 OPERATING TOWN OFFICE CONT.   
         
Trask, Franny      $2,515.00 
Treasurer, State of Maine - Unemployment tax    $2,657.98 
Treasurer, Town of Manchester - Petty Cash    $246.47 
Trugreen Chemlawn      $77.00 
TWA Comm.Com      $230.50 
U.S. Cellular      $501.54 
U.S. Postmaster      $46.00 
WB Mason      $705.67 
Wingate Landscaping     $11.50 
    Total Expenditures $98,805.53 
    Unexpended Balance $3,241.47 
         

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES   
        

Appropriated Funds     $11,400.00 

        

Kennebec Registry of Deeds    $1,499.77 

Kozak, Vicki     $488.00 

Runyon, Kersteen, Ouellette    $9,500.00 

    Total Expenditures $11,487.77 

    Overdraft  -$87.77 
         

SNOW PLOWING CONTRACT   
         

Appropriated Funds      $195,660.00 
         
Scott D. Lyon - (sand included in contract)    $173,769.73 
Morton Salt      $21,890.27 
    Total Expenditures $195,660.00 
         

SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES   
         

Appropriated Funds      $2,400.00 
         
Crisis & Support      $100.00 
Family Violence      $350.00 
Hospice      $700.00 
KV Community Action     $100.00 
Kv Mental Health Association     $700.00 
Maine Public Broadcasting     $100.00 
Senior Spectrum      $350.00 
    Total Expenditures $2,400.00 
         

         

Appropriated Funds      $13,500.00 
         
Central Maine Power     $13,612.62 
    Total Expenditures $13,612.62 
    Overdraft  -$112.62 
         
         
         

STREET LIGHTS   
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 SUMMER RECREATION   
         
Appropriated Funds      $23,800.00 
         
1-7-10 Sports Center     $440.00 
American Awards      $96.42 
Children's Discovery Museum     $102.50 
Copies Etc.      $228.47 
Daigle, Diane      $20.97 
Game Day Athletic      $1,055.50 
KV YMCA      $1,100.00 
Longfellow's Greenhouse     $74.12 
Payroll      $16,414.11 
Perry, Janet      $122.74 
Portland Sea Dogs      $225.50 
S & S Worldwide      $863.41 
Sandcastle Entertainment     $130.00 
Treasurer, Town of Manchester - Petty Cash    $701.89 
T's Golf      $229.00 
Western Avenue Storage     $450.00 
    Total Expenditures $22,254.63 
    Unexpended Balance $1,545.37 
         

SUMMER REC MAINTENANCE   
         
Appropriated Funds      $6,040.00 
         
AAA Toilets      $555.00 
Audette's Hardware      $32.01 
Hammond Lumber      $154.02 
Paris Farmers Union     $10.05 
Playground Video Equipment     $1,410.60 
Rite Aid      $4.29 
Scott D. Lyon      $1,900.00 
Set Rental      $40.00 
Sports Field      $1,625.00 
Ted Berry Const.      $287.38 
Vermont Tennis Courts Surfacing     $28.00 
Worthing's Waste Systems     $130.00 
    Total Expenditures $6,176.35 
    Overdraft  -$136.35 
         

         
Appropriated Funds      $241,477.00 
         
Ballot Clerks      $2,291.20 
CEO      $24,918.60 
Certified Assessor      $27,716.21 
Deputy Town Clerk/Administrative Asst.    $17,439.08 
Fuller, Elaine      $2,500.00 
McLeod, Donald      $2,500.00 
Overtime Wages (Allocated in Budget)    $1,086.46 
Support Service (Lisa/Arlene)     $18,178.92 
Town Clerk      $26,426.61 
Town Manager      $55,098.80 
Treasurer/Tax Collector     $32,373.57 
Registrar of Voters      $600.00 
Rogers Alec      $2,500.00 
Watson, Terri      $4,000.00 
Whitten, Maynard      $2,500.00 
    Total Expenditures $220,129.45 
    Unexpended Balance $21,347.55 

TOWN OFFICIALS' SALARIES   
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Appropriated Funds      $447,900.00 

         

Allen's Stump Removal     $1,250.00 

At Work Personnel      $2,496.16 

Audette's Hardware      $196.97 

Augusta Tool Rental      $1,193.00 

B & S Paving      $6,025.00 

Blue Rock Industries     $198.51 

Central Maine Power      $393.56 

Chief Lee Signs      $120.00 

Choate Electric      $777.90 

Commercial Paving & Recycling, LLC    $13,344.00 

Coutts Brothers, Inc.      $1,929.50 

EC Barry & Son      $3,075.00 

EJ Prescott      $6,855.05 

Econo Signs      $29.76 

Ed's Small Enging Repair     $58.95 

Ferraiolo Corp.      $113,022.89 

Gay, Robert Jr.      $490.00 

Hammond Lumber      $875.22 

Home Depot         $13.78 

J & S Oil         $23.54 

J.M. Bennett Hydroseeding       $2,370.00 

Lajoie Bros.         $294.00 

Northeast Paging         $37.69 

Paris Farmers Union       $1,155.54 

Payroll         $8,859.92 

Pike Industries         $87,506.28 

Pine State Safety Lines, Inc.       $3,266.26 

Sam's Club         $5.75 

Scott D. Lyon Construction       $67,856.50 

Set Rental         $120.00 

Sherwin Williams Paint       $13.64 

Sylvester Excavating         $9,078.00 

Town of Readfield         $18.00 

Unisource         $317.50 

White Signs         $2,080.15 

Maynard Whitten         $75.00 

Whitten Construction       $1,500.00 

Worthing Waste Systems       $130.00 

      Total Expenditures $337,053.02 

      Unexpended Balance $110,846.98 

TOWN ROADS   
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 HUNTING & FISHING LICENCES   
            
Proceeds from Licenses       $12,928.50 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $12,928.50 
            

REGISTRATIONS - ATV'S   
            
Proceeds from Registrations       $3,902.00 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $3,902.00 
            

REGISTRATIONS - AUTOMOBILES   
            
Proceeds from Registrations       $86,831.54 
Paid to Bureau of Motor Vehicles       $86,831.54 
            

REGISTRATIONS - BOATS   
            
Proceeds from Registrations       $12,077.00 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $12,077.00 
            

REGISTRATIONS - SNOWMOBILE   
            
Proceeds from Registrations       $5,280.00 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $5,280.00 
            

SALES TAX - ATV'S   
            
Proceeds from Sales Tax       $1,297.50 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $1,297.50 
            

SALES TAX - AUTOMOBILES   
            
Proceeds from Sales Tax       $25,465.86 
Paid to Bureau of Motor Vehicles       $25,465.86 
            

SALES TAX - BOATS   
            
Proceeds from Sales Tax       $3,810.45 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $3,810.45 
            
            
            

SALES TAX - SNOWMOBILES   
            
Proceeds from Sales Tax       $1,426.00 
Paid to Inland Fish & Wildlife       $1,426.00 
            

CEMETERY TRUST FUNDS   
        
Balance Carried Forward    $16,412.61 
Interest     $367.43 
    Balance  $16,780.04 
            

            
Balance Carried Forward       $264.64 
            
Earned Interest         $11.59 
          $276.23 
Expenditures         -$200.00 
Donation         $400.00 
      Balance   $473.23 

JOHN P DAGGETT MEMORIAL FUND   
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RESERVED FOR CASTLETOWN   
            
Balance Carried Forward       $7,670.51 
Interest         $215.04 
      Balance   $7,885.55 
            

RESERVED FOR FIRE TRUCK   
Balance Carried Forward       $10,004.30 
Per Warrant Article #45       $10,000.00 
          $20,004.30 
Interest         $616.91 
      Balance   $20,621.21 
            

RESERVE FOR REVALUATION   
            
Balance Carried Forward       $50,766.69 
Interest         $1,624.62 
          $52,391.31 
William Van Tinen Appraisal       $51,659.92 
      Balance   $731.39 
            
            
      Balance   $52,391.31 
            

            
Balance Carried Forward       $74,219.78 
Interest         $1,132.49 
      Balance   $75,352.27 

RESERVE WOOD ACCOUNT - KSB   
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REPORT OF THE TREASURER 

Taxes Collected for 2007 $4,823.18 

Taxes Collected for 2006 $2,978,402.85 

Liens Collected for 2006 $840.39 

Liens Collected for 2005 $49,925.73 

Liens Collected for 2004 $42,777.69 

Liens Collected for 2003 $6,148.49 

Liens Collected for 2002 & Prior $66.26 

Personal Property 2007 $77.13 

Personal Property 2006 $59,960.80 

Personal Property 2005 $1,467.23 

Personal Property 2004 & Prior $219.02 

Total Taxes Collected $3,144,708.77 

  

Interest & Cost $10,936.90 

Town Agent Fees $10,767.00 

Birth Certificates $152.00 

Burial Permits $15.00 

Death Certificates $337.00 

Excise Tax—Vehicles $492,748.05 

Marriage Certificates $67.00 

New Business Permits $110.00 

Vital Records $431.00 

Voting Lists $50.00 

Bank Interest/Fees $39,842.32 

Total Taxes Collected $562,313.07 

Excise Tax—Boats $6,856.80 
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ANIMAL CONTROL FEES 

Dog Licenses $542.00 

Late Fees $445.00 

Impound Fees $80.00 

Total Collected $1,067.00 

Rental Income $5,000.00 

DRUM PROPERTY REVENUE 

Cemetery Trust Accounts/Sale of Lot $100.00 

Workers’ Compensation Reimbursement $1,085.00 

Total Collected $1,185.00 

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 

EDUCATION REVENUE 

Education Subsidy $783,028.60 

Local Entitlement $70,832.70 

Miscellaneous $75,277.65 

Total Collected $929,138.95 

PLANNING BOARD 

Building Permits $9,921.21 

Conditional Use Permits $1,500.00 

Demolition Permits $75.00 

Earth Moving/Fill Permits $150.00 
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STATE OF MAINE REIMBURSEMENTS 

FEMA Reimbursement $68,504.31 

Highway Block Grant $41,052.00 

Homestead $68,032.00 

General Assistance $408.40 

Snowmobile Registration Reimbursement $1,426.00 

State Park Fee Sharing $2,742.62 

State Revenue Sharing $205,490.60 

Tree Growth $3,412.00 

Total Collected $391,067.93 

Home Occupation Permits $25.00 

Junkyard Permits $100.00 

Mining  Permits $100.00 

Miscellaneous $462.00 

Paving Permits $225.00 

Plumbing Permits $2,964.00 

Zoning Ordinances $155.00 

Total Collected $15,677.21 

SUMMER RECREATION 

Tuition Fees $5,810.50 

Swimming Fees $555.00 

Early/Late Drop Off Fees $200.00 

Late Registration Fee $120.00 

Total Collected $6,685.50 



 

65 

2006 Outstanding Real Estate Taxes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Baldauski, Karen A. 2949.63 

* Baldauski, Karen A. 909.03 

* Bedard, Ricky R. & Alarice 826.69 

* Bedard, Ricky R. & Alarice 982.03 

 Brickett, Leland E. & Beverly A. 539.42 

* Burgess, Russell 433.41 

* Chambers, David 2388.82 

 Cram, Cecil F. & Louise 815.01 

 Cram, David 1084.71 

 Cram, Stanley H.  & Linda 1484.37 

 Cram, Rose 705.31 

 Cram, Stanley Jr. & Linda 1243.90 

* Dugal, Sharlene-Lynn M. 633.73 

 Dumas, Roger J. & Pauline M. 835.70 

 Foster, Dorothy 726.14 

* Jamison, Albert T. & Oneal V. 987.00 

* Joslyn, Louise M. 153.82 

 Knowles, Grant M. 317.58 

 Knowles, Herman Jr. 2862.82 

 Laflin, David 652.88 

* Lovely, Larry 521.33 

* McLaughlin, Max 1517.79 

* McNaughton, Edward L. 626.49 

* O Connor, Elizabeth D. 3652.40 

* Prescott, Troy 2229.47 

 R & E Associates 10604.12 

 Richard, Gary L. & Carolina M. 1190.14 

 Robinson, Steven S. 1148.62 
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2005 OUTSTANDING REAL ESTATE TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* - Indicates paid after June 30, 2006 

* Cram, Cecil F. & Louise 672.51 

* Cram, David 288.34 

 Cram,  Rose 761.18 

* Cram, Stanley Jr. & Linda 511.78 

* Knowles, Grant M 516.39 

* Knowles, Herman, Jr. 1333.27 

* McLaughlin, Max 179.12 

* O Connor, Elizabeth D. 2389.26 

* Richard, Gary L. & Carolina M. 1365.44 

* Robinson, Steven S. 819.42 

* True, Roland E.  Sr. 100.78 

* Walker, Mark & Susan 66.93 

* Whitten, Brett E. & Shannon I. 1859.72 

  $10,864.14 

* Savage, Beverly 602.08 

* Savage, Beverly 262.14 

 Thompson, Bruce 34.31 

 Thompson, Toby & Kelly 1358.25 

* Tibbetts, Robert & Bertha 411.16 

* True, Roland E Sr., Estate Of 163.48 

* Violette, Ronald E.  & Susan 1433.08 

 Walker, Mark & Susan 50.02 

* Webb, Charles L. &  Elaine 699.47 

 Whitten, Brett E. & Shannon I. 1648.19 

* Whitten, Dwight 854.24 

 Zeegers, Donna L.  6675.19 

  $57,213.97 
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2006 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2005 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 America Online, Inc. 1.64 

* Augusta Country Club 346.07 

 Benedict, Ron 32.70 

 Catalina Health Resource, Inc. 11.45 

* Chambers Auto Parts 165.95 

* Double D’s Take Out 49.05 

* International Brotherhood 93.17 

* Manchester Donut LLC .47 

* Manchester Osteopathic 
Healthcare 

236.26 

* Mulligan Enterprises 194.56 

 Patient Referral Services 65.40 

* Radio City 3.01 

* RKTechs, LLC 115.27 

 Scientific Games 16.35 

 Split Endz 27.80 

* Subway 338.45 

 Violette, Gary 83.39 

 Wheeler, Fred L. 68.67 

  $1,849.66 

 Benedict, Ron 43.89 

 Libby, Vernon B. & Bruce V. 25.94 

* LJ’s Kids Closet 9.97 

* Mulligan Enterprises 509.51 

 Scientific Games 14.98 

* Split Endz 39.90 

* Subway 79.63 

 Violette, Gary 103.15 

  $826.97 
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2004 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2003 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2002 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2001 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 Benedict, Ron 45.48 

 Hilltop Ski & Bike 42.78 

 Libby, Vernon B. & Bruce V. 24.64 

 Manchester Pet Care Center 13.27 

  $126.17 

 Benedict, Ron 45.88 

 Green Acres Landscaping, Inc. 313.79 

 Libby, Vernon B. & Bruce V. 25.69 

 PFG Golf 2262.56 

  $2,647.92 

 ERA Excel 72.57 

 Green Acres Landscaping, 

Inc. 

201.78 

 Libby, Vernon B. & Bruce V. 24.78 

 Professional Leasing Services 16.37 

 PFG Golf 2384.19 

  $2,699.69 

 Dave Gove’s Maine-ly Imports 52.96 

 Servpro 89.37 

  $142.33 
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2000 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

1999 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

1998 OUTSTANDING PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Dave Gove’s Maine-ly Imports 111.86 

 Green Acres Landscaping, Inc. 228.42 

 Walker Construction  808.02 

  $1,148.30 

 Dave Gove’s Maine-ly Imports 111.86 

 Green Acres Landscaping, Inc. 114.21 

  $226.07 

 Dave Gove’s Maine-ly Imports 8.20 

  $8.20 
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Town Meeting Warrant 

 

Tuesday, June 12, 2007 

and 

Thursday, June 14, 2007 

To: Doris Gammon, a resident in the Town of Manchester, in the County of Kennebec, State of 
Maine, 

Greetings: 

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the Inhabitants of the 
Town of Manchester in said county and state, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to meet at the 
Manchester Town Office on Tuesday, the 12th day of June 2007, at 8:00 a.m., then and there to act 
upon Article 1 and by secret ballot Article 2, as set out below, the polling hours thereof to be 8:00 

a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  The meeting will recess at the completion of the count of the ballots until 

Thursday, June 14, 2007, at 6:30 p.m.  The meeting will reconvene at 6:30 p.m. at the Manchester 

Elementary School, then and there to act on Articles 3 through 81 as set out below to wit: 

Pursuant to Title 21-A § 759 (7), absentee ballots will be processed at the polls at the following times: 

10:00 a.m., 1:00 p.m., 4:00 p.m., and 8:00 p.m. 

 

ADMINISTRATION-ELECTIONS 

Article 1. To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting.  As soon as a Moderator has been elected 

and sworn in, the motion will be made to recess for all purposes except for voting for Town Officials.  

The registrar of voters will hold office hours while the polls are open to correct any error in or change of 

name or address on the voting list; to accept the registration of any person eligible to vote and to 

accept new enrollments.  A person who is not registered as a voter may not vote in any election. 
 

Article 2.  To elect all necessary Town Officers as required to be elected by secret ballot (M.R.S.A. 30-A, § 
2528). 

 

Position                                                                Vacancy Term 
Selectmen:                                                             two 3 years 
McLeod, Donald J.  & Whitten, Maynard E. 

School Board:                                                       one 3 years 
Parent, Michael  
Sanitary District Trustee:                                   two 3 years 

Fletcher, Clifton M.  & Lyon Scott 
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
 
Article 3. To see if the Town will allow the following non-residents to speak at the Town Meeting in 
order to answer any questions or to provide any other necessary information: Manchester Elementary 
School Principal Rick Wilson, Superintendent of Schools Rich Abramson, Special Education Director Lew 
Collins, CSD#10/SU 42 Business Manager Brigette Williams, Town Code Enforcement Officer E. Patrick 
Gilbert, Winthrop EMS Director John Dovinski, Siemens Technology representative Brent Dudley and 
Scott Lanphear.      
 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
Taken out of Order, Articles  28— 31.   Motion made and seconded (Fire Department due to Chief 
Hewey having to leave . 

 
Article 4. To see if the Town will elect in an open meeting the Budget Committee in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Nominating Committee as provided for at the Town Meeting of March 4, 1956. 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

Sheila Axell, Charlene Brousseau, Lendall Dudley, Susan Gadberry, Robert Gasper, Robert Gay, Jr.,  

Charles Harding, Brian Jackson, Joe Kozak, Patricia LeVeen, James Nevins and David Worthing 

 

Note: Town Clerk Marilyn Palmer will administer the oath of office to newly elected budget 

committee members at this time.  

 

Article 5. To see if the Town will nominate two (2) persons to serve, along with the Chairman of the 

Board of Selectmen, as a Nominating Committee for the Budget Committee to serve during the ensuing 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007. 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

Motion made, seconded to nominate  Ron Lachapelle,  

Leon Strout  and Terri Waton 
 
Article 6. To see if the Town will vote to lapse all balances into undesignated Fund Balance except those 
which must be carried forward by statute and the balances of the following accounts: Cemetery Trust 
Funds, Urban Renewal Initiative Program, Manchester Elementary School, State Revenue Sharing, Town 

Road Accounts and pay indebtedness caused by overdrafts from undesignated Fund Balance. 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
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Article 7. To see if the Town will vote to determine that taxes committed during the fiscal year 2008 shall 
be due and payable upon assessment; that if they are not entirely paid on or before October 15, 2007, 
then they shall paid in two equal installments, one half on or before October 15, 2007 and the other 
half on or before April 15, 2008; that taxes not paid by their installment deadline date shall be 
delinquent thereafter; and that interest at the rate of twelve percent (12.00%) per annum, which interest 
shall not be compounded, and shall accrue upon delinquent taxes until paid in full.  

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
 

Article 8.  To see if the town will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the town on abated taxes at 
eight percent (8.00%) pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 506-A.  

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Explanation: If taxes are paid but later abated, the municipality must refund the abated taxes and pay 

interest on them. For taxes assessed on or after April 1, 1996, 36 M.R.S.A. § 506-A provides that the rate 

of interest set by the municipality to be paid on overpayments may not exceed the rate set for 

delinquent taxes, nor be less than that rate reduced by 4%. Thus if the delinquency rate is 12.00%, then 

the town meeting may not set a rate lower than 8.00%.  

 

Article 9. To see if the town will vote to allow the Selectmen to appropriate the money raised for overlay 

to pay tax abatements and applicable interest granted during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007. 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Explanation: Many communities fail to appropriate money to be used to pay abatements granted during 

that budget period. They simply use the overlay generated through the tax commitment. Even though 
36 M.R.S.A § 710 authorizes assessors to raise overlay, there is no authority to spend the amount of the 
overlay without a town appropriation vote. 

 
Article 10. To see if the town will vote to authorize the tax collector to accept prepayments of taxes not 
yet committed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A § 506.  

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

 



 

73 

Article 11. To see if the town will vote to authorize the Town Tax Collector to enter into a standard 
agreement with taxpayers establishing a “tax club” payment plan for property taxes, whereby: (1) the 
taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the town based on his/her estimated and actual 
tax obligation for the current year property taxes; (2) the town agrees not to charge interest on timely 
payments made pursuant to the tax club agreement; (3) the town authorizes the collector to accept tax 
club payments for current taxes which may be due prior to the commitment of those taxes; (4) the 
agreement is automatically terminated if a scheduled payment is late, and the taxpayer then becomes 
subject to the same due dates and interest dates and rates as other taxpayers who are not participating 
in a tax club; (5) only taxpayers who do not have any outstanding tax obligations for prior tax years are 
eligible to participate in the tax club program; and (6) taxpayers wishing to participate in a tax club for a 
particular property tax year shall enter into an agreement with the town by a publicly-advertised 
deadline determined by the Town Tax Collector. 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 12.  To see if the town will vote to grant the authority to the Town Treasurer to record a waiver of 

the automatic lien foreclosure process in the Kennebec County Registry of Deeds pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A 

§ 944 when it is in the best interest of the Town as determined by the Board of Selectmen.  

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 13. To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen on behalf of the Town to enter into 

contracts, leases, lease purchase agreements and interlocal agreements in the name of the Town for a 

period not to exceed five years if it is deemed to be in the best interests of the Town . 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Explanation: This article does not appropriate any money. It is necessary to ensure that any contract or 
leases agreed to by the Selectmen and a vendor can be for more than one year. For example, a 

proposal from a firm to conduct the annual Town’s audit would be scheduled for multiple years. In 
order for the Selectmen to enter into this agreement on behalf of the Town, they would need the 
authority of the Town Meeting. Yearly costs for leases or contracts would be included in other articles.   
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Article 14. To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen on behalf of the Town to sell and dispose of 
any real estate acquired by the Town for nonpayment of taxes thereon, such as they may deem 
advisable and to execute quitclaim deeds for such property. Sale of all Town acquired property is to be 
made by public auction or sealed bid, except municipal officers may give an option to the taxpayer to 
redeem property within thirty (30) days of notice to sell. 

  
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 
Article 15. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to expend up to Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000.00) from Undesignated Fund Balance (Unappropriated Surplus) to meet unanticipated 
expenses and emergencies that may occur during the ensuing fiscal year. 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0)   
GENERAL GOVERNMENT-GRANTS & GIFTS 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 16. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept gifts of money or 

personal property to the Town and to appropriate and expend such gifts for such public purposes as the 

Selectmen deem to be in the best interest of the Town. 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 17. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to apply for and accept state 

and federal grants and grants from nonprofit organizations on behalf of the Town for municipal 

purposes, including when necessary, the authority to sign the grant contract and accept the conditions 

that accompany grant funds, and to appropriate and expend grant funds for the authorized purposes.  

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
   

Explanation: The Town needs the authorization of the Town Meeting, which is the legislative body of the 
town, to apply for many grants.  This article avoids the need for a Special Town Meeting to authorize the 
Board of Selectmen to submit an application for grant funding on behalf of the Town and to accept any 

grant funds awarded. This article is an appropriation of grant funds and expenditure of the grant funds 
would be allowed.  
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Article 18. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Town Manager to approve the disposal of 
furniture, equipment, and other items deemed unusable or unnecessary during the ensuing fiscal year. 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT-ADMINISTRATION 
 
Article 19. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Sixteen Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($16,500.00) for the purpose of providing compensation to the Selectmen during the 
ensuing fiscal year. 
         
       Selectmen (Five at $3,000.00 ea) $15,000.00 
      Chairmen of the Board of Selectmen $  1,500.00 
      Total $16,500.00 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 20. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Three Hundred Twenty 

Thousand Fifty Three Dollars ($320,053.00) for the purpose of providing compensation and employee 

benefits to Town employees during the ensuing fiscal year. 

             

Estimated amounts include salaries for the Town Manager, Town Clerk, Deputy Town Clerk, Town 

Treasurer/Tax Collector, Certified Assessors Agent, Assessors Assistant, Code Enforcement Officer, 

Maintenance Person, Overtime, Ballot Clerks and the Registrar of Voters and benefits of town 

employees: 

 

       Salaries $234,375.00 
       Payroll Taxes $ 25,318.00  
       Retirement  $ 14,063.00 
       Unemployment Insurance $   2,800.00 
       Workers Compensation Insurance $   5,650.00 

       Employee Health & Dental $ 37,847.00 
       Total $320,053.00 

 
 SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
 BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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Article 21.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of One Hundred Seven 
Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars ($107,965.00) for general expenses associated with the 
operation of Town government. 
   
 Estimated amounts include: 
     Audit Fees $ 4,300.00 
     Computer software/hardware/licensing $12,500.00 
     Education and Training $  6,450.00 
     Janitorial  $  4,065.00 
     Leases $  3,500.00 
     Utilities $11,480.00 
     Supplies $  5,900.00 
     Office Equipment $  1,400.00 

     Insurance $13,200.00 

     Maintenance Buildings & Grounds $25,850.00 

     Advertising $ 1,200.00 

     Postage $ 3,850.00 

     Lien Recording and Discharging $ 3,900.00 

     Preservation of Town Records $ 4,845.00 

     Miscellaneous Election Supplies $    250.00  

     Printing & Copies (Town Office & Ballots)          $ 5,275.00 

     Total $107,965.00 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 22.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 
($15,000.00) for legal expenses.  

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 



 

77 

TOWN COMMITTEES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
Article 23.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Nine Thousand Two Hundred 
Forty-Five Dollars ($9,245.00) for the support of the following Town Boards during the ensuing fiscal 
year: 
 

Appeals Board $   100.00 
Planning Board $9,145.00 
Total $9,245.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (7-2) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 24.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Six Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($6,500.00) for the support of the Long Range Planning Committee during the ensuing fiscal 

year. 

 

Estimated amounts include: 

Apple Festival $5,500.00 

Bike/Walking Paths $   500.00 

Tree Lighting $   500.00 

Total $6,500.00 

 

Note: It is anticipated that $4,000.00 in revenue from the Apple Festival will be collected.  

           Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 25. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Four Thousand Dollars 

($4,000.00) in support of the Conservation Commission during the ensuing fiscal year.   
 

Estimated amounts include: 
Roadside Clean Up $2,500.00 
Advertising $   200.00 
Copies & Printing $   175.00 
Training $   200.00 

Postage $     75.00 
Public Education $   650.00 
Miscellaneous  $   200.00 
Total $4,000.00 
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Article 26. To see if the Town will vote to transfer the sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from the 
Capital Reserve Account “Wood Account” to the Conservation Account for the purpose of funding future 
conservation projects that may arise within the Town of Manchester.   
 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)   
 BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (7-2) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Note: This article does not raise any money. Its purpose is to authorize the Selectmen to transfer $5,000 
from the Capital Reserve Account into a newly created Conservation Commission Account for funding 
future projects within the community upon approval by the Board of Selectmen. 
  
PUBLIC SAFETY 

 

Article 27.  To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Sixty-Seven Thousand Two 

Hundred Forty-Two Dollars ($67,242.00) for the following public safety purposes. 

 

Animal Control $ 4,500.00 

KV Humane Society $ 3,402.00 

Dam Keeper $    800.00 

Cobbossee Outlet Dam $ 2,000.00 

EMS Director $    100.00 

E-911 PSAP Service $ 4,610.00 

Hydrants $35,880.00 

Street Lights $15,950.00 

Total $67,242.00 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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Article 28.  To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Nineteen Thousand Seven 
Hundred Twenty Dollars ($19,720.00) for Ambulance Services.  

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS $31,485.00 (7-2) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
Article 29. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifty One Thousand One 
Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars ($51,165.00) for the operation of the Manchester Fire Department. 
 
Estimated amounts include: 

Vehicle Insurance $ 2,720.00 

Miscellaneous Expenses $ 1,780.00 

Fire Chief  $ 3,500.00 

Assistant Fire Chief $    775.00 

Deputy Fire Chief $    775.00 

Senior Fire Captain $    750.00 

Payroll $15,000.00 

Training $ 2,000.00 

Equipment Replacement and Purchases $ 3,900.00 

Radio & Communications Repairs $ 4,000.00 

Building Maintenance Services $ 1,020.00 

Truck Repairs & Expenses $ 7,050.00 

Utilities $ 7,895.00 

Total $51,165.00 

   
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

 BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

Article 30. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Three Thousand Dollars 
($3,000.00) to be used to purchase extrication equipment  (“Jaws of Life”) for the Fire Department.  In 
the event that the funds are not spent during the ensuing fiscal year, the funds will be placed in a 
designated reserve account called “Extrication Equipment” for the purpose of purchasing the equipment 

at a later date.    
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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Article 31. To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($9,500.00) from the Capital Reserve Account (Wood Account) to be used for consulting services to 
develop plans and estimated costs for  repairs or modifications to the Town’s Fire Station and Town 
Office.  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)       
 BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 
Note: This article does not raise any money. Its purpose is to authorize the Selectmen to spend money 
that is in the Capital Reserve Account for a capital expenditure.  
 

TOWN ROADS 
 

Article 32. To see if the town will vote to authorize the municipal officers to make final determinations 

regarding the closing or opening of roads to winter maintenance pursuant to 23 M.R.S.A. § 2953.  

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Explanation: Unless the town meeting votes to award final authority to the municipal officers to order 

roads closed to winter maintenance, each closing order made by the municipal officers must be 

approved by the town meeting. This article awards final authority to the municipal officers in making 

these determinations, and so removes any need of a special town meeting. Winter closings can be 

done for a maximum of 10 years and must be completed between May 1 and October 1 in any given 

year. If their road-closing order does not state the number of years for which it will be effective, it will 

operate to close a road for only one year.  
 
Article 33.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Two Hundred Thirteen 
Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars ($213,950.00) for summer maintenance of Town roads.  
 

Estimated amounts include: 
Advertising $       250.00 
Road Maintenance Personnel $  14,600.00 

Summer Road Maintenance $199,100.00  
Total $213,950.00 
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Article 34.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Four Thousand Seventy-
Eighty Dollars ($4,078.00) and to appropriate Two Hundred Thousand Dollars from Undesignated Surplus 
($200,000.00) along with Forty Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty Two Dollars ($40,922.00) from the Mt. 
Vernon Rd Designated Reserve Account for summer road projects. 
 
Projects and estimated costs include: 

Prescott Rd                                        2 cross culverts $ 10,000.00 
Kerns Hill Rd                                      Ditch rip-rap culverts $ 60,000.00 
Foye Rd                                               Ditching/Gravel/Culverts $ 15,000.00 
Fifield Rd                                            Widening/Ditching/Culvert $ 30,000.00 
Sylvester Dr                                       Earthwork/Culvert/Paving $ 20,000.00 

       Mt. Vernon Rd                                  Rebuild w/2” pavement $110,000.00 
      Total $245,000.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 35.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Two Hundred Twenty-Eight 

Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty-One Dollars ($228,761.00) for winter maintenance of Town Roads.   

 

Estimated amounts include: 

Snow Plowing Contract $225,811.00 

Sand & Salt Shed Maintenance $    2,950.00 

Total $228,761.00

  

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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SOLID WASTE 
 
Article 36.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Forty One Thousand Nine 
Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars ($41,975.00) for solid waste disposal fees.  
 
Estimated Amounts Include: 

Solid Waste Contract/Hatch Hill $36,975.00 
Town Clean Up $  5,000.00 
Total $41,975.00 
  

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

RECREATION  
 

Article 37. To see if the Town will vote to appropriate all funds received by the Town from the State of 

Maine for snowmobile registrations to the Manchester Country Riders Snowmobile Club for the purpose 

of maintaining their snowmobile trails and to authorize the municipal officers to enter into an 

agreement with the Club, under such terms and conditions as the municipal officers may deem 

advisable, for that purpose. These funds are to be used for the maintenance of snowmobile trails within 

the Town and will be open to the public at all times and free of charge. 

NOTE: During the period of July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 the Town gave $1,383.58 to the 

Manchester Country Riders Snowmobile Club for this purpose. 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Explanation: Snowmobile registration funds must be appropriated annually by the Town for whatever 
purpose it desires. If all or part of it is appropriated to a snowmobile club, one of the conditions of that 
appropriation must be that the club's trails are open and free for the public to use. Otherwise, it would 
be an illegal appropriation of public funds for a private group. 
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Article 38.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Twenty-Eight Thousand Six 
Hundred Ten Dollars ($28,610.00) for Summer Recreation programs.   
 
 Estimated amounts include: 

 Copies $    300.00 
 Director & Assistant Director $ 7,600.00 
Payroll for counselors $13,874.00 
Supplies $ 2,200.00 
Middle School & Other Rec. Programs $    300.00 
Field Trips $ 3,286.00 
Outside Services (instructors) $ 1,050.00 
Total $28,610.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Note: It is anticipated that $8,575.00 in revenue from Summer Recreation fees will be collected. 

 

Article 39.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Twelve Thousand 

Eight Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars ($12,865.00) for the purpose of recreational facility maintenance.  

 
Estimated amounts include: 

Miscellaneous $    500.00 
Mowing $ 6,080.00 
Field Maintenance $ 2,840.00 
Playground Maintenance $ 2,550.00 
Tennis Courts $      50.00 
Equipment & Supplies $    250.00 
Portable Toilets $    595.00 
Total $12,865.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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ORGANIZATIONS-SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Article 40. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Seven Thousand Seven 
Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars ($7,799.00) in support of the following organizations. 
      

Kennebec Land Trust $   250.00 
Kennebec Valley Council of Governments $4,529.00 
Maine Municipal Association $2,945.00 
Winthrop Area Chamber of Commerce $     75.00 
Total $7,799.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

ORGANIZATIONS-MANCHESTER 
 

Article 41.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of One Thousand Nine 

Hundred Dollars ($1,900.00) for donations to the following Manchester organizations: 

 

Manchester Youth Baseball $   500.00 

Boy Scout Troop #622 $   500.00 

Maranacook Youth Football $   500.00 

Manchester Healthy Futures $   400.00 

Total $1,900.00  

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

ORGANIZATIONS-SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES 
 
Article 42.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Two Thousand Seven 
Hundred Dollars ($2,700.00) for donations to the following organizations: 

 

Sexual Crisis & Support $   100.00 
Family Violence Project $   350.00 
Hospice Volunteers of Kennebec Valley $   300.00 
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Senior Spectrum $   350.00 
Bread of Life  $   300.00 
Crisis & Counseling Services $   200.00 
Total $2,700.00 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

CEMETERIES 
 

Article 43.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) 
for the care and maintenance of Town cemeteries. 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE 
 

Article 44.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) for the General Assistance Program.  

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS & RESERVE ACCOUNTS 
 

Article 45. To see if the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000.00) for the Cobbossee Outlet Dam” Reserve Account to be used towards the repair of the dam 
at a later date.     

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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Article 46. To see if the Town vote to raise the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for 
the “Fire Department Vehicle Reserve Account” to be used towards the purchase of Fire Department 
Vehicles at a later date. 
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) 
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

Article 47. To see if the Town vote to raise the sum of Three Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Dollars 
($3,850.00) to purchase new computers for the town office.  
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Article 48. To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from 

the Capital Reserve Account “Wood Account” to be used for GIS Mapping services. In the event that the 

funds are not spent during the ensuing fiscal year, the funds will be placed in a designated reserve 

account called “GIS Mapping” for the purpose of purchasing at a later date.    

   

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

Note: This article does not raise any money. Its purpose is to authorize the Selectmen to spend money 

that is in the Capital Reserve Account for a capital expenditure.  

 

DEBT SERVICE & DRUM PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 

 
Article 49.  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Eighteen Thousand Three 

Hundred Eighty-Five Dollars ($18,385.00) to support the debt service incurred on the Drum Property and 
for the maintenance of said property. 

 

Drum Property Principal Payments $12,830.00 
Drum Property Interest Payments $  2,855.00 
Drum Property Maintenance $  2,700.00 
Total $18,385.00

  
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0) Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Article 50. To authorize the Selectmen to accept and expend any other revenue from State, Federal, 
local and private sources for the support of the Town. 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS YES (9-0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

REVENUE 
 

Article 51.  To see if the Town will vote to appropriate, and to authorize the Selectmen to expend, up to 
Eight Hundred Four Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-Three Dollars ($804,843.00) from the following 
General Fund revenue sources to be used toward the July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 budget 
appropriation, thereby decreasing the amount to be raised from property taxes. 

 

Estimated Amounts Include: 

Interest & Costs $    7,500.00 

Auto Excise Tax $451,500.00 

Boat Excise Tax $    6,200.00 

Town Agent Fees $    9,470.00 

Interest on Investments $  40,000.00 

Miscellaneous Fees $       100.00 

Mowing Reimbursement $    4,500.00 

Maine Park Reimbursement $    1,200.00 

State Revenue Sharing $180,000.00 

Use of Designated Revenue Sharing Reserve  $  26,000.00 

Tree Growth Reimbursement $    2,900.00 

Veterans Reimbursement $    2,000.00 

Code Enforcement Fees $  10,165.00 
Town Clerk Fees $       500.00 
Apple Festival $    4,000.00 
Animal Control Fees $    1,365.00 
Urban Renewal Initiative Program $  36,500.00 

Summer Recreation Fees $    8,575.00 
First Park Reimbursement $   10,543.00 
Interest on Cemetery Funds                      $       625.00 

Sale of Cemetery Lots $    1,000.00 
General Assistance Reimbursement $       200.00 
Total $804,843.00 
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SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Explanation: The above municipal revenues do not reflect anticipated education revenues of 
$773,521.00 and an estimated carry forward from the Manchester Elementary School of approximately 
$95,000.00 to support education.  These figures will be appropriated in the Articles dealing with 
education.  

 
ARTICLE 52 WILL BE DECIDED BY WRITTEN BALLOT 

 
Article 52.  Shall the Town vote to increase the property tax levy limit of $301,470.00 established for the 
Town of Manchester by state law in the event that the municipal budget approved under the preceding 
articles will result in a tax commitment that is greater than that property tax limit.  
 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND YES (5-0)  

 

Yes -72 

No -52 
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TOWN ORDINANCES    

Article 53.  Shall an ordinance entitled the “Cemetery Ordinance” be enacted? 

 
SELECTMEN RECOMMEND ENACTMENT (5-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

 

CEMETERY ORDINANCE 

 

§1 IDENTIFICATION AND PURPOSE OF ORDINANCE. 
§1.1 Identification. This ordinance shall be known as the Cemetery Ordinance herein referred to as "the 
Ordinance." 

§1.2 Purpose. This ordinance is established to manage and preserve town owned cemeteries, and to 

protect the rights of lot owners, while maintaining the public’s health, safety and the general beauty 

and harmony of the cemeteries, and to assist the Town in equitable implementation of these provisions.  

The cemeteries governed by this ordinance are the Forks Cemetery, located on the Granite Hill Road; 

the Cummings Cemetery on Western Avenue (Route 202); the Annie Hill Cemetery on the Prescott Road; 

and the Friends Cemetery on the Patch Road.  This ordinance does not apply to privately owned 

cemeteries located in Manchester.  

 

§2. SUPERINTENDENT.  
 

§2.1 The Town Manager of Manchester shall be the superintendent of the cemeteries.  The 

Superintendent shall ensure that this ordinance pertaining to the cemeteries is enforced.  The 

compensation of said superintendent shall be part of the agreed upon salary for the Town Manager.  

The duties of the superintendent include the following: 
 

• Maintain a record of the layout of the cemeteries with each lot containing more than one 

grave and owned by one party suitably marked by an iron or concrete post placed on each lot 
corner and set level with the adjacent ground, and the graves/lots numbered. A plan of the 

same to be made and filed with the Town Clerk. 
• Assure that all graves are of sufficient depth and properly filled, that they have concrete liners 

or suitable containers for cremated remains and that gravesites are marked with a permanent 
grave marker in the ground.   

• Grant permission to occupy any lot or lots by a qualified person, after authority has been 

obtained from the Town Clerk. 
• Employ such persons as needed to adequately maintain and care for the cemeteries. 
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Upon notice to the offending parties, remove and correct improper and unsuitable structures, articles or 
wording located within the cemetery. Assure that all records pertaining to town cemeteries are 
maintained in the town office, and that needed information concerning cemetery lots can be accessed 
at all reasonable times. 

 

§3.  CEMETERY COMMITTEE.  
 
§3.1 A Cemetery Committee of no more than 7 persons shall be appointed for a one year term by the 
Board of Selectmen to serve as an Advisory Committee to the superintendent.  The committee shall 
elect a chairman from its members.  One member of the committee shall serve as the Cemetery Sexton 
to assist the superintendent in carrying out his/her responsibilities.  The committee shall meet as 
needed, but at least once a year, and shall comply with the Town of Manchester Guidelines for Town 
Committees. 
 

§4.  REGULATING OCCUPATION OF LOTS. 
  

§4.1 The Town Clerk shall keep a record upon which shall be entered all lots, with their number and 

section and with columns ruled for the names of purchasers of each lot, with the price and date of sale.  

The record shall note which gravesites are occupied and clearly show which lots are available for 

purchase.   

 

§4.2 Payment for cemetery lots and for Perpetual Care shall be made to the Town Treasurer and shall be 

deposited in a designated account for cemetery income and expenses.   

 

§4.3 The right to purchase any lot shall not be granted on behalf of any person not permanently 

residing in the Town of Manchester for at least eighteen months or a seasonal resident for at least eight 

years.  Any lots granted shall not be used by anyone other than the purchaser for himself and his 

relatives, unless approved by the Superintendent.  Should said owner permit burial in said lot of other 
than the immediate family and direct descendants, the owner shall not be permitted to purchase 

another lot or lots.   
 
§4.4 Any person who is not an actual resident of the Town of Manchester who now owns a lot or one or 

more grave sites in a town cemetery shall not be allowed to exchange the same for any other lot in said 
cemetery.  However, the Board of Selectmen may by majority vote grant the right of that individual to 
purchase a lot or one or more grave sites from other lot owners.   
 
§4.5 Persons owning lots or multiple grave sites may sell or transfer ownership of such lots or sites to 

relatives, whether or not residents of Manchester, but the sale or transfer to non-relatives is restricted to 
residents of the Town of Manchester.  Signed and notarized documentation of such sale or transfer, 

clearly identifying which sites have been transferred, shall be submitted to the Town Clerk within 14 
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§4.6 The size of each grave site shall be 10 feet by 3 feet.  A lot is four adjacent graves.  Cremated 
remains of up to four persons may be placed in a grave site.  Such remains may be placed over a 
previously buried casket.   

 

§5. CEMETERY PRICES.  
 
§5.1 The price for each individual grave in a lot, including Perpetual Care, shall be $300.  The price shall 
be determined by the Board of Selectmen after a public hearing on said prices is held.  The prices shall 
be reviewed every two (2) years by the Cemetery Committee and any recommendations for any changes 
made to the Board of Selectmen.  Perpetual Care is provided to the entire cemetery.
  

§6. PERSONS UNABLE TO PAY.  
 

§6.1 The superintendent, with the advice of the Cemetery Committee, is authorized to designate certain 

grave sites in one or more of the town cemeteries to be kept in good condition for the graves of parties 

unable to purchase lots for whatever reason.  The Board of Selectmen shall adopt such regulations as in 

their judgment are just and proper for the right of occupancy of any grave site by such parties.  In case 

of removal, the space so vacated and the right to occupy the same shall revert to the Town of 

Manchester.  

 

§7. PERPETUAL CARE.  
 

§7.1 All monies previously paid to the Town Treasurer for Perpetual Care and all donations made by the 

holders of lots or other persons, shall be placed in a Cemetery Account.  Such funds are to be expended 

for mowing grass, raking, trimming around monuments and markers and cleaning lots, and for 

improving and ornamenting the grounds of the town cemeteries as recommended by the Cemetery 

Committee and Superintendent.  Any capital expenditures shall be approved by the Board of Selectmen.  

All monies currently entrusted in the Town of Manchester’s Cemetery Account and all Individual 
Perpetual Care accounts shall be included in the Cemetery Account.  A list of those monies currently 
known shall be maintained by the Town Treasurer.  Monies listed shall be subject to change under the 
terms of their acceptance only when known.  The town shall be responsible for complying with the 
terms of individual accounts; to the extent funds are available. The town shall use the interest income 

from cemetery trust funds for the cost of perpetual care unless the terms of acceptance specify 
otherwise.  The Board of Selectmen, in consultation with the Superintendent, shall determine the 
dispositions of trust funds for which there are no known heirs.  No new cemetery trust funds shall be 

established after the effective date of this cemetery ordinance. 
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§8. CEMETERY ACCOUNT.  

 
§8.1 All sums received from the sale of graves or transfer of lots and any cemetery money not otherwise 
specified shall be credited to the Cemetery Account to be used for the keeping of the cemeteries and 
the lots therein in good order as well as providing Perpetual Care.  Monies may also be used for the 
planning and purchase of more land to be used as part of the town cemeteries.  The Town is also 
authorized to accept donations of land, subject to the approval of the Board of Selectmen and clear title 
thereto, and approval of the residents at a town meeting.  Upon notice to the residents and a public 
hearing, suitable town owned property may be designated for use as a cemetery.  
 

§9. GRAVE OPENINGS AND CLOSINGS.  
 
§9.1 Before the opening of a grave shall commence, the party requesting said opening shall show 
satisfactory proof to the Superintendent or his/her designee that they have the right to request said 

opening.  The funeral home shall be responsible for employing the person, persons or company doing 

the work and for the payment for those services.  If in the opening of a grave, ledge or large rocks are 

found, such site shall be determined unsuitable for burial and an alternate location provided.  No burials 

will be permitted from November 15th to March 31st unless special permission is granted by the 

Superintendent when ground conditions are suitable for burial.    

 

§10. INTERMENTS.  
 

§10.1 All interments shall be restricted to members of the family and friends of the family when 

approved by the Superintendent.  A copy of the Certificate of Ownership will be reviewed by the 

Cemetery Superintendent or his/her designee before the lot is opened.  The Cemetery Superintendent 

may request a meeting with the sexton and family if there is no Certificate of Ownership or any 

questions pertaining to ownership or placement of the grave site for the deceased.  

  
§10.2 In all interments, the casket shall be enclosed in a permanent outside container.  The following 

are considered permanent outside containers:  concrete boxes, copper or steel burial vaults, sectional 
concrete crypts or approved synthetics.  Cremated remains shall be in a container of some kind, rather 
than scattered on the ground.   

 
§10.3 Interment of any body other than that of a human being will not be permitted.  No lot shall be 
used for any other purpose than as a place of burial of the dead.  
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§11. REMOVALS.  

 
§11.1 A body may be removed from a grave upon completion of the Application for Disinterment or 
Removal.  Removal of bodies from graves may be made by the authorization of a law enforcement 
official for purposes of an investigation.  Such removal shall be done under the supervision of a licensed 
funeral director.  Any markers or monuments designating the location of an interment shall be removed 
at the time a permanent disinterment is made. 
 

§12. VISITORS TO CEMETERIES.  
 
§12.1 The cemeteries are open to visitors at all times between the hours of ½ hour before sunrise and 
½ hour after sunset.  Persons in the cemeteries at other times will be considered trespassing.   
§12.2 Children under fourteen years of age must be accompanied by a parent or guardian. 
 

§13. PRIVILEGES AND RESTRICTIONS.  
 

§13.1 No mounds shall be raised upon any grave above the general level of the lot.  The Town reserves 

the right at any time to level unsightly mounds and to resod the grave at the general level of the lot. 

 

§13.2 As soon as flowers, wreaths, emblems, etc., used at funerals, or placed on the grave at other 

times, become unsightly and faded, they will be removed and no responsibility for their protection or 
maintenance is assumed.  The town shall have the right to remove all floral designs,  lowers, weeds, trees, 
shrubs, plants, or herbage of any kind from the cemeteries as soon as, in their judgment, they become unsightly, 
dangerous, detrimental, or diseased, or when they do not conform to the standard maintained in the cemeteries. 
 
§13.3 Window boxes, tubs, large urns and other similar containers will be allowed unless unsightly or interfering 
with maintenance, at which time they will be removed without notice.  Vases or baskets of fresh or artificial 
flowers, wreaths or plants in boxes, are allowed anytime adjacent to monuments.  Vases or urns not properly 
painted or otherwise cared for or not filled with plants will be removed.  
 
§13.4 The owner of any lot shall have the right to erect any proper stones, monuments or sepulchral structure 
thereon.  Headstones and monuments shall be set on crushed rock or a concrete slab set at least three feet 
below ground level.  
 
§13.5 Shrubs may be cultivated on the lot.  However, if any shrub or tree, situated in or upon any lot becomes 
objectionable by means of it roots, branches or otherwise becomes detrimental to adjacent lots and avenues, or 
dangerous or inconvenient to persons passing, it shall be the duty of the Cemetery Superintendent to notify the 
owner of the lot about the removal of said shrub or such parts thereof as are thus objectionable, detrimental, 
dangerous or inconvenient.  If no known owner, the Superintendent, with the advice and consent of the 
Cemetery Committee, shall have the authority to remove such objectionable shrub. 
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§13.6 No person shall have the right to plant a tree, hedge, enclosure of any kind or erect a fence 
without first obtaining the written permission of the cemetery superintendent, who shall seek the 
advice of the Cemetery Committee before granting such permission. 
 
§13.7 Any person who shall carry any alcoholic beverages, fireworks, or play golf, use a mini-bike, 
bicycle, snowmobile or allow his dog to run at large within the area of the town cemeteries or cause 
any damage to trees, shrubs, or flowers therein, shall be excluded from the cemeteries by the 
superintendent or his designate and if such person refuses to leave, he shall be subject to criminal or 
civil prosecution. 
 
§13.8 Any person who willfully injures any fence, ornamental tree, walk, grave, monument or 
tombstone in any town cemetery shall be subject to criminal or civil prosecution under state law and 
shall also be required to pay for any damage done.  The Town of Manchester shall not be responsible 
for the cost of erecting any gravestones that have been damaged through criminal action, vandalism or 
weather conditions, when the perpetrator cannot be identified. 

 

§14. REVIEW OF POLICIES.  
 

§14.1 This ordinance shall be reviewed by the Cemetery Committee on a yearly basis at least two 

months before the Annual Town Meeting to allow for any recommended changes to be brought before 

the Board of Selectmen for approval before being presented to the voters at the Town Meeting. 

 

§15. PRIVATE BURING GROUNDS.  
 

§15.1 Any person wishing to do so may establish a family burying ground by setting aside a piece of 

land no larger than ¼ acre, fencing it or marking the boundaries in some permanent manner and 

recording a description with the municipal clerk of the municipality where it is located and with the 

Registrar of Deeds.  A burying ground is set aside forever once a body is buried and it cannot be 

conveyed when the land around it is sold. 
  
§15.2 The Town of Manchester assumes no responsibility for the maintenance, protection or 
appearance of private cemeteries or burying grounds.  
 

§15.3 Private burying grounds are subject to the same restrictions as other cemeteries and cannot be 
located within 100 ft. of a neighbor’s house or 200 feet of his well if the neighbor protests in  
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writing.  Persons wishing to establish a family burying ground should consult with neighbors and with 
municipal officials concerning local land use ordinances.  Private burial grounds are regulated by the 
same requirements as any public burial ground. 
 

§16. STIPULATIONS. 
 
§16.1 Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid by any 
court of law, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the ordinance which can 
be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications, and to this end, the provisions of the 
ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

§17. EFFECTIVE DATE.   
  
§17.1 The effective date of this ordinance will be upon passage at the annual town meeting.  

 

Article 54.  Shall an ordinance entitled the “Solid Waste, Recycling & Anti-Littering Ordinance” be 

enacted? 

 

SELECTMEN RECOMMEND ENACTMENT (5-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

 

SOLID WASTE, RECYLING & ANTI-LITTERING ORDINANCE 
 

§1 IDENTIFICATION AND DEFINITION OF ORDINANCE 
 

§1.1 Identification. This ordinance shall be known as the SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING & ANTILITTERING 

ORDINANCE herein referred to as "the Ordinance." 
 
§1.2 Purpose. The purpose of the Ordinance is to protect the health, safety and general well being of 
the citizens of Manchester, enhance and maintain the quality of the environment and conserve natural 
resources by providing for a comprehensive, rational and effective means of regulating the disposal of 

solid waste, encouraging recycling, reuse and reduction of solid waste  in the Town of Manchester in 
accordance with the provisions of Title 38 M.R.S.A., §1301 et seq. (the Maine Hazardous Waste, Septage 
and Solid Waste Management Act) and Title 30-A M.R.S.A., §3001 et seq. (Ordinance Powers of 

Municipalities and Counties). 
 
§1.3 Applicability. This ordinance applies to all domestic, residential, public and private  Institutional, 

commercial and industrial generators of solid waste in the Town of Manchester. 
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§1.4 Definitions.  Except as provided below, the definitions set forth in Title 38 M.R.S.A. §1303-C as 
amended (Solid Waste Definitions) apply to the Ordinance and are incorporated herein by reference. 
Any word not otherwise defined shall have its ordinary meaning. 
 
§1.4A. Acceptable Waste is that solid waste generated in the Town of Manchester which may include, 
but is not limited to: household waste, garbage, commercial waste, recyclables, white goods, 
construction and demolition debris, yard waste.  
 
§1.4B. Unacceptable Waste is that portion of solid waste which is not defined as acceptable waste and 
includes, but is not limited to: sewage and its derivatives, junk vehicles, wet cell batteries, dead animals 
or portions thereof, hazardous waste, infectious waste, household hazardous waste, universal waste, or 
special waste such as asbestos, industrial process waste, contaminated or uncontaminated oils, or 
contaminated soils. 
 

§1.4C. Commercial Hauler is any person who carries solid waste for compensation. 

 

§2 REGULATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 

 

§2.1 Rule Making Powers. The Board of Selectmen may adopt written solid waste rules and regulations 

for the processing, recycling and disposal of solid waste. The Board of Selectmen shall have the 

authority to establish and collect fees for the licensing of commercial haulers. Fees established 

hereunder shall reflect actual administrative costs incurred by the town related solid waste disposal and 

recycling. 

 

§2.2 Enforcement Powers. Town Officials as designated by the Board of Selectmen are authorized to 

enforce the requirements of this ordinance and such Solid Waste Rules and Regulations as are enacted 

under §2.1. 

 

§2.3 Unlawful Activities. 
 
§2.3A. No Dumping. No person shall permanently dispose of tires, waste or refuse of any kind upon any 

land within the corporate limits of the Town of Manchester unless such land has been designated by 
the Town as a solid waste disposal facility, except that land clearing debris and yard waste may be 
disposed of on the owner’s land, or with the land owner’s permission, as permitted by regulations of 
the Maine Department of Environmental Protection. 
 
§2.3B. No Littering. No person shall throw or deposit or cause to be thrown or deposited any solid waste 

within the Town in any street, gutter, sidewalk, parking area, park, any other public  lace, or into or on 
any body of water within or adjacent to the Town. 
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§2.3C. No strewing from vehicles. No person operating a vehicle shall permit or cause any solid waste to 
leave such vehicle in violation of §§2.3.A or B above. No person shall transport any solid waste over any 
public way, street or place within the limits of the Town except when the material is covered in such a 
manner that the refuse shall not be strewn along public ways. Proof that solid waste has blown from or 
fallen from any vehicle shall be prima facie evidence that said vehicle was not sufficiently covered. 
 
§2.4 Unlawful Burning. No person shall burn trash or waste except as provided by Chapter 102 Rules of 
the Department of Environmental Protection. 
 
§3 COLLECTION AND TRANSPORT 
 
§3.1 Curbside Collection. Any person using curbside collection of solid waste or recyclables shall 
contract with a commercial hauler who is licensed to operate in the Town of Manchester under §6.1 
below. 

 

§3.1A. Curbside Bagged Waste & Material placed at curbside for disposal must be in plastic bags or other 

containers which are acceptable to the hauler. Bags and containers shall contain no unacceptable waste 

and shall be placed at curbside not more than 24 hours before scheduled pick up. 

 

§3.1B. Curbside Recyclables. Material placed at curbside for recycling must be clean, prepared according 

to current regulations and placed in an approved container at the curbside. Commercial haulers may 

reject material which is not prepared according to specifications. Recycling containers shall be placed at 

the curbside no earlier than 24 hours before scheduled pick up. 

 

§3.1C. Home Storage. Storage of material prior to disposal or recycling shall be the responsibility of the 

dwelling, commercial or industrial facility owner or the primary occupants. Storage shall be in closed 

containers or by other similar methods to preclude odors, rodents, insects or other public nuisances. 

Recyclables shall be kept clean and dry. 

 
§3.2 Drop-off Facility. Any person using the drop-off facility shall deliver or cause to be delivered 
material during the hours of operation of the facility. Material shall be prepared in the manner 

prescribed by the rules and regulations adopted under §2.1 and deposited at the station under the 
supervision of the drop-off facility attendant. The attendant may reject any material not meeting 
specifications and require its removal from the site.  
 
§3.3 Direct Delivery to Designated Facility. Acceptable solid waste may be delivered directly to the 

designated disposal and recycling facilities. Any fees charged by the facility are the responsibility of the 
user. 
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§4 COMMERCIAL HAULING 

§4.1 Licensing. Each commercial hauler shall secure a license from the Town Clerk in order to operate 
within the borders of the Town. The license shall be valid from July 1 to June 30 of the following year. In 
order to obtain a license, an applicant must: 

a. pay an administrative licensing fee, if so established under §2.1. 

b. all licensed commercial haulers will submit an annual report to the town prior to the issuance of a 
yearly license stating the number of commercial and residential customers served by the hauler 
including a quarterly tonnage report of recyclables and municipal solid waste collected from said 
customers within the community.  Said report shall be considered as evidence that a commercial trash 
hauler is engaged in recycling. Any hauler who fails to make a reasonable effort to recycle may be 
denied license renewal.   

§4.2. Disposal Tipping Fees. All tipping and other fees associated with solid waste disposal will be paid 
by the commercial hauler.  No commercial hauler shall deliver recyclable solid waste from generators 

outside the Town to a facility and cause the Town to pay a tipping fee. 

§5 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

§5.1 General. Violations of this ordinance shall be enforced under the provision of 30-A M.R.S.A. §4452 

as amended (Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances) as land use violations. The penalties set 

forth in the aforementioned statute shall apply to violations of this ordinance. (Currently these penalties 

include fines of not less than $100 nor more than $2,500 for each day of a violation.) 

§5.2 Municipal Costs of Enforcement. In addition to the foregoing penalty provisions, any person 

violating any provision of this ordinance shall be liable to reimburse the Town for costs of enforcement 

including reasonable attorney fees and court costs. This provision shall not preclude the town from 

seeking and obtaining equitable relief. 

§5.3 Suspension of Licenses. In addition to the foregoing penalty provisions, any commercial hauler 

who violates any provision of this ordinance may be punished by the revocation of his/her license to 

operate in the Town of Manchester for up to two years and the forfeiture of all license  and permit fees. 
The Board of Selectmen may revoke a license after notifying an operator of a violation and conducting a 

hearing on the matter. 
 
§5.4 Costs of Disposal. In the case of illegal dumping upon private or public land, the costs of clean up 
and disposal shall be borne by the person so dumping, unless no person is so charged. 
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§6 STIPULATIONS 
 
§6.1 Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid by any court 
of law, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be 
given effect without the invalid provisions or applications, and to this end, the provisions of the 
ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

§7 EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
§7.1 The Effective Date of this ordinance will be upon passage at the annual town meeting.   
  
After length discussion , motion was made and seconded to vote by a show of hands and not  secret 
ballot.  Ordinance was passed with a vote of; 
56— yes 

36— No 
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LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCES    

 
Article 55.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
which are Architectural Standards to be included in Land Use Ordinance as Article II – Section 6(V) with 
supplementary photographs as Appendix E.  These standards would only apply to primarily new 
development requiring conditional use or special exception permits in Village and General 
Development Districts.  Architectural Standards to be added are as follows:   
 

V.   Architectural Standards   
 

1. Purposes. The purposes of these provisions are: (a) to foster community identity and place-
making within Manchester’s Village (MVD) and General Development (GDD) districts by 
encouraging commercial architecture inspired by traditional New England examples without 

dictating a particular style; (b) to discourage monotonous, unsightly, and inharmonious 

commercial development; (c) to protect and enhance the Town’s appeal to residents and 

visitors, and thus support desirable investment and occupancy of commercial properties;(d) to 

ensure that commercial buildings are designed to human scale which addresses comfort, 

enjoyment, and safety of the users. 

 

2. Applicability. All provisions in Article II Section 6.N of this ordinance apply only to structures 

subject to site plan review in MVD and, unless screened from view of public road and adjacent 

properties, in GDD. Natural evergreen screening is preferred. Structures within a commercial /

industrial business park and which front on an access road within the park are exempt from 

these standards provided they cannot be seen from any other road or adjacent property.  

 

3. Design Standards. 

a. Design. The architecture of new buildings shall be influenced by traditional New England 
building forms and town-making patterns, the nature of the intended use, and other 
site-specific factors. Contemporary architectural styles are appropriate, provided they 

meet these standards. (See Photos 1 and 5 – 17 in Appendix E.) Alternative designs with 
historical merit, within the New England tradition, may be approved if the applicant 
demonstrates that the alternative design is recognized in the literature by the Maine 
Historical Preservation Commission as being a style that is worthy of preservation. 

b. Human scale. The forms, massing, and openings of buildings shall be proportional to the 
size of the human figure using architectural elements such as integral planters, 

recessed openings, windows with divided panes, building mounted light fixtures, 
dormers, cupolas, projecting rooflines, covered walkways, colonnades, and similar 
features.(See Photos 2-4 in Appendix E.) 
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c. Free Standing Accessory Structure. Such structures, for example freestanding ATMs, cart 
corrals, etc., shall be coordinated with the principal building through repetition of 
architectural forms, materials, colors, and detailing unless screened from view of public 
roads and adjacent properties. 

d. Energy Conscious Design. Energy conservation is encouraged  
e.  Roadways & Parking. Parking shall be located to the rear or side of  buildings where          
practicable. Vehicle access connections to adjacent parking areas are strongly encouraged. 
f.  Pedestrian Circulation. Connections to existing or proposed public sidewalk in the Village 

district shall be included in the site plan      encourage pedestrian use. Access routes 
leading to or from primary structures shall minimize conflicts with pedestrian circulation. 
Where walkways must cross driveways, motorists shall be made aware of pedestrians 
through signage, lighting, raised crosswalks, changes in paving or other devices. 

 
4. Renovations and Additions. (See Photos 18-20 in Appendix E.) 

a. Alterations. Where the existing building currently meets the design standards, proposed 

renovations must be designed to respect the proportions, fenestration patterns, and 

details of the original building. Where the existing building does not meet the design 
standards, the owner is strongly encouraged to upgrade the entire structure. 

b. Design. Applications to the planning board that involve renovations and additions shall 

show all improvements as well as the existing structure. A narrative shall accompany the 

application which explains the designer’s intent to relate the old with the new. 

c. Materials. Where existing buildings meet the design standards, additions or renovations 

shall complement or match the materials, form, and color, and detailing of the original 

structure. Where the original building does not meet the standards, the owner shall 

demonstrate how the materials used in the renovation will complement the existing 

structure. 

 

5. Facade Design. (See Photos 21-31 in Appendix E.) 

a. Façade Treatment. The front façade shall contain a clearly defined, highly visible 
customer entrance and three or more of the following: canopies, overhang rooflines to 

shelter pedestrians, recesses or projections in keeping with scale of the building, 
arcades, gables and dormers, pilasters, peaked roof forms, or other features designed to 
add scale and visual interest to the façade. Strong shadow lines, changes in rooflines, 

pilasters and other architectural details, patterns in the surface material, and wall 
openings can all be effectively used to add visual interest and scale to the façade. 
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b. Offsets. Facades greater than 100 feet shall incorporate wall plane projections or 
recesses having a depth of at least 3% of the length of the façade and extending at least 
20 percent of the length of the façade. Where the plane of the wall is broken, the offset 
shall be proportional to the building’s height and length. Projections used to break up 
the mass of the building shall extend to the ground. 
c. Rear and Side Facades. Rear and side facades shall be designed to match or 
complement front façade architectural treatment unless not used for public access and 
screened from view of road and adjacent property owners. 

c. Site Design.  Lighting, landscaping, and other exterior elements shall be designed to 
complement and be in scale with the façade, avoid visual or functional conflicts, and 
retain visibility, and shall be consistent with the ordinance. 

d. Trim. Windows, door openings, ventilation openings, and other forms of exterior 
fenestration in frame construction shall be trimmed. 

e. Windows and Shutters. Windows should be vertical in orientation, or square. If shutters 

are used, they must be sized appropriate for the openings and provided for all windows 

on a given wall. 

f. Functional Elements. When these elements need to be part of the façade (e.g., 

downspouts, vents) they shall be incorporated into the architecture through detailing or 

matching colors. Meters, utility banks,  

HVAC equipment and other exterior service elements shall be contained in service 

closets, behind walls, or located out of view from the public, to the greatest extent 

practicable. If these are located on or near the side or rear façade buffering is also an 

option. Building elevations presented for Planning Board review shall show the location 

and treatment of all functional elements. 

g. Illustrations. All elevations of proposed buildings shall be evaluated as part of the design 

review. 

 

6. Building Materials. (See Photos 32-49 in Appendix E.) 

              a. Materials. Traditional, high quality building materials common to northern New 

England  (e.g., brick, clapboard, shingles or other similar products) shall be used as the 
primary siding material. Contemporary materials that have the same visual 
characteristics (e.g., cement plank clapboards, or vinyl siding) are acceptable if attention 

is paid to detailing (e.g., corners, trim at openings, changes in material). Painted MDO 
plywood is acceptable when used in combination with traditional materials to give it 
scale. Long-term maintenance needs shall be a consideration in building material 

selection. Highly reflective or processed materials (e.g., metal or plastic panels, brushed 
aluminum, bronzed glass, concrete block, T-111, untreated plywood, dryvit, etc.) and 
multicolored  brick (incorporating occasional white bricks in a random pattern) shall not 

be used on the primary or front facing façade. 
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b. Colors. Traditional colors commonly found in New England villages are appropriate for all 
components of the building. Façade colors shall be low reflectance. The use of high 
intensity, high reflectance, chrome, metallic, or fluorescent colors or black is prohibited 
as the primary color.  

c. Trim and Detailing. Where the trim is used, it shall be a color that complements to the 
building’s primary color. Neon tubing shall not be allowed as an exterior trim or accent 
material.  

 
7. Awnings & Canopies. (See Photos 50-53 in Appendix E.) 

a. Location. Where used, awnings shall be an integral architectural element and shall be 
located over windows and doors.  

b.  Materials. Awnings and canopies shall not be made of reflective  materials. Their color   
shall match or complement the building façade.  

c.  Design Elements. Awnings shall not be used as advertising features but may identify the 

business. Backlit awnings are prohibited. Graphics on canopies or awnings are counted 

toward the total signage area. 

 

8. Rooflines.  (See Photos 54-56 in Appendix E.) 

a. Pitched Roofs. Buildings with pitched roofs are strongly encouraged. Where pitched roofs 

are used, the minimal pitch shall be at least 5/12. Projecting rooflines shall be designed 

to create strong shade/shadow patterns. 

b. Shapes To Be Avoided. False Mansard, A-frames, and other non-traditional roof forms 

shall not be used as the primary roof line. 

c. Flat Roofs. Flat roofs, especially on single –story isolated buildings, are discouraged in 
most applications. Where flat rooflines are used, the design shall create no horizontal 

line greater than 100 feet without a break, using features found on traditional New 

England buildings. (See Large Scale Buildings for additional design standards.) 

Parapets. Where parapets are used to break up the roofline, the height of the parapet shall 

be at least 5 percent of the total length of the wall. 

Preferred Materials for Pitched Roofs. Composite asphalt shingles and standing seam non-
glare metal, and other alternative materials consistent with New England styles are 
required for visible roofing. High gloss roofing materials are prohibited. Roofing 
materials shall complement the color and texture of the building’s façade. Roof colors 
shall be muted earth tones or a color that is darker than the façade. Stripes and patterns 

on the roof are prohibited. 
Roof-Mounted Equipment.   Mechanical and other equipment mounted on rooftops must 

be screened from public view to the greatest extent practicable. Where used, screening 
for roof-mounted equipment shall be designed as an integral part of the architecture to 

complement the building’s mass and appearance. 
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9. National Franchises.  (See Photos 57-67 in Appendix E.) 
a. Franchise Styles. New England regional prototypes from national franchises are permitted 

provided they meet the Design Standards. Buildings that are stylized to the point where 
the structure is a form of advertising are not acceptable. 

b. Coordination of Site Features. Applicants shall provide the Planning Board with 
illustrations that demonstrate how site features and accessory structures will be 
coordinated with the principal building. These may include dumpster screens, storage 
buildings, refrigeration lockers, playgrounds, signage, and lighting. 

 
10. Large Scale Buildings.  (See Photos 68-76 in Appendix E.) 

a. Design and Massing. Large structures shall be designed to break up their mass into 
smaller visual components through the use of projections, recesses, and varied façade 
treatments. (See Façade Treatment). 

b. Site Design. Scale reductions of large buildings shall be reinforced by appropriate site 

features such as pedestrian shelters, large trees, clearly defined entrances, and site 

furnishings. 

c. Architectural Details. Architectural details shall be used to reduce the scale and uniformity 

of large buildings. Elements such as colonnades, pilasters, gable ends, canopies, display 

windows, and light fixtures can be effective measures to add human scale. 

d. Facades and Exterior Walls. Horizontal facades greater than 100 feet in length shall 

incorporate wall plane projections or recesses having a depth of at least 3% of the 

length of the façade and extending at least 20% of the length of the façade. Other 

devices to add interest to long walls include strong shadow lines, changes in rooflines, 

pilasters and architectural details, patterns in the surface material, and wall openings. All 

façade elements shall be coordinated with the landscape plan to ensure balance, 

proportion, and continuity. 

e. Smaller Retail Stores. Where principal buildings contain additional , separate stores which 

in total occupy less than 20,000 square feet of gross floor area, with separate, exterior 

customer entrances, windows shall be trimmed and include visually prominent sills, 

shutters or other such forms of framing. 
f. Entryways. Each principal building shall have a clearly defined, highly visible customer 

entrance featuring three or more of the following: canopies, overhangs or recesses 

providing shelter, arcades leading to entrances, raised corniced parapets over the door, 
peaked roof forms, outdoor patios, architectural details such as moldings integrated into 
building design, or other features designed to add scale and visual interest to the 
buildings. Where additional stores are located in the principal building and customer 
entrances to such stores are outdoors, each additional store shall conform to the above 

requirements. All components used to enhance entranceways or provide a distinctive 
look shall be designed or detailed as integral parts of the whole building. 
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g. Features and Amenities. Large scale buildings shall contribute to the establishment or 
enhancement of the pedestrian environment by providing at least two of the following: 
patio/seating area, pedestrian area with benches, window shopping walkway, kiosk 
area, water fountain, or other focal features or amenities that enhance the pedestrian 
environment. Any such area shall have direct access to existing or proposed public 
sidewalk. Such features shall be constructed of materials that are equivalent in quality to 
the building and landscape. 

 
11. Linear Commercial Buildings. (See Photos 77-85 in Appendix E). 

a. Design. Buildings with multiple store fronts(e.g., strip shopping centers, one story office 
buildings) shall be visually unified through the use of complimentary architectural forms, 
similar materials and colors, consistent details, and coordinated signage. Variations in 
the front setbacks are strongly encouraged to add visual interest, create spaces for 
common entries, outdoor eating/social spaces, and landscaped spaces. 

b. Scale. Linear structures shall include architectural elements designed to provide shelter, 

encourage pedestrian movement, and visually unite the building. These can include 

covered walkways, open colonnades, arcades, and similar features.  

c. Entrances. Public entrances to such structures shall be clearly delineated to convey a 

sense of individuality. This can be accomplished by architectural detailing, roofline 

breaks, landscaping, or a combination of these elements.  

d. Rooflines. Variations in rooflines, detailing, and building heights shall be included to 

break up the scale of connected linear buildings. 

e. Focal Points. Linear commercial buildings shall include a focal point - such as a raised 

entrance way, a clock tower, or other architectural elements – to add visual interest and 

help reduce the scale of the building. 

 

12. Service Stations, Convenience Stores, & Car Washes. (See Photos 86 & 87 in Appendix E). 

a. Design. Windows or other forms of fenestration shall be included on the façade facing 

the street which shall be treated as the front façade.  
b. Orientation.  Service stations, convenience stores, and similar uses shall be sited to face 

the street.  
c. Canopies. Service stations canopies shall be visually compatible with the main structure. 

Backlighting inside the canopy or awning is prohibited.  Graphics on canopies or 

awnings are counted toward the total signage area. 
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13. Drive-Thru. (See Photos 88 and 89 in Appendix E). 
a. Design. Where drive-through windows are allowed, they shall be incorporated into the 

design of the building through their scale, color, detailing, massing, and other 
architectural treatments. Drive-through elements shall not face the street, unless there is 
no alternative for safety or security. 

b. Location. Drive-thrus shall be located at the side or rear of the building and avoid facing 
public or private roadways. Where drive-thrus are located at the rear, consideration shall 
be taken to make the site as visible as possible to ensure the safety of patrons. 

c. Canopies. Drive-through canopies shall be visually compatible with the main structure. 
Bands of bold color on the canopy, backlighting inside the canopy, and advertising 
graphics other than the business name or logo are prohibited. Graphics on canopies or 
awnings are counted toward the total signage area.        
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Definitions 
Arcade:  An arched or covered passageway. 
 
Architectural Feature:  A prominent or significant part or element of a building, structure or site. 
 
Building Mass: The height, width, and depth of a structure. 
 
Business Park: A commercial/industrial subdivision limited to light industrial and related business 
uses including warehousing. These parks might house the following functions: distribution, sales 
and service, business services, small light manufacturing, laboratory work, and research and 
development.  
 
Community Character: The image of a community as defined by such factors as its built 
environment, natural features, open space, architectural styles of buildings, infrastructure, and the 
type and quality of public facilities and services. 
 
Fenestration: Window treatment in a building or on a building façade 
 
Human Scale: The relationships of a development and/or its elements in terms of size, height, 
bulk, intensity, and aesthetics, to human beings. 
 
Massing: The grouping of three-dimensional forms to achieve variation (as in a building or 
landscape planting). 
 
Large Scale Building:  Any structure within purview of Architectural Standards which is equal to or 
greater than 20000 square feet in floor area. 
Parapet:  The extension of the main walls of a building above the roof line. 
 
Scale:  The relationships of a development and/or its elements in terms of size, height, bulk, 
intensity, and aesthetics, to one another and the surroundings. 
 
Screen or Screening: A means of substantially concealing a structure or use from view. 
 
Site Furniture: Constructed, above-ground objects, such as outdoor seating, kiosks, bus shelters, 
sculpture, tree grids, trash receptacles, and fountains that have the potential for enlivening and 
giving variety to streets, sidewalks, plazas and other outdoor spaces used by the public. 
 
Vernacular Architecture: Architectural forms which are indigenous to an area, having developed in 
response to available materials, environmental conditions, and local traditions. The New England 
Style of architecture includes, and only if Article V Section 3a Sentence (two) 2 applies but is not 
limited to, Cape Cod, Georgian, Neoclassical, Colonial, Classic Revival, New England farmhouse, 
Romantic Revival, Federal, and Queen Anne.   
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Explanation of Amendment: Two recent developments shed light on why architectural standards 

are being proposed this year. One development was a “Grow Smart” study completed in October by the 
Brookings Institute pointing out strengths, weaknesses, and courses of action needed for this State to 
prosper. One of the foremost recommendations was that a sense of place, a connection with New 
England traditions, and a local distinctiveness need to be fostered in Maine towns to realize prosperity. 
On the other hand becoming more like Anyplace USA is moving in the wrong direction according to the 
report. The other development is that site work for Packard’s development of big box (and some 
medium box) stores behind the Kennebec Journal building is well under way. This development is not 
far from Manchester. According to results from a community survey a majority are concerned that such 
development will come to Manchester in the near future. When it does arrive will the appearance of 
new commercial buildings reflect elements of traditional New England styles (without dictating a 
particular style) or will the appearance of new commercial buildings be the same we’d find anywhere in 
the US? Will sense of place in Manchester be fostered or eroded by the design of such development?  
 

In 2005 the Planning Board proposed architectural standards for new commercial development in the 

Village district and the General Development district primarily along Western Avenue. The standards 

were narrowly defeated at the 2005 Town Meeting by opponents who voiced concern that there had not 

been sufficient time to study, understand and evaluate them. Toward addressing this criticism the Board 

of Selectmen appointed a committee representative of interests concerned with the appearance of new 

commercial development along Route 202. Four of the ten-member committee own highway-dependent 

businesses. 

 

The Architectural Standards Committee decided to work from the architectural standards 

proposed in 2005 for several reasons: 1) the standards have been used successfully by a number of 

communities and are considered to be model standards; 2) the standards are moderate; striking a fair 

balance between very strict standards (such as those seen in use in Freeport) and mere architectural 

guidelines (suggestions) which are ineffective; 3) the standards are made clear by an appendix of 

photos contrasting existing Maine commercial developments that meet the standards with those which 

do not. For a year beginning March 2006, with numerous meetings, the committee has worked hard 
reviewing the standards to determine what seems most applicable to Manchester.     
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Article 56.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding ARTICLE II. (LAND USE DISTRICTS AND USES), Section 8. (Performance Requirements and 
Standards for Specific Activities) (I) Subdivisions (2) Application Procedures (c) (page 85) which presently 
reads:  
 
2.Application Procedures.  

 
At the pre-application stage of the site plan review process, the applicant shall submit a map 
showing the significant natural features including the land cover, water bodies and wetlands, soil 
types from Kennebec County Soils Survey, and the elevation based on the USGS 7.5 Minute 
Topographic Quadrangle.  In addition, two sketch plans shall be submitted for major subdivisions 
with one showing the proposed layout as creative open space subdivision, both indicating the 
appropriate common open space and significant natural features.  If only a creative open space 
subdivision is proposed then only one sketch plan is necessary.  Each lot, or combination of lots, 
shall have an area suitable for subsurface waste water disposal according to the Maine 
Subsurface Disposal rules, unless it is serviced by public sewer.  The number of buildable lots or 
dwelling units in the open space development shall not exceed the number of lots or dwelling 
units in the standard subdivision at this stage.  

 
A written statement shall describe the natural features which will be preserved or enhanced by 
the cluster approach.  Natural features include, but are not limited to, moderate to high value 
wildlife and waterfowl habitats, moderate to high yield aquifers, prime agricultural soils, scenic 
areas, and other important natural and historic sites. 
 
These procedures (except two (2) sketch plans provision described above) are clarified and 
detailed in the following step by step process: 
 
a. Pre-Application Discussion:  A Pre-Application Discussion is strongly encouraged between the 

applicant, the site designer(s), and the Planning Board.  The purpose of this informal meeting 
is to introduce the applicant and the site designer(s) to the Town’s zoning and subdivision 
regulations and procedures, and to discuss the applicant’s objectives in relation to the Town’s 
ordinance requirements.  The applicant may choose to bring an Existing Features Plan as 
described in 2b to this meeting. 

 

b. Existing Features (Site Analysis) Plan:  An Existing Features Plan analyzing each site’s special 
features is required for all proposed subdivisions.  At a minimum the plan must include: 

 
(1) a contour map based at least upon topographic maps published by the U.S. Geological 

Survey; 
 

(2) the location of Primary Conservation Areas which include constraining elements such as 
steep slopes (20% or more), wetlands, hydric soils, moderate to high value aquifers, 
surface waters including intermittent streams; 

 
(3) soil boundaries as shown on county USDA Soil Conservation Service medium-intensity 
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maps particularly delineating hydric soils (Primary Conservation Areas) which include the 
following types:  Biddeford, Limerick, Monarda, Ridgebury, Rifle, Saco, Scantic, 
Scarborough, Togus, and Vassalboro.  (Note a high intensity soils map based on test pits 
may be advantageous in determining less area with hydric soils.) 

 
(4) the location of other non-buildable areas which include rights-of-ways and easements, and 

portions in Resource Protection District, and portions utilized for storm water 
management facilities; 

 
(5) the location of Secondary Conservation Areas which include significant features such as 

open fields and meadows, scenic views into or out from the property, natural drainage 
ways, stone walls, tree lines, mature woodlands, moderate to high value wildlife habitat, 
rock outcrops, and existing historic structures (e.g. farmhouses, barns, etc.), roads and 
trails, and hilltops. 

 
The Existing Features Plan shall identify both Primary Conservation Areas [listed in I2b(2) 
and (3)], and Secondary Conservation Areas [listed in I2b(4)]. 

 
c.  The Net Buildable Acreage (NBA) for minor subdivisions shall be calculated by taking the total 

area of the parcel and subtracting non-buildable areas. 
 

For creative open space subdivisions the NBA is the remainder from open space set aside 
(open space ratio multiplied by total parcel) subtracted from total parcel. 

 
For other major subdivisions and high impact subdivisions the NBA is the remainder from 
the sum of non-buildable areas and open space to be set aside (open space ratio multiplied 
by total parcel) subtracted from total parcel. 

 
d.  The Number of Allowable lots for a subdivision is calculated by dividing the net buildable 

acreage by the density permitted (See Table 10). 
 

e.  For minor subdivisions see subsection I3j and consider tentative location of buildings on site. 
 
f.  For major subdivisions that are creative open space subdivisions the open space to be set 

aside is calculated by multiplying the total parcel size by the open space ratio Table 10.  
However primary and secondary conservation areas must be part of the open space set aside 
which may increase size of dedicated area required.  Note:  Non-buildable areas are included 
in the open space set aside.  Major commercial subdivisions in GD and MV districts are 
exempt from open space set aside. 

 
g.   For major subdivisions that are standard cluster subdivisions the open space to be set aside is 

calculated by multiplying the total parcel by the open space ratio.  (Note:  typically major 
standard cluster subdivisions require significantly more open space to be set aside than major 
creative open space subdivisions do because non buildable acreage must be set aside in 
addition to open space set aside from open space ratio calculation for standard cluster 
subdivisions.)  The net buildable acreage for these subdivisions is determined by subtracting 
the open space to be set aside plus non-buildable areas from the total parcel. 
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h.  For high impact subdivisions the open space to be set aside is calculated by multiplying the 

total parcel by the open space ratio (See Table 10).  The net buildable acreage for these 
subdivisions is determined by subtracting the open space to be set aside plus non-buildable 
areas from the total parcel. 

 
To be amended as: 
 
2.Application Procedures.  

 
At the pre-application stage of the site plan review process, the applicant shall submit a map 
showing the significant natural features including the land cover, water bodies and wetlands, soil 
types from Kennebec County Soils Survey, and the elevation based on the USGS 7.5 Minute 
Topographic Quadrangle.  In addition, two sketch plans shall be submitted for major subdivisions 
with one showing the proposed layout as creative open space subdivision, both indicating the 
appropriate common open space and significant natural features.  If only a creative open space 
subdivision is proposed then only one sketch plan is necessary.  Each lot, or combination of lots, 
shall have an area suitable for subsurface waste water disposal according to the Maine 
Subsurface Disposal rules, unless it is serviced by public sewer.  The number of buildable lots or 
dwelling units in the open space development shall not exceed the number of lots or dwelling 
units in the standard subdivision at this stage.  

 
A written statement shall describe the natural features which will be preserved or enhanced by 
the cluster approach.  Natural features include, but are not limited to, moderate to high value 
wildlife and waterfowl habitats, moderate to high yield aquifers, prime agricultural soils, scenic 
areas, and other important natural and historic sites. 
 
These procedures (except two (2) sketch plans provision described above) are clarified and 
detailed in the following step by step process: 
 
a.  Pre-Application Discussion:  A Pre-Application Discussion is strongly encouraged between the 

applicant, the site designer(s), and the Planning Board.  The purpose of this informal meeting 
is to introduce the applicant and the site designer(s) to the Town’s zoning and subdivision 
regulations and procedures, and to discuss the applicant’s objectives in relation to the Town’s 
ordinance requirements.  The applicant may choose to bring an Existing Features Plan as 
described in 2b to this meeting. 

 
b.  Existing Features (Site Analysis) Plan:  An Existing Features Plan analyzing each site’s special 

features is required for all proposed subdivisions.  At a minimum the plan must include: 
(1)  a contour map based at least upon topographic maps published by the U.S. 

Geological Survey; 
 

(2)  the location of Primary Conservation Areas which include constraining elements such 
as steep slopes (20% or more), wetlands, hydric soils, moderate to high value aquifers, 
surface waters including intermittent streams; 

 
(3)  soil boundaries as shown on county USDA Soil Conservation Service medium-intensity 
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maps particularly delineating hydric soils (Primary Conservation Areas) which include 
the following types:  Biddeford, Limerick, Monarda, Ridgebury, Rifle, Saco, Scantic, 
Scarborough, Togus, and Vassalboro.  (Note a high intensity soils map based on test 
pits may be advantageous in determining less area with hydric soils.) 

 
(4)  the location of other non=buildable areas which include rights-of-ways and 

easements, and portions in Resource Protection District, and portions utilized for 
storm water management facilities; 

 
(5)  the location of Secondary Conservation Areas which include significant features such 

as open fields and meadows, scenic views into or out from the property, natural 
drainage-ways, stone walls, tree-lines, mature woodlands, moderate to high value 
wildlife habitat, rock outcrops, and existing historic structures (e.g. farmhouses, barns, 
etc.), roads and trails, and hilltops. 

 
The Existing Features Plan shall identify both Primary Conservation Areas [listed in I2b(2) 
and (3)], and Secondary Conservation Areas [listed in I2b(4)]. 

 
c.  The Net Buildable Acreage (NBA) for minor subdivisions shall be calculated by taking the total 

area of the parcel and subtracting non-buildable areas. 
  
   The NBA for a creative open space subdivision shall be the lesser: 

The remainder of the total parcel minus the open space set-aside (open 
space ratio x total parcel); or, 

The remainder of the total parcel minus the sum of all non-buildable 
areas. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It clarifies that non-buildable areas cannot be part of net buildable 
acreage. 
 

For other major subdivisions and high impact subdivisions the NBA is the remainder from 
the sum of primary conservation areas and open space to be set aside (open space ratio 
multiplied by total parcel) subtracted from total parcel. 
 

Explanation of Amendment:  It softens this provision by limiting types of non-buildable areas to only 
primary conservation areas to be considered in calculation. 

 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (5 -2) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

Article 57.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding ARTICLE II. (LAND USE DISTRICTS AND USES), Section 8. (Performance Requirements and 
Standards for Specific Activities) (I) Subdivisions (2) Application Procedures (d) (g) (h) (pages 85-86) 
which presently reads:  

d.  The Number of Allowable lots for a subdivision is calculated by dividing the net buildable 
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acreage by the density permitted (See Table 10). 
e.  For minor subdivisions see subsection I3j and consider tentative location of buildings on site. 
 
f.  For major subdivisions that are creative open space subdivisions the open space to be set 

aside is calculated by multiplying the total parcel size by the open space ratio Table 10.  
However primary and secondary conservation areas must be part of the open space set aside 
which may increase size of dedicated area required.  Note:  Non-buildable areas are included 
in the open space set aside.  Major commercial subdivisions in GD and MV districts are 
exempt from open space set aside. 

 
g.  For major subdivisions that are standard cluster subdivisions the open space to be set aside is 

calculated by multiplying the total parcel by the open space ratio.  (Note:  typically major 
standard cluster subdivisions require significantly more open space to be set aside than major 
creative open space subdivisions do because non buildable acreage must be set aside in 
addition to open space set aside from open space ratio calculation for standard cluster 
subdivisions.)  The net buildable acreage for these subdivisions is determined by subtracting 
the open space to be set aside plus non-buildable areas from the total parcel. 

 
h.  For high impact subdivisions the open space to be set aside is calculated by multiplying the 

total parcel by the open space ratio (See Table 10).  The net buildable acreage for these 
subdivisions is determined by subtracting the open space to be set aside plus non-buildable 
areas from the total parcel. 

 
To be amended as:   

 
d.  The Number of Allowable lots for a subdivision is calculated by adding the non-buildable 

areas and subtracting the sum from the parcel, then dividing the remainder by the density 
permitted (See Table 10). 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It clarifies that same number of lots that would be allowed in a 
conventional “cookie cutter” subdivision is allowed in an open space subdivision. 

 
e. For minor subdivisions see subsection I3j and consider tentative location of buildings on site. 
 
f.  For major subdivisions that are creative open space subdivisions the open space to be set 

aside is calculated by multiplying the total parcel size by the open space ratio Table 10.  
However primary and secondary conservation areas must be part of the open space set aside 
which may increase size of dedicated area required.  Note:  Non-buildable areas are included 
in the open space set aside.  Major commercial subdivisions in GD and MV districts are 
exempt from open space set aside. 

 
g.  For major subdivisions that are standard cluster subdivisions the open space to be set aside is 

calculated by multiplying the total parcel by the open space ratio.  (Note:  typically major 
standard cluster subdivisions require significantly more open space to be set aside than major 
creative open space subdivisions do because non buildable acreage must be set aside in 
addition to open space set aside from open space ratio calculation for standard cluster 
subdivisions.)  The net buildable acreage for these subdivisions is determined by subtracting 
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the open space to be set aside plus primary conservation areas from the total parcel. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It is consistent with changes in Article II, Section 8, (I) (2) (c) paragraph 3. 

 
h.  For high impact subdivisions the open space to be set aside is calculated by multiplying the 

total parcel by the open space ratio (See Table 10).  The net buildable acreage for these 
subdivisions is determined by subtracting the open space to be set aside plus primary 
conservation areas from the total parcel. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It is consistent with changes in Article II, Section 8, (I) (2) (c) paragraph 3. 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7 - 0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 58. To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 16, 2006 
regarding APPENDIX A. (Definitions) Section 2 (Definitions), Net Buildable Acreage (NBA) on page 161 
which presently reads: 
 
Net Buildable Acreage (NBA):  For minor subdivisions the remainder from the sum of non-buildable 
areas subtracted from the total area of the parcel; for creative major open space subdivisions the 
remainder from open space set aside (open space ratio multiplied by total parcel) subtracted from total 
parcel; for other major subdivisions and high impact subdivisions the remainder from the sum of non-
buildable areas and open space to be set aside (open space ratio multiplied by total parcel) subtracted 
from the total parcel.  Note that 7% of parcel is also deducted to account for roads and parking for all 
subdivisions except creative major open space subdivisions. 
 
To be amended as:   
 
Net Buildable Acreage (NBA):  For minor subdivisions the remainder from the sum of non-buildable 
areas subtracted from the total area of the parcel; for creative major open space subdivisions the lesser 
of :  A) the remainder from open space set aside (open space ratio multiplied by total parcel); or, B) the 
remainder of the total parcel minus the sum of all non-buildable areas; for other major subdivisions and 
high impact subdivisions the remainder from the sum of primary conservation areas and open space to 
be set aside (open space ratio multiplied by total parcel) subtracted from the total parcel.  Note that 7% 
of parcel is also deducted to account for roads and parking for all subdivisions except creative major 
open space subdivisions. 
 
Explanation of Amendment:  It is consistent with changes in Article II, Section 8, (I) (2) (c) paragraphs 2 
and 3. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7 - 0) 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 59.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
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and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 16, 2006 
regarding ARTICLE II (LAND USE DISTRICTS AND USES), Section 8 (Performance Requirements and 
Standards for Specific Activities) (I) Subdivisions (5) on page 95 which presently reads:  
 
5.   Net Buildable Acreage Calculation. 
   a. The net buildable acreage for all subdivisions shall be calculated by taking the total 

area of the lot and subtracting, in order, the following: 
 
    i. Portions of the lot which are unsuitable for development in their natural state 

due to hydric soils. 
    ii. Portions of the lot subject to travel rights-of-way. 
    iii. Portions of the lot located in the Resource Protection District. 
    iv. Portions of the lot covered by surface waters. 
    v. Portions of the lot utilized for storm water management facilities. 

 Portions of the lot with slopes exceeding 20%. 
 Seven (7) percent of the area of the lot to account for roads and parking. 
Portions of the lot encompassing moderate to high value aquifers. 

 
To be amended as: 
 
5.   Net Buildable Acreage Calculation. 
   a. The net buildable acreage for minor subdivisions shall be calculated by taking the total 

area of the lot and subtracting, in order, the following: 
 
    i. Portions of the lot which are unsuitable for development in their natural state 

due to hydric soils. 
    ii. Portions of the lot subject to travel rights-of-way. 
    iii. Portions of the lot located in the Resource Protection District. 

    iv. Portions of the lot covered by surface waters. 
    v. Portions of the lot utilized for storm water management facilities. 

 Portions of the lot with slopes exceeding 20%. 
 Seven (7) percent of the area of the lot to account for roads and parking. 
Portions of the lot encompassing moderate to high value aquifers. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It is consistent with changes in Article II, Section 8, (I) (2) (c). 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (6 – 1)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
 

Article 60.   To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land 
Use and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 16, 2006 
regarding ARTICLE III (SITE PLAN REVIEW), Section 7. (Site Plan Review Application) on page 122 which 
presently reads: 
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Section 7.  Site Plan Review Application 

Applications for Site Plan Review shall be submitted on application forms provided by the Town.  
The complete application form, required fees, and the required plans and related information 
shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer, who shall make a record of its receipt and 
forward the application to the Chairman of the Planning Board. 

 
To be amended as: 
 
Section 7.  Site Plan Review Application 
 

Applications for Site Plan Review follow the format of Article III, Section 7, A-G; whatever is 
applicable, unless a proposal is a minor Shoreland Zoning project which will require a specific 
form instead.  The complete application form, required fees, and the required plans and related 
information shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer, who shall make a record of its 
receipt and forward the application to the Chairman of the Planning Board. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It formulizes what the Planning Board has been doing in practice for 
several years.  Due to the complexity of many proposals, this format helps supply necessary information 
that assists the Planning Board in making informed decisions. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0) 

 Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 61.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding ARTICLE III (SITE PLAN REVIEW) Section 5 (Contents of Site Inventory and Environmental 
Assessment for Major Development Activities) on page 120 which presently reads: 
 

  Two (2) copies of the Site Inventory and Environmental Assessment shall be submitted. 
 
 
To be amended as: 
 
  5.  Nine (9) copies of the Site Inventory and Environmental Assessment shall be submitted. 
 
Explanation of Amendment:  It will provide all Board members, the secretary and Code Enforcement 
Officer with a copy of an applicant’s materials and enables them to review the information prior to a 
meeting.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0)  
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Article 62.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding the addition to ARTICLE III (SITE PLAN REVIEW), Section 7. (Site Plan Review Application) on 
page 122 which presently reads:  
 
Section 7.   Site Plan Review Application 
 

Applications for Site Plan Review shall be submitted on application forms provided by the Town.  
The complete application form, required fees, and the required plans and related information 
shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer, who shall make a record of its receipt and 
forward the application to the Chairman of the Planning Board. 

 
The Planning Board may modify or waive any of the following submission requirements if it 
determines that, because of the size of the project or circumstances of the site such requirement
(s) would not be applicable or would be an unnecessary burden upon the applicant and would 
not adversely affect the abutting landowners or the health, safety, and welfare of the Town. 

 
The submission shall contain at least the following exhibits and information: 

 
  1. Two (2) copies of the completed and signed application form (with any attachments) and 

two (2) sets of maps or drawings, all of which shall contain the information listed below, 
unless additional copies are requested by the Board. 

 
  2. One (1) original of all maps and drawings on durable, permanent, transparency material. 
 
   The maps or drawings shall be at a scale sufficient to allow review of the items listed under 

approved criteria, but in no case shall be more than fifty (50) feet to the inch for that 
portion of the tract of land being proposed for development. 

 
 
To be amended as: 
 
Section 7.  Site Plan Review Application 
 

Applications for Site Plan Review shall be submitted on application forms provided by the Town.  
The complete application form, required fees, and the required plans and related information 
shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer, who shall make a record of its receipt and 
forward the application to the Chairman of the Planning Board. 

 
The Planning Board may modify or waive any of the following submission requirements if it 
determines that, because of the size of the project or circumstances of the site such requirement
(s) would not be applicable or would be an unnecessary burden upon the applicant and would 
not adversely affect the abutting landowners or the health, safety, and welfare of the Town. 

 
The submission shall contain at least the following exhibits and information: 
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  1. Two (2) copies of the completed and signed application form (with any attachments) and 
two (2) sets of maps or drawings, all of which shall contain the information listed below, 
unless additional copies are requested by the Board. 

 
2.  One (1) original of all maps and drawings on durable, permanent, transparency material.   
 

The maps or drawings shall be at a scale sufficient to allow review of the items listed under 
approved criteria, but in no case shall be more than fifty (50) feet to the inch for that portion 
of the tract of land being proposed for development. 

 
Applicants of major developments shall submit an electronic scan of site plans. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  It will expedite access to site plans. 
  

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS (7 - 0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 63.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding the addition to the end of ARTICLE III (SITE PLAN REVIEW), Section 8. (Criteria for Review and 
Approval of Site Plans and Subdivisions) on page 136: 
  
The Chairman of the Planning Board is authorized to sign on behalf of the Planning Board permits 
concerning conditional use and special exception approvals.  In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice 
Chairman would assume the authorization. 
 
Explanation of Amendment:  It is more efficient to authorize the Chairman to sign the permits than 
having each Board Member sign.  It also formalized what the Board has been doing. 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

Article 64.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding ARTICLE III (SITE PLAN REVIEW), Section 7. (Site Plan Review Application) (F.  Additional 
Application Requirements for Wireless Telecommunication Facilities) (15) on page 129 which presently 
reads: 

15. Elevation drawings, cross-sectional area or silhouette, of the facility, drawn to scale, 
and showing all measurements, both linear and volumetric, showing front, sides 
and rear of the proposed facility including all fencing, supporting system for 
transmission cables running between the tower and accessory structures, control 
panels, antennae, and existing structures and trees.  Reference any design 
characteristics that have the effect of educing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness. 
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To be amended as: 
 

15. Elevation drawings, cross-sectional area or silhouette, of the facility, drawn to scale, 
and showing all measurements, both linear and volumetric, showing front, sides and 
rear of the proposed facility including all fencing, supporting system for transmission 
cables running between the tower and accessory structures, control panels, antennae, 
and existing structures and trees.  Reference any design characteristics that have the 
effect of reducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness. 

16.  
Explanation of Amendment:  It corrects a typographical error. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 65.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding the addition of the following two definitions to APPENDIX A. (Definitions) Section 2 
(Definitions) (starting on page 152): 
 
Accessory Dwelling:  A dwelling unit either attached to a single-family principal dwelling or located on 
the same lot and having an independent means of access. 
 
Explanation of Amendment:  This use is listed in Table of Permissible Uses but is not defined. 
 
Landscaping Contractor:  A contract with three (3) or more pieces of motorized equipment associated 
with landscaping for commercial use. 
 
Explanation of Amendment:  This use is proposed to be added to the Table of Permissible Uses and 
must be defined. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0)  

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

Article 66.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding adding the following to ARTICLE II (LAND USE DISTRICTS AND USES) Section 4 (Land Uses), 
Table 1 which starts on page 18: 

TABLE 1  

Table 

of 

Permissible Uses 

USE/STRUCTURE MV CR GD RR SL AM RP 

COMMERCIAL         

Landscaping Contractor  
N C C C C C N 
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LAND USE DISTRICT 
 

Key to Table 1 
C  Use requires conditional use permit from Planning Board following site plan 

review. 
N  Prohibited use. 

 
Explanation of Amendment:  Landscaping Contractor is not categorized in the Table of Permissible Uses 
and must be added. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0)  
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
Article 67.  To see if the Town will vote to adopt proposed changes to the Town of Manchester Land Use 
and Development Ordinance originally adopted on June 29, 1992 and last amended June 15, 2006, 
regarding ARTICLE II (LAND USE DISTRICTS AND USES) Section 6 (General Performance Requirements and 
Standards (Q) Soil and Water Quality Protection (2) Soil Erosion Control (h) & (i) on page 60 which 
currently reads: 
 
h.  Phosphorous Export.  When a proposed project is within the direct watershed of a great pond, the 

applicant shall make provisions to limit the export of phosphorous from the site 
following completion of the project, consistent with the maximum allowable 
phosphorous standard of 0.02 lbs./acre/year, and consistent with DEP’s Phosphorus 
Control in Lake Watersheds: A Technical Guide to Evaluating New Development.     

 
   i.    Off-Site Phosphorous Mitigation.  The Planning Board may consider an off-site 

phosphorus mitigation plan when an applicant is unable to comply with the 
requirements of section Q, 2.h. due to one or more of the following conditions: soil 
limitations, size of the lot, steep slopes, high on-site phosphorus control development 
cost, and site conditions. 

 
           An off-site phosphorous mitigation plan shall comply with all of the following: 
 

1.   The proposal shall mitigate not less than the amount of phosphorus exported 
from the developed site which exceeds 0.02 lbs./acre/year in accordance with 
DEP’s Phosphorus Control in Lake Watersheds: A Technical Guide to Evaluating 
New Development. 

 
To be amended as:   
 
h.  Phosphorous Export.  When a proposed project is within the direct watershed of a great pond, the 

applicant shall make provisions to limit the export of phosphorous from the site 
following completion of the project in conformance with the State of Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection’s, maximum allowable phosphorous 
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standard, as revised.      
 
   i.    Off-Site Phosphorous Mitigation.  The Planning Board may consider an off-site 

phosphorus mitigation plan when an applicant is unable to comply with the 
requirements of section Q, 2.h. due to one or more of the following conditions: soil 
limitations, size of the lot, steep slopes, high on-site phosphorus control development 
cost, and site conditions. 

 
           An off-site phosphorous mitigation plan shall comply with all of the following: 
 

1. The proposal shall mitigate not less than the amount of phosphorus exported 
from the developed site which exceeds State of Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection’s maximum allowable phosphorus standard, as 
revised. 

 
 
Explanation  of Amendment:  It provides consistency between DEP and Manchester’s Land Use 
Ordinance by adopting the Department of Environmental Protection’s phosphorous export standar5d by 
reference. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDS YES (7-0) 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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EDUCATION-MANCHESTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL      

     
Article 68.  To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for Instructional Salaries and 
Fringe Benefits. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $954,197.00 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
This article provides funds for the salaries and benefits of personnel that provide direct services to 
students.  Also reflected in this account are funds for substitutes. 
 
Article 69. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for Instructional Support. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $38,675.00 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

This article includes, but is not limited to, funds for school supplies, textbooks, professional services and 

equipment, copier maintenance and lease, field trips, and staff development activities such as 

workshops on teaching methods. 

 

Article 70. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for the Operation and 

Maintenance of the School Facilities. 

 

School Committee Recommends: $222,699.00 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

This article includes, but is not limited to, funds for the salaries and benefits of custodial and plant 
maintenance personnel, contracted services including the costs associated with capital improvement 

projects, purchase of equipment, and the purchase costs of electricity, heating oil, gasoline, telephones, 
and other commodities and services necessary to support the physical plant.    
 

Article 71. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for Transportation. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $57,320.00 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

 
This article represents all costs associated with student transportation. This article no longer contains 
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costs associated with field trips. 
 
 Article 72. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for Special Education. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $233,147.00 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
This article represents costs associated with special education services, including resource room, gifted/
talented programs, special services and tuition to outside agencies. 
 
Article 73. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for school administration. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $116,871.00 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

This article includes, but is not limited to, funds for the salaries and benefits for the in-school 

administrative staff including the principal, secretary and other staff associated with the principal’s 

office, postage, general supply and printing costs, technical services, and other costs associated with 

the administration of the school. 

 

Article 74. To see what sum the municipality will be allowed to expend for support services. 

 

 Funds in this area will be allocated as follows: 

 

Assessment $ 18,034.00 

Contingency Account $ 15,000.00 

Cultural Services $   4,531.00 

Food Services $   7,183.00 
Guidance Services $ 29,677.00 
Health Services $ 37,911.00 

Improvement of Instruction $ 21,125.00 
Library/Media $ 48,190.00 
School Committee $ 12,521.00 
Technology $  26,098.00 

Total $220,270.00 

 
School Committee Recommends: $220,270.00 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
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Article 75. To appropriate the Town’s assessment for Union expenses. 
 

School Committee Recommends: $64,244.00 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

This article allocates funds that have been assessed by the School Union #42 School Board.  The Union 
School Board is made up of five members of each of our four communities. This assessment is required 
by law.  
 
The following three articles are summary articles and do not raise additional funds beyond what has 
already been approved by the voters.  If adjustments have been made to the previous articles, these 
changes shall have to be reflected in the upcoming articles. 
 
Article 76.  To see what sum the municipality will appropriate for the total cost of funding public 

education from kindergarten to grade 5 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act 

(Recommend $1,515,349.) and to see what sum the municipality will raise as the municipality’s 

contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 5 as described in 

the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-

A, section 15688. 

 

School Committee Recommends: 

State Share $  768,521.00 

Local Share $  746,828.00 

Total $1,515,349.00 

 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

The school administrative unit’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
kindergarten to grade 5 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the amount 
of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise in order to 
receive the full amount of state dollars. 
 

ARTICLE 77 WILL BE DECIDED BY WRITTEN BALLOT 
This Article was voted secret ballot  

39— Yes 
10— No 

 

Article 77.  (Written Ballot Required) Shall the Town of Manchester raise and appropriate $292,074. in 
additional local funds, which exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation model by 

$228,597.00 as required to fund the budget recommended by the School Committee? 
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School Committee recommends $292,074.00 for additional local funds and gives the 
following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding 
model by $228,597.00: 

 
The $228,597.00 that exceeds the 100% EPS funding level is needed to continue programs 
and services presently offered by the District which are not covered, or not fully covered, 
by EPS such as: Contingency - $15,000.00, smaller class sizes and variety of programs such 
as foreign language, art and music - $144,000.00, special education - $10,000.00, 
technology - $10,000.00, operations and maintenance $42,000.00, and food service 
support - 7,000.00. 
The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the District’s local 
contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 5 as 
described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for 

the annual debt service payment on non-state-funded school construction projects or the 

non-state-funded portion of a school construction project that will help achieve the District 

budget for educational programs. 

 

Article 78.  To see what sum the municipality will authorize the school committee to expend for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007 and ending June 30, 2008 from the school administrative unit’s 

contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 5 as described in 

the Essential Programs and Services Funding act, non-state-funded school construction projects, 

additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, 

unexpended balances, tuition receipts, state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools. 

 

School Committee Recommends: $1,907,423.00 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 
This is a summary article. 

It does not raise any additional money—it authorizes the municipality to spend the money appropriated 
in the previous articles, plus other revenues such as tuition payments from other municipalities. 
 

Article 79.  To authorize the School Committee to expend other revenue from state, federal, local and 
private sources for the support of the schools. 
 

School Committee Recommends: OUGHT TO PASS 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 
 

This article allows the School Committee to pursue and use funds that may be received through 
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unexpected grants or donations, and applications that are made by members of the Manchester 
Elementary School staff or community.  Examples of some of the funding received last year are: NCLB 
Grant, Federal REAP, and Local Entitlement.  The estimated income for the coming year is $67,000.00 
 
Article 80. To see if the voters will authorize the School Committee, by a majority vote of those 
committee members present at a regular school committee meeting to increase any line item up to five 
percent (5%) by transferring funds from another line balance or miscellaneous income to pay for the 
unexpected expenses. (The authorized budget will not be exceeded due to a positive vote on this article 
and any increase or decrease in one item will be offset be a corresponding increase or decrease in 
another line item(s). 
 

School Committee Recommends: OUGHT TO PASS 
Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

 

Article 81. Shall the Manchester School Committee be authorized to enter into a lease purchase 

agreement in a principal amount not to exceed $109,630.00 for a term of not more than 

twelve years for energy conservation equipment and improvements at Manchester 

Elementary School? 

  

School Committee Recommends:  OUGHT TO PASS 

Motion made, seconded and passed as read 

 

 
 This article authorizes the School Committee to enter into a multiyear agreement with 

Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. to provide energy savings and conservation 

measures, energy management, and facility improvement measures that will enhance the 

buildings, reduce the costs associated with heating, lighting, and ventilation, and 
purchase new and improved equipment.  The cost of this project will be paid by the 

guaranteed energy savings, creating a revenue neutral project.   
 

 

 
Adjourned 11:10 PM on  6-14-2007  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
August 8, 2006 
 
Board of Selectmen 
Town of Manchester 
Manchester, Maine 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Manchester, Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the Town’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Town’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial 

statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation.  We 

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the government activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the 

aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Manchester, Maine as of June 30, 2006, and the 

respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year ended, in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

The management’s discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison information on pages 
3 through 8 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information 

required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiring management regarding the methods 
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not 

audit the information and express no opinion on it. 
 



 

132 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Manchester’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, 
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The 
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  The introductory 
section and statistical tables have not yet been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion. 

 

 

Certified Public Accountants 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

  

 Brief Discussion of the Basic Financial Statements 

Using This Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a 
longer-term view of the Town's finances.  Fund financial statements follow.  For governmental activities, 
these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for 
future spending.  Fund financial statements also report the Town's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements by providing information about the Town's most significant funds.  The 
remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the Town acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 

Reporting the Town as a Whole 

One of the most important questions asked about the Town's finances is, "Is the Town as a whole better 

off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?"  The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 

Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps 

answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting which is similar to the accounting, used by most private-sector companies.  All of the current 

year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Town's net assets and changes in them. You can think of the Town's 

net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the Town's financial 

health, or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net assets are one 

indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  You will need to consider other 

nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the condition of the 

Town's infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the Town. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into three kinds of 
activities: 

• Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including 

general government, protection, highways and roads, and education.  Property taxes, charges 
for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities – The Town charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of 

the cost of certain services it provides.  The Town’s school lunch program is reported here. 

● Fiduciary activities – These are assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity, or as an agent 

for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and other funds. 
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Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds 

  

Our analysis of the Town's major funds begins on page 9.  The fund financial statements begin on page 
12 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the Town as a whole.  Some 
funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Town 
Selectmen may establish many other funds to help them control and manage money for particular 
purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other 
money (like grants received from the Department of Education).   

 

The Town’s two kinds of funds – governmental and proprietary – use different accounting approaches. 

 

● Governmental funds - Most of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental 

funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left 

at year-end that are available for spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting 

method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial 
assets that can readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide 

a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the basic 

services it provides.  Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there 

are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 

Town's programs.  We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 

governmental funds in reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements. 

 

• Proprietary funds – When the Town charges customers for the services it provides – 

whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town – these services are generally 
reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all 

activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.  In 
fact, the Town’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the 
business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more 

detail and additional information, such as cash flows for proprietary funds. 
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The Town as Trustee 

The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its students’ activity funds..  These fiduciary activities are 
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets on page 19.  We exclude these activities from 
the Town's other financial statements because the Town cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations.  The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for 
their intended purposes. 

Condensed Financial Information 

The Town as a Whole 

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets, and changes in net assets of the Town's governmental 
activities and business-type activities.  The Town's total net assets for governmental activities decreased 
by $333,533 from $19.3 million to $18.9 million and by $702 from $(2,756) to $(3,458) for business-type 
activities.  

Unrestricted net assets - the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 

constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - decreased 

by $245,970 from $1.5 million to a balance of $1.2 million at the end of this year for governmental 

activities.   

 

 

G ov ernm enta l B usiness-ty pe
A c tiv itie s A c tiv ities

A s s ets :
C urrent and other as s ets 1,623,464$           5,691$            
C apital A s s ets 17,544,554           -                     
T otal A s s ets 19,168,018$         5,691$            

L iabilities :

C urrent L iabilities 170,714$              9,149$            
L ong-term Debt Outs tanding 144,327               -                     
T otal L iabilities 315,041$              9,149$            

Net A s s ets :

Inves ted in C apital A s s ets ,
  Net of related Debt 17,441,454$         -$                    
  R es tric ted for:  G eneral fund 169,680               -                     
                        S pec ial revenues 11,606                 -                     
                        P ermanent funds 17,254                 -                     
Unres tric ted Net A s s ets 1,212,983             (3,458)             

T otal Net A s s ets 18,852,977$         (3,458)$           

T a b le  1
T ow n of Ma ncheste r, Ma ine

Net A sse ts
J une  30, 2006



 

136 

Revenues and Expenses 

Revenues for the Town's governmental activities increased by 1.94%, while total expenses increased 
by 8.74%.   

 

G ov ernm e nta l B usiness- ty p e
A c tiv ities A c tiv ities

R e v enue s
T ax es :
     P roperty 3,035,716$     -$                   
     E x c is e 499,641         -                   
Intergovernmental 1,380,920       12,810           
C harges  for s ervic es 36,359           33,183           
Mis c ellaneous 78,023           465               
   T otal R evenues 5,030,659       46,458           

E x p enses
  C urrent:
    G eneral government 408,866         -                   
    P ublic  s afety 180,412         -                   
    Highway s  and roads 874,682         -                   
    S anitation 37,908           -                   
    L eis ure and rec reation 24,582           -                   
    R ec  maintenanc e 6,176             -                   
    Organizations  and s oc ial s ervic es 6,481             -                   
    Unc las s ified 108,599         -                   
    E duc ation 3,374,709       -                   
    C obbos s ee waters hed 18,170           -                   
    C ounty  tax 240,932         -                   
    F irs t park 19,536           -                   
    C apital ex penditures 47,113           -                   
    S c hool lunc h -                    59,345           
    Debt s ervice:
            Interes t 3,841             -                   
     T otal E x pens es 5,352,007       59,345           

T rans fers  -  internal ac tivity (12,185)          12,185           

C hange in Net A s s ets (333,533)        (702)              

Net A s s ets  -  J uly  1 R es tated 19,186,510     (2,756)           

Net A s s ets  -  J une 30 18,852,977$   (3,458)$          

T a b le  2
T ow n of Ma nc heste r, Ma ine

C ha ng e  in Net A sse ts
F o r the  Y ea r E nded  J une  30, 2006
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The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5.4 million compared to $4.9 million last year.  
However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on pages 10 and 11, the amount our taxpayers 
ultimately financed for these activities through taxes was only $5.2 million because some of the cost 
was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($36,359) or by other governments and 
organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions ($141,656).   

Analysis of Balances and Transactions of Individual Funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2006, the net book value of capital assets recorded by the Town decreased by $383,388 

over the prior year.  The decrease is the result of current year depreciation $395,864 less capital 
additions of 12,476. 

 

 

 

T otal Net

C os t of T otal C os t of

S ervic es R evenue S ervic es

G overnmental ac tivities :

  G eneral G overnment 408,866$        28,423$           380,443$        

  P ublic  s afety 180,412          -                     180,412          

  Highway s  and roads 874,682          41,052            833,630          

  S anitation 37,908           1,250              36,658           

  C ounty  tax 240,932          -                     240,932          

  E duc ation 3,374,709       100,604           3,274,105       

  Other 234,498          6,686              227,812          

T otal governmental 5,352,007       178,015           5,173,992       

B us ines s - ty pe ac tivities :
  S c hool lunc h 59,345           45,993            13,352           

T otal bus ines s - ty pe 59,345           45,993            13,352           

T otal government and bus ines s - ty pe 5,411,352$     224,008$         5,187,344$     

F or  the  Y ea r  E nd ed J une  30, 2006
Ne t C ost of S e rv ic e s

T ow n  of Ma nc heste r , Ma ine
T a b le  3
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Debt 

 

At June 30, 2006, the Town had $89,304 in bonds outstanding versus $101,147 last year, a decrease of 

13.26%, as shown in Note 6 of the financial statements.  

 

Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions 

 
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

 

The Town has steadily maintained a sufficient undesignated fund balance to sustain government 

operations for a period of approximately two months, while also maintaining significant reserve 

accounts for future capital and program needs. 

 

Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and 

creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the 
money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Town Finance Dept. at, P.O. Box 18, Manchester, Maine 04351-0018. 

G overnmenta l B usiness-type
Activ ities Activ ities

Land 551,083$           -$                     
B uildings  and improvements 361,838             -                       
E quipment, F urniture and F ix tures 167,013             -                       
Infras tructure 16,464,620        -                       

Total 17,544,554$      -$                     

T able 4
T own of Manchester, Maine
C apita l Assets J une 30, 2006

(Net of Deprecia tion)
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STATEMENT A 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 G overnmental B us ines s -T y pe

A c tivities A c tivities T otal
A S S E T S
  C urrent as s ets :
    C as h 217,272$      1,924$        219,196$      
    Inves tments 1,306,164     -                 1,306,164     
    A c counts  receivable (net allowance for uncollec tibles ):
      T axes 10,615         -                 10,615          
      L iens 64,731         -                 64,731          
      Other 3,927           1,043          4,970            
     Inventory -                  2,724          2,724            
     Due from other funds 20,755         -                 20,755          
  T otal current as s ets 1,623,464     5,691          1,629,155     

  Noncurrent as s ets :
    C apital as s ets :

      L and, infras truc ture, and other as s ets  not being deprec iated 551,083       -                 551,083        
      B uildings  and vehic les  net of ac cumulated deprec iation 16,993,471   -                 16,993,471    
  T otal noncurrent as s ets 17,544,554   -                 17,544,554    

T OT A L  A S S E T S 19,168,018$ 5,691$        19,173,709$  

L IA B IL IT IE S
  C urrent liabilities :
    A c counts  pay able 12,877$       -$                12,877$        
    A c c rued pay roll 113,961       -                 113,961        
    Due to other funds 11,606         9,149          20,755          
    P repaid tax es 4,900           -                 4,900            
    Other liabilities 12,017         -                 12,017          
    C urrent portion of long-term obligations 15,353         -                 15,353          
  T otal current liabilities 170,714       9,149          179,863        

  Noncurrent liabilities
    Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations :
      B onds  pay able 76,968         -                 76,968          
      C apital leas e pay able 10,779         -                 10,779          
      A c c rued compens ated abs ences 56,580         -                 56,580          
  T otal noncurrent liabilities 144,327       -                 144,327        

T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 315,041       9,149          324,190        

NE T  A S S E T S
  Inves ted in capital as s ets , net of related debt 17,441,454   -                 17,441,454    
  R es tric ted for:  G eneral fund 169,680       -                 169,680        
                        S pec ial revenues 11,606         -                 
                        P ermanent funds 17,254         -                 
  Unres tric ted 1,212,983     (3,458)         1,209,525     
T OT A L  NE T  A S S E T S 18,852,977   (3,458)         18,849,519    

T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A ND NE T  A S S E T S 19,168,018$ 5,691$        19,173,709$  

S ee ac company ing independent auditors ' report and notes  to financ ial s tatements .
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STATEMENT B 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
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STATEMENT B (CONTINUED) 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 

B us iness -
G overnmenta l type

A ctivities A ctivities T ota l

C hanges  in net as sets :
  Net (expens e) revenue (5,173,992)     (13,352)        (5 ,187,344)     

  G enera l revenue:
    T axes

 P roperty taxes , levied for genera l purpos es 3,035,716      -                    3 ,035,716      
 E xc is e taxes , levied for genera l purpos es 499,641         -                    499,641         

    G rants  and contributions  not res tric ted to
       s pecific  programs 1,239,264      -                    1 ,239,264      
    C ha rges  for services -                      -                    -                      
    Mis cellaneous 78,023           465               78 ,488           
    T rans fers  -  interna l activity (12,185)          12 ,185         -                      
  T ota l genera l revenue and trans fers 4 ,840,459      12 ,650         4 ,853,109      

C hange in net as s ets (333,533)        (702)             (334,235)        

NE T  A S S E T S  -  J UL Y  1 , 2005 R E S T A T E D 19,186,510    (2 ,756)          19 ,183,754    

NE T  A S S E T S  -  J UNE  30, 2006 18,852,977$  (3 ,458)$         18 ,849,519$  

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financia l s ta tements .
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STATEMENT C 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 
 

All
General Nonmajor

Fund F unds Total
AS S E TS
  Cash 200,018$       17,254$      217,272$      
  Investments 1,306,164      -                1,306,164     
  Receivables (net of allowance for 
    uncollectibles):
    Taxes 10,615          -                10,615         
    L iens 64,731          -                64,731         
    Other 3,927            -                3,927           
  Tax acquired property -                   -                -                  
  Due from other funds 9,149            11,606       20,755         
TOTAL AS S E TS 1,594,604$    28,860$      1,623,464$   

LIABILITIE S  AND F UND E QUITY
  Liabilities
    Accounts payable 12,877$        -$              12,877$       
    Due to other funds 11,606          -                11,606         
    Accrued payroll 113,961        -                113,961       
    Accrued compensated absences 56,580          -                56,580         
    Deferred tax revenues 65,812          -                65,812         
    Other liabilities 12,017          -                12,017         
    P repaid taxes 4,900            -                4,900           
TOTAL LIABILITIE S 277,753        -                277,753       

F und E quity
  Unreserved, reported in:
    General Fund:
      Designated 169,680        -                169,680       
      Undesignated 1,147,171      -                1,147,171     
    S pecial Revenue F und:
      Designated -                   11,606       11,606         
    P ermanent funds -                   17,254       17,254         
TOTAL F UND E QUITY 1,316,851      28,860       1,345,711     

TOTAL LIABILITIE S  AND F UND
  E QUITY 1,594,604$    28,860$      1,623,464$   
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STATEMENT C (CONTINUED) 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2006 

 

Total
Governmental

F unds

Total F und E quity 1,345,711$    
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement are different because:
  C apital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
     therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation 17,544,554    
  Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
    and therefore are deferred in the funds shown above:
    T axes and liens receivable 65,812           
   L ong-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
     therefore are not reported in the funds:
     B onds payable (89,304)          
     C apital lease payable (13,796)          

Net assets  of governmental activities 18,852,977$ 

S ee accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT D 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 
 

All Totals
General Nonmajor Governmental

F und F unds F unds
RE V E NUE S
  Taxes 3,047,904$ -$              3,047,904$   
  E xcise taxes 499,641      -                499,641       
  Intergovernmental 1,195,147   95,014       1,290,161     
  Charges for services 36,359       -                36,359         
  Miscellaneous revenues 77,145       878            78,023         
TOTAL  RE V E NUE S 4,856,196   95,892       4,952,088     

E XP E NDITURE S
  Current:
    General government 398,241      -                398,241       
    P ublic safety 146,598      -                146,598       
    Highways and roads 533,770      -                533,770       
    S anitation 37,908       -                37,908         
    Leisure and recreation 24,582       -                24,582         
    Rec maintenance 6,176         -                6,176           
    Organizations  and social service 6,481         -                6,481           
    Unclassified 17,568       91,031       108,599       
    E ducation 3,284,033   -                3,284,033     
    Cobbessee watershed 18,170       -                18,170         
    County tax 240,932      -                240,932       
    F irs t park 19,536       -                19,536         
    Capital expenditures 44,057       -                44,057         
    Debt service:
       P rincipal 11,843       -                11,843         
       Interes t 3,841         -                3,841           
TOTAL  E XP E NDITURE S 4,793,736   91,031       4,884,767     

E XCE S S  RE V E NUE S  OV E R
  (UNDE R) E XP E NDITURE S 62,460       4,861         67,321         

OTHE R F INANCING S OURCE S
  P roceeds from bond issuance -                -                -                  
  Trans fers in -                -                -                  
  Trans fers out (12,185)      -                (12,185)        
TOTAL  OTHE R F INANCING 
  S OURCE S  (US E S ) (12,185)      -                (12,185)        

E XCE S S  OF  RE V E NUE S  AND OTHE R 
  S OURCE S  OV E R  (UNDE R) 
  E XP E NDITURE S  AND OTHE R US E S 50,275       4,861         55,136         

F UND BALANCE S  - J ULY  1 RE S TATE D 1,266,576   23,999       1,290,575     

F UND BALANCE S  - J UNE  30 1,316,851$ 28,860$      1,345,711$   

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financial statements.
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STATEMENT E 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 

 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 

Net change in fund ba lances  -  tota l governmenta l funds  (S ta tement D ) 55,136$        

A mounts  reported for governmenta l activities  in the S ta tement of A ctivities
  (S ta tement B ) are different because:

G overnmenta l funds  report capita l outlays  as  expenditures  while governmenta l activities
  report deprecia tion expense to a llocated those expenditures  over the life of the assets :
   C apita l as set purchases  capita lized 12,476         
   D eprecia tion expense (395,864)     

(383,388)     

R evenues  in the S ta tement of A ctivities that do not provide current financia l 
  resources  are not reported.
  T axes  and liens receivable (12,188)        

D ebt proceeds  provide current financia l resources  to governmenta l funds , but
  long-term liabilities  in the S ta tement of Net A ssets . (7,951)          

R epayment of long-term debt principa l is  an expenditure in the governmenta l
  funds, but the repayment reduces  long- term liabilities  in the S ta tement of
  Net A ssets 14,858         

C hange in net assets  of governmenta l activities  (S ta tement B ) (333,533)$    

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financia l s ta tements .



 

146 

STATEMENT F 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

 
BALANCE SHEET – ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

S chool L unch
P rogra m

A S S E T S
  C urrent a s s ets :
    C as h 1,924$             
    A ccounts  receivable (net a llowance for
      uncollec tibles ) 1 ,043               
     Inventory 2 ,724               
     D ue from other funds -                       
  T ota l current a s s ets 5 ,691               

T OT A L  A S S E T S 5 ,691$             

L IA B IL IT IE S  A ND  NE T  A S S E T S
  C urrent lia bilities :
    A ccounts  payable -$                      
    D ue to other funds 9 ,149               
  T ota l current liabilities 9 ,149               

NE T  A S S E T S
  Unres tricted (3 ,458)             
T OT A L  NE T  A S S E T S (3 ,458)             

T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A ND  NE T  A S S E T S 5 ,691$             

S ee accompa nying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financ ia l s ta tements .
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STATEMENT G 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
 

S chool L unch
P rogram

OP E R A T ING  R E V E NUE S
  Intergovernmental revenue 12,810$           
  C ha rges  for services  33,183            
  Other 465                  
T OT A L  OP E R A T ING  R E V E NUE S 46,458            

OP E R A T ING  E X P E NS E S
  S a la ries 29,332            
  B enefits 8,446               
  F ood 17,734            
  Other 3,833               
T OT A L  OP E R A T ING  E X P E NS E S 59,345            

OP E R A T ING  INC OME  (L OS S ) (12,887)           

NON-OP E R A T ING  INC OME  (E X P E NS E )
  T rans fers  in 12,185            
  T rans fers  out -                       
T OT A L  NON-OP E R A T ING  INC OME
  (E X P E NS E ) 12,185            

E X C E S S  OF  OP E R A T ING  INC OME
  (L OS S ) OV E R  NON-OP E R A T ING
  INC OME  (E X P E NS E ) (702)                 

NE T  A S S E T S  -  J UL Y  1 (2,756)             

NE T  A S S E T S  -  J UNE  30 (3,458)$            

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financia l s ta tements .
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STATEMENT H 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
 

 
S chool L unch

P rogram
C A S H F L OW S  F R OM OP E R A T ING  A C T IV IT IE S :
  R eceipts  from cus tomers 33,648$           
  Intergovernmenta l receipts 12,671            
  Interna l a ctivity -  receipts  (payments ) from/to
    other funds 13,463            
  P ayments  to s uppliers  and employees (58,780)           
Net cash provide by opera ting activities 1,002               

NE T  INC R E A S E  (D E C R E A S E ) IN C A S H 1,002               

C A S H - J UL Y  1 922                  

C A S H - J UNE  30 1,924$             

R E C ONC IL IA T ION OF  OP E R A T ING  INC OME
  (L OS S ) T O NE T  C A S H P R OV ID E D  (US E D ) B Y
  OP E R A T ING  A C T IV IT IE S :
Opera ting income (los s ) (702)$               
A djus tments  to reconcile operating income to net
  cash provided (used) by operating activities :
  D eprecia tion expense -                       
C hanges  in opera ting as sets  and liabilities :
  (Increase) decrease in accounts  receivable (139)                 
  (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                       
  (Increase) decrease in inventory 565                  
  (D ecrease) inc reas e in due to other funds 1,278               
NE T  C A S H P R OV ID E D  (US E D ) B Y  A C T IV IT IE S 1,002$             

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report and notes  to financia l s ta tements .
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STATEMENT I 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

S tudent
A ctivity

A S S E T S
  C urrent a s s ets :
     C a s h 10,732$          
T OT A L  A S S E T S 10,732$          

L IA B IL IT IE S
  D epos its  held for others 10,732$          
T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 10,732            

NE T  A S S E T S
  Held in trus t for s pec ia l purpos es -                       
T OT A L  NE T  A S S E T S -                       

T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A ND  NE T  A S S E T S 10,732$          

S ee accompa nying independent auditors ' report and notes  to fina nc ia l s ta tements
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TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
The accounting policies of the Town of Manchester conform to generally accepted accounting principles 
applicable to governmental units.  The following is a summary of the more significant of such policies. 
 
The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing 
GAAP for state and local governments through it pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  
Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or 

contradict GASB pronouncements.  Although the Town has the option to apply FASB pronouncements 

issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the Town has chosen not to do 

so.  The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the Town are discussed 

below. 

 

In June of 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved 

Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State 
and Local Governments.  Certain of the significant changes in the Statement include the following: 

 

The financial statements include: 

 

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the Town’s overall 

financial position and results of operations. 

 

Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Town’s activities, including 
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.). 

 
A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.  These and other changes are 
reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements). 
 

Principles Determining Scope of Reporting Entity 

The financial statements of the Town consist only of the funds of the Town of Manchester, Maine. 
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TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements 

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole) 
and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).  Both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  The Town’s 
lunch program is categorized as business-type activities.  All other activities of the town are categorized 
as governmental.   

 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental activity and business-type 

columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a full accrual, 

economic resources basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term 

debt and obligations.  The Town's net assets are reported in three parts - invested in capital assets, net 

of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets.  The Town first utilizes restricted 

resources to finance qualifying activities.   

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Town's 

functions and business-type activities (general government, public safety, etc.).  The functions are also 

supported by general government revenues (property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, 

miscellaneous revenues, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 

depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.   Program revenues must be 

directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.  Operating grants include operating-

specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects 

capital-specific grants. 

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, intergovernmental 

revenues, interest income, etc.). 

The Town does not allocate indirect costs.  All costs are charged directly to the corresponding 
department. 

The government-wide focus reflects the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the change in the 
Town’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities. 
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TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements   

 

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in the individual funds in the fund financial 
statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 

comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.  The various 

funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. 

The following fund types are used by the Town: 

1.Governmental Funds: 

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of 

financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.  The 

following is a description of the governmental funds of the Town: 

a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  It is used to account for all financial 

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

b. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 

legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

c. Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town pursuant to a trust agreement.   

 

2.Proprietary Funds: 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
assets, financial position, and cash flows.  The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are 

those similar to businesses in the private sector.  Operating revenues include charges for services, 
intergovernmental reimbursements and other miscellaneous fees which are a direct result of the 
proprietary activity.  Non-operating revenues are any revenues which are generated outside of the 
general proprietary activity, i.e. interest income.  The following is description of the proprietary funds of 

the Town: 
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TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to 
external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a 
pledge of net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including 
capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) established fees and charges based on a pricing 
policy designed to recover similar costs. 

3.Fiduciary Funds: 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore 
are not available to support Town programs.  The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net 

assets and are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-

type activities categories.  Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column, GASB 

Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or 

expenses of either the fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 

determination of major funds.  The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial 

statements. 

The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (agency).  

Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, 

private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these 

funds are not incorporated into the government-wide financial statements. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 

accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 

1.  Accrual 

Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and fiduciary fund financial 

statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

2.  Modified Accrual 

 

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; 
i.e., both measurable and available.  "Available" means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  Expenditures are generally 

recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.  The 

exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, 

is recognized when due. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the trust funds consider all purchased government 

securities to be held on to for three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 

It is the Town’s policy to value investments at fair value.  None of the Town’s investments are reported 

at amortized cost.  The Town Treasurer is authorized by State Statues to invest all excess funds in the 

following: 

• Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities. 

• Certificates of deposits and other evidences of deposits at banks, savings and loan 

associations, and credit unions. 
• Repurchase agreements 

• Money market mutual funds 

 

Inventories 

Inventories of supplies are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase and are not 
included in the general fund balance sheet.  The enterprise fund inventory consists of school lunch 
supplies and food on hand at the end of the year, valued at cost. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Revenue Recognition – Property Taxes – Modified Accrual Basis 

The Town’s property tax for the current year was levied on September 6, 2005, on the assessed value 
listed as of April 1, 2005, for all taxable real and personal property located in the Town.  Taxes were due 
in two installments on October 14, 2005, and April 14, 2006.  Interest on unpaid taxes commenced on 
October 15, 2006, and April 15, 2006, at 7.75% per annum. 

 
Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available.  Available includes those property 
tax receivables expected to be collected within sixty days after year end.  The remaining receivables 

have been recorded as deferred revenues. 

 

The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted 

expenditures for the related fiscal period.  The amount raised in excess of 100% is referred to as overlay, 

and amounted to $54,787 for the year ended June 30, 2006. 

 

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax commitment date if taxes 

are delinquent.  The Town has the authority to foreclose on property eighteen months after the filing of 

the lien if tax liens and associated costs remain unpaid. 

 

The following summarizes the 2006 and 2005 levies: 

 

2006 2005
T ax able as s es s ed value 185,662,540$     147,991,000$  
T ax  rate (per $1,000) 16.35                 19.95              
C ommitment 3,035,583          2,952,420        

L es s :
  A batements  and c ollec tions 2,980,896          2,893,235        
               C urrent y ear tax es
               rec eivable at end of y ear 54,687               59,185            
               P rior y ear tax es
               rec eivable at end of y ear 20,659               45,516            

               T otal tax es  rec eivable 75,346$             104,701$         

C ollec tion rate 98.2% 98.0%
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Encumbrance Accounting 
 
Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures until receipt of 
material or service.  For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end unless designated as 
carry forwards by the annual Town meeting.  The Town of Manchester’s General Fund does not utilize 
encumbrance accounting, therefore, reservation of fund balance is not provided for at June 30, 2006.  
Accordingly, no difference exists between actual results and the applicable budgetary data presented in 
the accompanying combined financial statements. 

 

Budget 

 

The Town of Manchester’s policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations.  The budget is presented 

on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally accepted accounting 

principles. 

 

The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial 

statements: 

 

1. Early in the second half of the year the Town prepared a budget for the fiscal year beginning July 

1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. A meeting of the inhabitants of the Town of Manchester was then called for the purpose of 

adopting the proposed budget after public notice of the meeting was given. 

3.  The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the inhabitants of the Town. 
 
The Town does not adopt budgets for Special Revenue Funds. 

 

Statutory Debt Limit 

In accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061, as amended, no municipality shall incurred debt for 
specified purposes in excess of certain percentages of state valuation of such municipality.  At June 30, 
2006, the Town was in compliance with these limitations. 
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NOTE 2 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets at June 30, 2006: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Town’s investment policies, which follow state statutes, authorize the Town to invest in obligations 
of the U.S Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, other states, provided such securities are rated 
within the three highest grades by an approved rating service of the State of Maine, corporate stocks 

and bonds within statutory limits, financial institutions, mutual funds and repurchase agreements.  
These investment policies apply to all Town funds. 

B alanc e, B alanc e,
7/1/05 A dditions Dis pos als 6/30/06

G overnmental ac tivities
Non-deprec iated as s ets :
  L and 551,083$        -$                  -$                  551,083$       

551,083          -                   -                  551,083        
Deprec iated as s ets :
  B uildings  and improvements 1,014,403       -                   -                  1,014,403      
  E quipment, furniture &  fix tures 482,110          12,476          -                  494,586        
  Infras truc ture 25,187,292     -                   -                  25,187,292    

26,683,805     12,476          -                  26,696,281    
L es s : ac c umulated deprec iation (9,306,946)      (395,864)       -                  (9,702,810)     

17,376,859     (383,388)       -                  16,993,471    

Net c apital as s ets 17,927,942$   (383,388)$      -$                  17,544,554$  

Dam -$                 
P ublic  works 338,535        
F ire 33,814          
S and/s alt s hed 2,377            
T own-wide 10,625          
S c hool Department 7,457            
C as tletown 2,777            
C emeteries 279               

T otal deprec iation ex pens e 395,864$       
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NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a depository financial 
institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in possession of an outside party.  The Town does not have a policy covering 
custodial credit risk. 

At June 30, 2006, the Town’s deposits amounting to $216,599 were comprised of $216,599 which was 
insured by federal depository insurance and consequently was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

 

 

At June 30, 2006, the Town’s investments amounting to $1,324,949 were collateralized with securities 

held by the financial institution in the Town’s name and consequently were not exposed to custodial 

credit risk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE 4 - ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

The allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be $ 0 at June 30, 2006. 

B ank
Ac count T ype B alance

C hec king 7,886$        
S avings 208,713      

216,599      

F air
Inves tment T ype Value

R epurchas e agreements 1,324,949$ 
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Interfund balances at June 30, 2006 consisted of the following individual fund receivables and payables. 

 

 

 

NOTE 6 – LONG TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2006: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following is a summary of outstanding bonds payable: 

 

 

R eceivables P ayables
(Due from) (Due to)

G eneral fund 9,149$          11,606$        
S pec ial revenue funds 11,606          -                    
P ermanent funds -                    -                    
E nterpris e funds -                    9,149            

20,755          20,755          

B alanc e, B alanc e,
7/1/05 A dditions Deletions 6/30/06

B onds  pay able 101,147$      -$                (11,843)$       89,304$       
C apital leas es  pay able 8,860           7,951          (3,015)          13,796         
A c c rued c ompens ated 
  abs enc es 52,512         4,068          -                  56,580         
T otals 162,519$      12,019$      (14,858)$       159,680$      

$ 114,396 , 1998 G enera l Obliga tion B ond due in monthly prinipa l 
payments  va rying from $930 to $1 ,300 , through D ecember, 
2012.  Interes t is  charged a t a  ra te 4.00%  per annum. 89,304$         

T ota l L ong-T erm D ebt 89 ,304$         
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NOTE 6 – LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

The following is a summary of outstanding bond principal and interest requirements for the next five 
fiscal years ending June 30: 

 

 

  

The following is a summary of outstanding capital leases payable: 

The Town leases copiers under a non-cancelable lease agreement dated January of 2002.  The term of 

the lease is for a five year period expiring in January of 2007.  Annual principal and interest payments 

are $3,324. 

The Town leases copiers under a non-cancelable lease agreement dated June of 2006.  The term of the 

lease if for a five year period expiring in August of 2010.  Annual principal and interest payments are 

$3,017. 

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under these leases are as follows: 

 

T ota l
P rincipa l Interes t D ebt S ervice

2007 12,336$          3,348$            15 ,684$          
2008 12,831            2,853              15 ,684            
2009 13,361            2,323              15 ,684            
2010 13,906            1,778              15 ,684            
2011 14,472            1,212              15 ,684            
2012 22,398            706                 23 ,104            

89 ,304$          12 ,220$          101 ,524$        

2007 3,017$             
2008 3,017              
2009 3,017              
2010 3,017              
2011 3,015              
    T ota l minimum lease payments 15 ,083            
       L ess : A mount representing interes t (1 ,287)             
       P resent va lue of future minimum leas e payments 13 ,796$          
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NOTE 6 – LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

All bonds payable and capital leases payable are direct obligations of the Town, for which its full faith 
and credit are pledged.  The Town is not obligated for any special assessment debt.  All debt is payable 
from taxes levied on all taxable property within the Town. 

NOTE 7 – RESERVED NET ASSETS 

The following net assets have been reserved at June 30, 2006 for the following purposes: 

 

 

 

NOTE 8 – GENERAL FUND DESIGNATED FUND EQUITY 

At June 30, 2006, the general fund designated fund balance was made up of the following account 

balances carried forward into the subsequent year’s budget: 

 

 

 

R eserved for genera l fund des igna ted ba lances 169,680$        
R eserved for spec ia l revenue funds 11,606            
R eserved for permanent funds 17,254            

198 ,540$        

C as tletown 7,629$             
E mployee A ccrued A bsences 10,900            
F ire T ruck 20,000            
R evalua tion 28,582            
K erns  Hill R oad 23,000            
S ta te R evenue S ha ring 26,313            
UR IP 490                 
Mt.V ernon R oad 40,922            
T own R oads 108,374         
S chool (96 ,530)          

169 ,680$        
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NOTE 9 – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLANS  

MAINE STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Maine State Retirement System is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible 
employees in the Town and provides retirement, disability and death benefits.  Employees eligible to 
participate in the plan are teachers and other qualified School Department personnel. 

The Town is a non-contributing Department, with the exception of employees who work on federally 
funded programs; therefore, all contributions to the plan are withheld from employees at 7.65% of 
gross wages and remitted to the plan monthly. 

The Town is required to contribute to the plan for the employees who work on federally funded 

programs.  The Town’s contribution to the plan related to such wages was $5,689. 

Additional information and ten year historical trend information can be obtained from a separate report 

issued by Maine State Retirement System. 

 

NOTE 10 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Town offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 

Revenue Code Section 457 and maintained by International City Managers Association Retirement 

Corporation (ICMA).  The plan, available to all full time Town employees, permits them to defer a portion 

of their salary until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 

termination, retirement, death or unforeseen emergency.   

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those 

amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made 

available to the employee or other beneficiary) to be held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of the 
participants and their beneficiaries.  The Town matches up to 5% of employee gross wages.   

It is the opinion of the Town’s management that the Town has no liability for losses under the plan but 
does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. 
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NOTE 11 - EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS  

The following appropriations were exceeded by actual expenditures and the total amount of $29,737 
was funded by the Town’s contingency account: 

 

NOTE 12 – JOINT VENTURE 

The Town has entered into a joint venture with a number of other Towns.  This joint venture is 

considered to be a separate reporting entity and has not been included within the financial statements 

of the Town of Manchester.  A brief description of the joint venture, FirstPark, follows: 

 

FirstPark 

Kennebec Regional Development Authority (FirstPark) was formed in 1998 through an act of the Maine 

State Legislature.  Its primary purposes, according to the act, were to strengthen the financial condition 

of local governments within the geographic territory of the Authority, while combining resources and 

sharing costs for meeting regional and economic development needs and challenges; to promote and 

develop infrastructure and programs for employment and economic development opportunities; and 
other conditions to positively affect regional development.  The intent was that the members would 

fund the start up costs and then jointly benefit from the tax revenues generated later on.  There are 
currently 24 local governments who are members of the Authority, including the Town of Manchester. 

This statute states that the Town may be responsible for liabilities it incurs during its membership that 

may not have been paid for.  It may withdraw its membership at anytime with one years warning to the 
corporation.  An amount for any contingent liabilities at this time cannot be  determined. 

E xcess
    P ublic  safety 20 ,681$          
    S olid was te 1 ,479              
    R ec ma intenance 136                 
    Uncla ss ified 5,568              
    D ebt service -  principa l 1 ,873              

29 ,737$          
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NOTE 12 – JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED) 

The Authority derives some of its revenue from participants, but also receives significant grant revenues 
from the State of Maine.  In fiscal year 2006, the Town of Manchester contributed $19,536.  Complete 
financial statements may be obtained from Kennebec Regional Development Authority/FirstPark at P.O. 
Box 246, Oakland, Maine 04963. 

NOTE 13 – TEACHERS SALARIES  

Teacher employment contracts run from September 1 to August 31 of the next year and payments are 
made throughout that period.  Since teachers’ contracted services are constructively performed at the 

end of the school year, salaries paid to teachers during July and August represent liabilities of the Town 

at June 30, 2006.  The amount of teachers’ salaries earned but unpaid at June 30, 2006 was $109,365 

and has been reflected on the basic financial statements.   

NOTE 14 -  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2005 were restated to include certain accrued 

payroll and compensated absence liabilities.  This is the first year the Town has included teacher 

summer salaries as a liability on its basic financial statements.  The general fund balance as of June 30, 

2005 was restated as follows: 

 

NOTE 15 – CONTINGENCIES 

The Town is contingently liable for its proportionate share of any defaulted debt by entities of which it is 
a member.  At June 30, 2006, the Town’s share was approximately: 

 

F und B alanc e -  J une 30, 2005 65,087$      
  L es s : Acc rued payroll (111,954)     
  L es s : Acc rued c ompens ated abs enc es (47,400)       

F und B alanc e -  J une 30, 2005, res tated (94,267)$     

O uts tanding T own's  T ota l
D ebt P ercentage S hare

C ounty of K ennebec 2,498,504         3.14% 78,453         
C S D  #10 9,013,050         30.93% 2,787,736    

T otals 11,511,554       34.07% 2,866,189    
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Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by 
the Government Accounting Standards Board but are not considered a part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information includes: 

 

●Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
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TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – BUDGETARY BASIS 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 

V a ria n c e
A c tu a l P o s it ive

O rig in a l F in a l A m o u n ts (N e g a t ive )

B u d g e ta ry  F u n d  B a la n c e ,  J u ly  1  re s t a te d 1 , 2 6 6 , 5 7 6$     1 , 2 6 6 , 5 7 6$     1 , 2 6 6 , 5 7 6$     -$                   
R e s o u rc e s  (In flo w s ):
    P ro p e rty  t a x e s 3 , 0 3 5 , 5 8 6      3 , 0 3 5 , 5 8 6      3 , 0 4 7 , 9 0 4      1 2 , 3 1 8           
    E x c is e  ta x e s 4 3 0 , 0 0 0         4 3 0 , 0 0 0         4 9 9 , 6 4 1         6 9 , 6 4 1           
    In te rgo ve rn m e n ta l :
       S t a te  re ve n u e  s h a rin g 1 9 0 , 4 9 2         1 9 0 , 4 9 2         2 0 5 , 4 9 1         1 4 , 9 9 9           
       H o m e s te a d  e x e m p tio n 6 7 , 9 7 8           6 7 , 9 7 8           6 8 , 0 3 2           5 4                 
       S t a te  e d u c a t io n  s u b s id y 7 8 3 , 0 2 9         7 8 3 , 0 2 9         7 8 3 , 0 2 9         -                   
       F E M A -                   -                   6 5 , 2 9 8           6 5 , 2 9 8           
       O th e r 5 5 , 6 7 4           5 5 , 6 7 4           5 4 , 8 4 8           (8 2 6 )              
    G ra n t fu n d  re q u e s ts -                   -                   1 8 , 4 4 9           1 8 , 4 4 9           
    C h a rg e s  fo r s e rvic e s 2 6 , 1 1 5           2 6 , 1 1 5           3 6 , 3 5 9           1 0 , 2 4 4           
    In te res t  o n  ta x e s 8 , 0 0 0            8 , 0 0 0            1 0 , 9 2 7           2 , 9 2 7            
    In te res t  in c o m e 1 4 ,0 0 0           1 4 , 0 0 0           3 9 , 8 4 2           2 5 , 8 4 2           
    R e n ta l in c o m e 6 ,0 0 0            6 , 0 0 0            5 , 0 0 8            (9 9 2 )              
    F irs t  p a rk 2 , 7 6 0            2 , 7 6 0            5 , 0 1 4            2 , 2 5 4            
    M is c e lla n e o u s  re ve n u es 6 , 5 7 3            6 , 5 7 3            1 6 , 3 5 4           9 , 7 8 1            
    T ra n s fe rs  fro m  o th e r fu n d s -                   -                   -                   -                   
  A m o u n ts  A va ila b le  fo r  A p p ro p ria t io n 5 , 8 9 2 , 7 8 3      5 , 8 9 2 , 7 8 3      6 , 1 2 2 , 7 7 2      2 2 9 , 9 8 9         

C h a rg e s  to  A p p rop r ia t io n  (O u t fo w s ):
  C u rre n t :
    G e n e ra l g o ve rn m e n t 4 2 3 , 1 5 5         4 2 3 , 1 5 5         3 9 8 , 2 4 1         2 4 , 9 1 4           
    P u b lic  s a fe ty 1 2 5 , 9 1 7         1 2 5 , 9 1 7         1 4 6 , 5 9 8         (2 0 , 6 8 1 )          
    H ig h w a y s  a n d  ro a d s 6 4 3 , 5 6 0         6 4 3 , 5 6 0         5 3 3 , 7 7 0         1 0 9 , 7 9 0         
    S a n ita t io n 3 6 , 4 2 9           3 6 , 4 2 9           3 7 , 9 0 8           (1 , 4 7 9 )           
    L e is u re  a n d  re c re a t io n 2 6 , 3 0 0           2 6 , 3 0 0           2 4 , 5 8 2           1 , 7 1 8            
    R e c  m a in te n a n c e 6 , 0 4 0            6 , 0 4 0            6 , 1 7 6            (1 3 6 )              
    O rg a n iz a t io n s  a n d  s o c ia l s e rvic e 6 , 7 2 5            6 , 7 2 5            6 , 4 8 1            2 4 4               
    U n c la s s ifie d 1 2 , 0 0 0           1 2 , 0 0 0           1 7 , 5 6 8           (5 , 5 6 8 )           
    E d u c a t io n 3 , 3 4 6 , 9 7 8      3 , 3 4 6 , 9 7 8      3 , 2 8 4 , 0 3 3      6 2 , 9 4 5           
    C o b b o s s e e  w a te rs h e d 1 8 , 1 7 1           1 8 , 1 7 1           1 8 , 1 7 0           1                   
    C o u n ty  ta x 2 4 0 , 9 3 3         2 4 0 , 9 3 3         2 4 0 , 9 3 2         1                   
    F irs t  p a rk 1 9 , 5 3 7           1 9 , 5 3 7           1 9 , 5 3 6           1                   
    C a p ita l e x p e n d itu re s 6 8 , 0 0 0           6 8 , 0 0 0           4 4 , 0 5 7           2 3 , 9 4 3           
    D e b t s e rvic e :
       P r in c ip a l 9 , 9 7 0            9 , 9 7 0            1 1 , 8 4 3           (1 , 8 7 3 )           
       In te re s t 3 , 9 5 1            3 , 9 5 1            3 , 8 4 1            1 1 0               
T ra n s fe rs  to  o th e r fu n d s 1 2 , 1 8 5           1 2 , 1 8 5           1 2 , 1 8 5           -                   
T o ta l C ha rg e s  to  A p p ro p ria t io n s 4 , 9 9 9 , 8 5 1      4 , 9 9 9 , 8 5 1      4 , 8 0 5 , 9 2 1      1 9 3 , 9 3 0         

B u d g e ta ry  F u n d  B a la n c e ,  J u n e  3 0 8 9 2 , 9 3 2$        8 9 2 , 9 3 2$        1 , 3 1 6 , 8 5 1$     4 2 3 , 9 1 9$        

U t iliz a t io n  o f D e s ig n a te d  F u n d  B a la n c e 2 9 5 , 0 0 0$        2 9 5 , 0 0 0$        -$                   (2 9 5 , 0 0 0 )$       
U t iliz a t io n  o f U n d e s ig n a ted  F u n d  B a la n c e 1 8 0 , 0 0 0         1 8 0 , 0 0 0         -                   (1 8 0 , 0 0 0 )        

4 7 5 , 0 0 0$        4 7 5 , 0 0 0$        -$                   (4 7 5 , 0 0 0 )$       

S e e  a c c o m p a n y in g  in d e p e n d e n t a u d ito rs ' re p o rt .

B u d g e te d  A m o u n ts
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Other Supplementary Information  
 
Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the 
Government Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis. 
 

●Schedule of Departmental Operations – General Fund 
 
●Schedule of Departmental Operations – School Department 
 
●Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Governmental Funds 

 
●Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Non-

major Governmental Funds  

 

●Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Special Revenue Funds  

 

● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Non-

major Special Revenue Funds 

 

● Combining Balance Sheet – Non-major Permanent Funds 

 

● Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Non-

major Permanent Funds 

 

• Schedule of General Capital Assets by Function 

 
 ●Schedule of Changes in General Capital Assets by Function 
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SCHEDULE A  
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 

 

 
2005 C arry - T otal

forwards B udget A vailable A c tual B alanc e
E XP E NDIT UR E S
  G eneral government:
    S elec tmen -$                 14,000$          14,000$          14,000$         -$                 
    A dminis tration -                   194,300         194,300         194,657         (357)             
    S upport s ervic es -                   41,988           41,988           32,078          9,910           
    A s s es s ing -                   32,421           32,421           27,716          4,705           
    B oard of appeals -                   100               100                -                   100              
    C E O -                   29,504           29,504           26,041          3,463           
    P lanning board -                   6,860            6,860             5,549            1,311           
    C lerk -                   26,221           26,221           25,906          315              
    E lec tions -                   6,800            6,800             5,810            990              
    F inanc e -                   32,406           32,406           32,374          32                
    L egal s ervic es -                   15,000           15,000           9,620            5,380           
    P rofes s ional s ervices -                   11,400           11,400           11,488          (88)               
    L R P C -                   7,555            7,555             9,525            (1,970)          
    C ons  comm -                   4,600            4,600             3,477            1,123           

-                   423,155         423,155         398,241         24,914         

P ublic  S afety :
    A mbulanc e -                   11,093           11,093           11,093          -                  
    A nimal control -                   6,863            6,863             6,385            478              
    C ons table -                   200               200                200               -                  
    Dam keeper -                   32,750           32,750           31,723          1,027           
    E mergency  prepardnes s -                   100               100                100               -                  
    F ire department -                   43,687           43,687           47,604          (3,917)          
    Hy drants -                   35,880           35,880           35,880          -                  
    S treet lights -                   13,500           13,500           13,613          (113)             

-                   144,073         125,917         146,598         (3,003)          

Highway s  and roads :
    A dminis tration -                   15,100           15,100           8,860            6,240           
    S ummer roads 230,000        200,000         430,000         328,519         101,481        
    W inter roads -                   198,460         198,460         196,391         2,069           

230,000        413,560         643,560         533,770         109,790        

S anitation:
    S olid was te -                   36,429           36,429           37,908          (1,479)          

-                   36,429           36,429           37,908          (1,479)          



 

169 

SELEC TMEN 
RECO MME
ND YES 
(5-0)  
Motio n 
m
a
d
e, 
se
co
n
d
e

d 

a

n

d 

p

as

se

d 

as 

re

a

d 

 

      

B
U
D
G
ET 

C
O
M

M
IT
TE

2005 C arry - T otal
forwards B udget A vailable A c tual B alance

R ec reation maintenance -                   6,040             6,040             6,176            (136)             

Organizations  and s oc ial s ervice agencies :
    K ennebec  land trus t -                   250               250                250               -                  
    MMA -                   3,075             3,075             2,831            244              
    Maranacook youth football -                   500               500                500               -                  
    T roop #622 -                   500               500                500               -                  
    C ris is  &  s upport -                   100               100                100               -                  
    F amily  violence -                   350               350                350               -                  
    Hos pice of K V -                   700               700                700               -                  
    K V  C om A ction -                   100               100                100               -                  
    K V  Mental Health -                   700               700                700               -                  
    Me P ublic  B roadcas ting -                   100               100                100               -                  
    S enior s pectrum -                   350               350                350               -                  

-                   6,725             6,725             6,481            244              
Unc las s ified:
    C emeteries -                   10,000           10,000           13,070          (3,070)          
    Des ignated fund ac tivity -                   -                    -                    3,681            (3,681)          
    G eneral as s is tance -                   2,000             2,000             817               1,183           

-                   12,000           12,000           17,568          (5,568)          
E ducation:
    E lementary  S chool Department -                   1,795,859      1,795,859       1,732,913      62,946         
    C S D #10 -                   1,551,119      1,551,119       1,551,120      (1)                

-                   3,346,978      3,346,978       3,284,033      62,945         

C obbos s ee waters hed -                   18,171           18,171           18,170          1                 

C ounty  tax -                   240,933         240,933         240,932         -                  

F irs t P ark -                   19,537           19,537           19,536          1                 

C apital ex penditures :
    C omputers -                   5,000             5,000             4,582            418              
    G rants -                   -                    -                    3,053            (3,053)          
    R oads  and s treets  (Mt.V ernon) -                   23,000           23,000           -                   23,000         
    R es erves -                   30,000           30,000           36,422          (6,422)          
    V ehic les  -  F ire department -                   10,000           10,000           -                   10,000         

-                   68,000           68,000           44,057          23,943         

Debt s ervice:
    P rinc ipal -                  9,970           9,970           11,843          (1,873)        
    Interes t -                  3,951           3,951           3,841            110            

-                  13,921         13,921         15,684          (1,763)        

Total E xpenditures 230,000$       4,775,822$     4,987,666$     4,793,736$    211,607$      

S ee ac company ing independent auditors ' report.

SCHEDULE A CONTINUED  

TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
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SCHEDULE B  
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS – SCHOOL DEPARTMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

A p p ro p r ia tio ns E x p end itu res V a r ian c e

In s tru c tion a l S a la r ies
Ins truction K - 2 323 ,994$          330 ,638$          (6 ,644)$       
Ins truction 3 -5 541 ,092           543 ,441           (2 ,349)        

T ota l 865 ,086           874 ,079           (8 ,993)        

In s tru c tion a l S u p p o r t
Ins truction K - 2 1 ,200                -                        1 ,200          
Ins truction 3 -5 29 ,400              2 4 ,287             5 ,113          
T ra ns porta tion 3,700                3 ,250                450             

T ota l 34 ,300              2 7 ,537             6 ,763          

S u p p or t S erv ic es
A s s es s ment 19 ,955              2 2 ,618             (2 ,663)        
C ontingency 15 ,000              -                        1 5 ,000       

   C ultura l S ervices 4 ,281                4 ,124                157             
F is ca l S ervices 200                   -                        200             

G uidance 27,890              2 7 ,157             733             
Hea lth 35 ,611              3 4 ,745             866             
Improvement of Ins truction 15,425              1 5 ,729             (304)            
L ibra ry Media 44 ,294              4 4 ,029             265             
S chool C ommittee 13,051              1 1 ,187             1 ,864          
T echnology 24,705              2 8 ,561             (3 ,856)        

   T ra ns fer to S chool L unch P rogram 8,200                1 2 ,185             (3 ,985)        

T ota l 208 ,612           200 ,335           8 ,277          

Op era tion s  &  Ma in ten a n c e 200,415           179 ,825           2 0 ,590       

T ran s p o r ta tio n 93,767              9 3 ,567             200             

S p ec ia l E d u c a tio n 237,964           204 ,010           3 3 ,954       

A d m in is tra tio n
S uperintendent's  Office 59 ,222              5 9 ,222             -                  
P rinc ipa l's  Office 108,678           106 ,523           2 ,155          

T ota l 167 ,900           165 ,745           2 ,155          

T o ta ls 1 ,808 ,044$       1 ,745 ,098$       6 2 ,946$      

S ee a ccompa nying independent a uditors ' report.
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SCHEDULE C  

TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
COMBININB BALANCE SHEET—NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

S pecia l T ota l Nonmajor
R evenue P ermanent G overnmenta l

F unds F unds F unds
A S S E T S
   C as h -$                 17 ,254$    17,254$          
   Inves tments -                  -                -                       
   A ccounts  receivable -                  -                -                       
   D ue from other funds 11,606       -                11,606            
T ota l as sets 11,606$      17 ,254$    28,860$          

L IA B IL IT IE S
   A ccounts  P ayable -$                 -$               -$                     
   D ue to other funds -                  -                -                       
T ota l liabilities -                  -                -                       

F UND  E QUIT Y
   F und ba lance:
     Unreserved:
       D es igna ted for s ubs equent yea rs '
         expenditures 11,606       17 ,254     28,860            
       Undes ignated -                  -                -                       
T ota l fund equity 11 ,606       17 ,254     28,860            

T OT A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A ND
  F UND  E QUIT Y 11,606$      17 ,254$    28,860$          

S ee accompanying independent auditors ' report.
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SCHEDULE D 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

COMBININB BALANCE SHEET—NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

 
 

S pe c ia l T o ta l N o nm a jo r
R e ve nue P e rm a ne nt G o ve rnm e nta l

F unds F und s F unds

R E V E N U E S
   Inte rgo ve rnm e nta l 9 5 ,0 1 4$     -$                 9 5 ,0 1 4$          
   Inte re s t -            4 7 8             4 7 8                 
   O the r -                 4 0 0             4 0 0                 
T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 9 5 ,0 1 4      8 7 8             9 5 ,8 9 2           

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 9 0 ,7 5 9      2 7 2             9 1 ,0 3 1           

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R
  (U N D E R ) E X P E N D IT U R E S 4 ,2 5 5        6 0 6             4 ,8 6 1              

O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S
  (U S E S )
  T ra ns fe rs  In -                 -                   -                      
  T ra ns fe rs  O ut -                 -                   -                      
T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G
  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                 -                   -                      

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D
  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  O V E R
  (U N D E R ) E X P E N D IT U R E S  
  A N D  O T H E R  U S E S 4 ,2 5 5        6 0 6             4 ,8 6 1              

F U N D  B A L A N C E  -  J U L Y  1 7 ,3 5 1        1 6 ,6 4 8        2 3 ,9 9 9           

F U N D  B A L A N C E  -  J U N E  3 0 1 1 ,6 0 6$     1 7 ,2 5 4$      2 8 ,8 6 0$          

S e e  a c c om pa nying  inde pe nd e nt a ud ito rs ' re p o rt.
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Special Revenue Funds 

 

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes 
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SCHEDULE E 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

COMBININB BALANCE SHEET—NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
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SCHEDULE F 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

COMBININB BALANCE SHEET—NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 
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Permanent Funds 
 

Permanent funds are used to account for assets held by the Town of Manchester, Maine in trust or as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.   
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SCHEDULE G 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2006 
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 
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General Capital Assets 

General capital assets are those assets related to activities reported in the governmental 
funds.  These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the 
government-wide statement of net assets. 
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SCHEDULE  I 

TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION 

JUNE 30,2006 
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SCHEDULE  J 
TOWN OF MANCHESTER, MAINE 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES INGENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION 
JUNE 30,2006 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RPORT ON STATE REQUIREMENTS 

 

August 8, 2006 
 
Board of Selectmen 
Town of Manchester 
Manchester, Maine 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Manchester, Maine, for the year ended June 
30, 2006 and have issued our report thereon dated August 8, 2006.  Our audit was made in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and applicable state and federal laws relating to financial 
and compliance audits and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other 

auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 

In connection with our audit, we reviewed the budgetary controls in place, the EF-M-45 for the year 

ended June 30, 2006 due on July 31, 2006 and quarterly EF-U-415 reports, and the Town’s compliance 

with applicable provisions of the Maine Finance Act as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 

The results of our procedures indicate that with respect to the items tested, the Town of Manchester, 

Maine, complied, in all material respects, with the provisions referred to in the preceding paragraph.  

With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Town 

of Manchester, Maine, was in noncompliance with, or in violation of, those provisions.   

 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Selectmen, management, and 

Department of Education.  This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than the specified parties. 

 

Certified Public Accountants 
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R evenues :
  T ota l genera l fund revenue per E F -M-45 1,781,352$    

  L ess :  S chool lunch revenues (37,778)$         
  L ess :  Medicaid adjus tment (739)               

T ota l revenues  per financia l s ta tements 1 ,742,835$    

E xpenditures :
  T ota l genera l fund expenditures  per E F -M-45 1,781,397$    

  A dd: S chool lunch trans fer adjus tment 685$               
  A dd: A djus tment for accrued summer sa laries 35,567           
  L ess : A djus tments  for accrued payroll (33,869)          
  L ess : S chool lunch expenses  shown on E F M-45 (38,682)          
T ota l expenses  per financia l s ta tements 1 ,745,098$    


